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Item 5.02. Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors; Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory Arrangements of
Certain Officers.

On June 16, 2014, Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) entered into the Second Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement with Peter J. Arduini, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “Agreement”). The Agreement is effective immediately and
amends and restates the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Mr. Arduini, dated December 20, 2011, that was
scheduled to expire on December 31, 2014.

Unless earlier terminated, the term of the Agreement will terminate on December 31, 2017. In the event that a change in control of the Company
occurs prior to the expiration of the term, the employment period will instead continue through the later of December 31, 2017, or the second anniversary of
the consummation of the change in control.

Under the Agreement, Mr. Arduini is entitled to receive an annual base salary of $834,300, and he remains eligible for an annual bonus opportunity
targeted at 110% of his annual base salary. Mr. Arduini’s bonus opportunity will range from 50% of his annual base salary (if threshold performance goals are
achieved) to a maximum of 200% of his annual base salary. Mr. Arduini’s base salary is subject to annual review and may be increased in the discretion of the
Company. The Agreement eliminates the target annual base salary increase that was provided in Mr. Arduini’s prior employment agreement.

The Agreement provides that Mr. Arduini is eligible to receive a discretionary annual equity award, with the amount, form and mix of such award to be
determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee in its discretion after giving consideration to annual equity-based awards granted to chief executive
officers in the Company’s peer group. The Agreement also provides that each current and future equity award held by Mr. Arduini that provides for double
trigger accelerated vesting will provide for accelerated vesting upon a qualifying termination that occurs on or within 24 months following a change in
control. In addition, Mr. Arduini’s stock options will remain exercisable for up to two years following a qualifying termination or such longer period of time
provided in the applicable option agreement.

The Agreement contains non-compete and non-solicitation covenants that extend for 18 months following a termination of Mr. Arduini’s employment
(or 12 months in the event of a termination due to the expiration of the employment term). Further, the Company will reimburse Mr. Arduini for up to
$15,000 in legal fees and expenses incurred in connection with the drafting, review and negotiation of the Agreement.

Under the Agreement, if Mr. Arduini’s employment is terminated outside the context of a change in control by the Company other than “cause,” death
or “disability,” or by Mr. Arduini for “good reason” (each, as defined in the Agreement), then, in addition to accrued amounts, Mr. Arduini will be entitled to
the following payments and benefits:

* A lump sum payment equal to 2.99 times Mr. Arduini’s annual base salary;

» Company-subsidized healthcare continuation coverage for Mr. Arduini and his dependents for up to eighteen months after his termination
date; and

» Company-paid life and disability insurance premiums for Mr. Arduini for up to eighteen months after his termination date.

If Mr. Arduini’s employment is terminated by the Company within twenty-four months following a change in control by the Company other than
cause, death or disability, or by Mr. Arduini for good reason, then Mr. Arduini will be entitled to receive the same payments and benefits as in the non-change
in control context, except: (i) the lump sum cash payment will instead equal 2.99 times the sum of Mr. Arduini’s annual base salary and target bonus and (ii)
Mr. Arduini will receive a pro-rata portion of his annual bonus for the year of termination, determined based on actual performance.

If Mr. Arduini’s employment is terminated due to his death, then his estate will receive (i) a lump sum cash payment equal to Mr. Arduini’s annual base
salary, and (ii) Company-subsidized healthcare continuation coverage for up to twelve months after his termination date.

Mr. Arduini’s right to receive the severance payments pursuant to the Agreement (other than upon his death) is contingent on Mr. Arduini’s executing a
general release of claims against the Company (provided that the Company also executes a general release of claims against Mr. Arduini). In addition, to the
extent that any payment or benefit received in connection with a change in control would be subject to an excise tax under Section 4999 of the Internal
Revenue Code, such payments



and/or benefits will be subject to a “best pay cap” reduction if such reduction would result in a greater net after-tax benefit to Mr. Arduini than receiving the
full amount of such payments.

The foregoing description of the Agreement is not complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by the terms of the Agreement, a copy of
which is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.1 and incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 8.01 OTHER EVENTS.

Medical Device Excise Tax Accounting Change, Segment Revenues, and Inventory

In the first quarter of 2014, Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) changed its method of accounting for the medical device
excise tax (“MDET”). Prior to the change the Company recorded the MDET in inventory at the time of the first sale and then recognized the tax in cost of
goods sold when the medical device was sold to the ultimate customer. Under the new method, the MDET will be recorded in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the period the first sale occurs, which could be an intercompany sale. The Company believes that this change in accounting
principle is preferable as the new method provides a better comparison with the Company's industry peers, the majority of which expense the MDET at the
time of the first sale. The medical device excise tax applies to sales beginning January 1, 2013; therefore, only 2013 financial results were affected by this
change. Additionally, in the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed the segments in which it recognizes certain product revenues. The result of this
change was a decrease in revenues for the U.S. Extremities segment, and an increase in revenues for the U.S. Instruments and U.S. Spine and Other segments.
Finally, the December 31, 2013 disclosure of inventory by category has been revised to correct an immaterial misclassification of certain items between work
in process and raw materials. The impact of the retrospective application of the change in accounting principle on 2013, the reclassification of segment
revenues for all periods presented, and inventory revision in 2013 is presented in Exhibit 99.1 attached hereto.

This Current Report on Form 8-K includes revisions to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 (the
“2013 Form 10-K”) originally filed on February 27, 2014. These revisions reflect the impact of the change in accounting principle for the MDET on
previously issued financial statements, changes to the revenue reporting categories and the related segment results, and the correction of an immaterial
misclassification of inventory. Accordingly, the Exhibits included under Item 9.01 to this Current Report on Form 8-K hereby revise the following items of
the Company’s 2013 Form 10-K:

. Part II, Item 6 — Selected Financial Data

. Part I, Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation
. Part II, Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

. Part II, Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

. Part IV, Item 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

This Current Report on Form 8-K and the attachments hereto do not attempt to modify or update any disclosures set forth in our 2013 Form 10-K,
except as required to reflect the change in accounting principle for the MDET, the changes to segment revenue classifications, and the inventory
misclassification, and therefore, do not update or discuss other activities or events occurring after February 27, 2014. This Current Report on Form 8-K
should be read in conjunction with the 2013 Form 10-K (as updated by this Current Report on Form 8-K), our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2014, and the Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments thereto. Unaffected items of our 2013 Form 10-K have not
been repeated in this Current Report on Form 8-K.



ITEM 9.01 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS.

(d) Exhibits

10.1
18.1

23.1
99.1

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Peter J. Arduini +

Preferability letter of independent registered public accounting firm (Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 18
to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed on May 1, 2014)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP +
Updates to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, as follows: +
Part II, Item 6 — Selected Financial Data
Part II, Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Part II, Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Part II, Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Part IV, Item 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

XBRL Instance Document-+#

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document+#

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document+#
XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document+#

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document+#

Indicates this document is filed as an exhibit herewith.

The financial information of Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation on Form 8-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 filed on June 20, 2014 formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i)
the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss),
(iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) Parenthetical Data to the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (v) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (vi) the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’
Equity, and (vii) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, is furnished electronically herewith.



SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned

hereunto duly authorized.

INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Date: June 20, 2014 By: /s/ Glenn G. Coleman
Glenn G. Coleman
Corporate Vice President, and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.1
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”), by and between Integra LifeSciences Holdings
Corporation, a Delaware Corporation (the “Company”) and Peter J. Arduini (“Executive™), is entered into as of June 16, 2014 and shall be
effective as of June 16, 2014 (the “Effective Date”). Effective as of the Effective Date, this Agreement amends and restates in its entirety that
certain Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated December 20, 2011, by and between the Company and Executive, as amended
by that certain letter agreement dated February 19, 2013 (collectively, the “Prior Agreement”).

Background

The Company and Executive previously entered into the Prior Agreement, pursuant to which Executive is employed as the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Prior Agreement is scheduled to expire pursuant to its terms on December 31, 2014.

The Company and Executive wish to amend and restate the Prior Agreement to provide for the continued employment of Executive as
the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on the terms and conditions set forth herein, effective as of the Effective Date. In
connection with Executive’s continued employment by the Company, on the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, Executive will
be substantially involved with the Company’s operations and management and will learn trade secrets and other confidential information
relating to the Company and its customers; accordingly, the noncompetition covenant and other restrictive covenants contained in Section 19 of
this Agreement constitute essential elements hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual agreements contained herein and intended to be legally bound
hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Terms
1. Definitions. The following words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth below for the purposes of this Agreement (unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise):
(a) “Base Salary” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.
b) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company, or any successor thereto.
(o) “Cause,” as determined by the Board in good faith, shall mean Executive has —
6))] failed to perform his stated duties in all material respects, which failure continues for 15 days after his receipt of

written notice of the failure;



(d

(ii) intentionally and materially breached any provision of this Agreement and not cured such breach (if curable) within
15 days of his receipt of written notice of the breach, provided such breach is materially and demonstrably injurious to the

Company;

(iii) demonstrated his personal dishonesty in connection with his employment by the Company;

(iv) engaged in a breach of fiduciary duty in connection with his employment with the Company;

V) engaged in willful misconduct that is materially and demonstrably injurious to the Company or any of its

subsidiaries; or

(vi) been convicted or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a felony or to any other crime involving moral
turpitude which conviction or plea is materially and demonstrably injurious to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

A “Change in Control” of the Company shall be deemed to have occurred:

6))] if the “beneficial ownership” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) of securities
representing more than fifty percent (50%) of the combined voting power of Company Voting Securities (as herein defined) is
acquired by any individual, entity or group (a “Person”), other than the Company, any trustee or other fiduciary holding
securities under any employee benefit plan of the Company or an affiliate thereof, or any corporation owned, directly or
indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of stock of the
Company (for purposes of this Agreement, “Company Voting Securities” shall mean the then outstanding voting securities of
the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors); provided, however, that any acquisition from the Company

or any acquisition pursuant to a transaction which complies with clauses (A), (B) and (C) of paragraph (iii) of this definition
shall not be a Change in Control under this paragraph (i); or

(ii) if individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for any reason during

any period of at least 24 months to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming

a director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was
approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considered as though
such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any such individual whose initial
assumption of office occurs as a result of an actual or threatened election contest with respect to the election or removal of
directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other than the Board; or
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(iii) upon consummation by the Company of a reorganization, merger or consolidation or sale or other disposition of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Company or the acquisition of assets or stock of any entity (a “Business Combination”),
in each case, unless immediately following such Business Combination: (A) Company Voting Securities outstanding
immediately prior to such Business Combination (or if such Company Voting Securities were converted pursuant to such
Business Combination, the shares into which such Company Voting Securities were converted) (x) represent, directly or
indirectly, more than 50% of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in
the election of directors of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination (the “Surviving Corporation”), or, if
applicable, a corporation which as a result of such transaction owns the Company or all or substantially all of the Company’s
assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries (the “Parent Corporation”) and (y) are held in substantially the same
proportions after such Business Combination as they were immediately prior to such Business Combination; (B) no Person
(excluding any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such corporation resulting from such Business
Combination) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 50% or more of the combined voting power of the then outstanding
voting securities eligible to elect directors of the Parent Corporation (or, if there is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving
Corporation) except to the extent that such ownership of the Company existed prior to the Business Combination; and (C) at
least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the Parent Corporation (or, if there is no Parent Corporation, the
Surviving Corporation) were members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement, or the
action of the Board, providing for such Business Combination; or

(iv) upon approval by the stockholders of the Company of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.
“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
“Company” shall mean Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

“Disability” shall mean Executive’s inability to perform his duties hereunder by reason of any medically determinable

physical or mental impairment which is expected to result in death or which has lasted or is expected to last for a continuous period of

not fewer than six months.

()

“Good Reason” shall mean:

6))] a material breach of this Agreement by the Company which is not cured by the Company within 15 days of its

receipt of written notice of the breach;

(ii) the relocation by the Company of Executive’s office location to a location more than forty (40) miles from

Princeton, New Jersey;



2.

(iii) without Executive’s express written consent, the Company reduces Executive’s Base Salary or bonus opportunity,
or materially reduces the aggregate fringe benefits provided to Executive or substantially alters Executive’s authority and/or
title as set forth in Section 2 hereof in a manner reasonably construed to constitute a demotion, provided, Executive resigns
within 90 days after the change objected to;

(iv) without Executive’s express written consent, (A) Executive fails at any point during the two-year period following
a Change in Control to hold the title and authority (as set forth in Sections 2 and 4(a) hereof) with the Parent Corporation (or if
there is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving Corporation) that Executive held with the Company immediately prior to the
Change in Control, provided Executive resigns within two years of the Change in Control or (B) at any point following a
Change in Control, the Company (or the Parent Corporation or the Surviving Corporation, as applicable) materially reduces

Executive’s annual long-term incentive award opportunity; or
V) the Company fails to obtain the assumption of this Agreement by any successor to the Company.

@) “Principal Executive Office” shall mean the Company’s principal office for executives, presently located at 311 Enterprise
Drive, Plainsboro, New Jersey 08536.

1) “Restricted Period” shall mean (i) in the event of a termination of Executive’s employment with the Company upon the
expiration of the Employment Period, a period of 12 months following the Termination Date, or (ii) in the event of any other
termination of Executive’s employment with the Company, a period of 18 months following the Termination Date.

k) “Termination Date” shall mean the date of Executive’s “separation from service” from the Company (within the meaning
of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code and Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)), as specified in the Termination Notice.

0] “Termination Notice” shall mean a dated notice which: (i) indicates the specific termination provision in this Agreement
relied upon (if any); (ii) sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for the termination of
Executive’s employment under such provision (with a period of at least 7 days to cure in the event of a termination by Executive for
Good Reason or by the Company for Cause to the extent that the act or omission is capable of cure); (iii) specifies a Termination Date;
and (iv) is given in the manner specified in Section 20(k).

Employment. Effective as of the Effective Date, the Company hereby employs Executive as its President and Chief Executive

Officer, and Executive hereby agrees to accept such employment and agrees to render services to the Company in such capacity (or in such

other capacity in the future as the Board may reasonably deem equivalent to such position) on the terms and conditions set forth in this



Agreement. Executive’s primary place of employment shall be at the Principal Executive Office and Executive shall report to the Board.

3. Term of Agreement. Unless earlier terminated by Executive or the Company as provided in Section 15 hereof, the term of
Executive’s employment as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company under this Agreement (the “Employment Period”) shall
commence on the Effective Date and terminate on December 31, 2017. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a Change in Control
occurs prior to December 31, 2017, then the Employment Period shall instead continue through the later of (a) December 31, 2017, or (b) the
second anniversary of the consummation of the Change in Control, unless earlier terminated by Executive or the Company as provided in
Section 15 hereof.

4. Duties. Executive shall:

(a) have duties, authority and responsibilities reasonably consistent with his employment hereunder and shall faithfully and
diligently do and perform all such acts and duties, and furnish such services as are assigned to Executive as of the Effective Date, and
(subject to Section 2) such additional acts, duties and services as the Board may assign in the future; and

b) devote his full professional time, energy, skill and best efforts to the performance of his duties hereunder, in a manner that
will faithfully and diligently further the business and interests of the Company, and shall not be employed by or participate or engage in
or in any manner be a part of the management or operations of any business enterprise other than the Company without the prior
consent of the Board, which consent may be granted or withheld in its sole discretion; provided, however, that notwithstanding the

foregoing, Executive may serve on civic or charitable boards or committees so long as such service does not materially interfere with
Executive’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement.

5. Annual Compensation. Executive’s base salary rate shall be equal to $834,300 per annum. Executive’s base salary, as determined in
accordance with this Section 5 and as may be increased from time to time, is hereinafter referred to as his “Base Salary.” Executive’s Base
Salary shall be payable in periodic installments in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices in effect from time to time.
Commencing with Executive’s Base Salary for 2015, the Base Salary shall be subject to annual review, but may not be decreased without
Executive’s express written consent. Any increase in the Base Salary shall be in the sole discretion of the Company.

6. [This Section intentionally left blank.]
7. Annual Bonus Opportunity.
(a) Annual Bonus. Executive shall have the opportunity to receive an annual performance bonus in an amount targeted at 110%

of Executive’s Base Salary (the “Target Bonus”), and ranging from 50% of Executive’s Base Salary (if threshold performance
objectives are achieved) to a maximum of 200% of Executive’s Base Salary. The actual amount of any such annual bonus that the
Company determines to pay to Executive (the “Annual Bonus”) shall be based upon the



8.

satisfaction of performance objectives established and evaluated by the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Compensation

Committee”) in its sole discretion.

(b) Time and Form of Payment. The Compensation Committee shall, in its sole discretion, determine the extent to which the
Annual Bonus shall be paid in cash and the extent to which such Annual Bonus shall be paid in the form of one or more equity-based
awards (including equity-based awards settled on a deferred basis), provided that any portion of such Annual Bonus that is paid in the
form of an equity-based award shall be fully vested as of the date on which such award is granted. The Annual Bonus, if any, will be

paid in cash and/or by grant of an equity-based award by March 15 of the year after the applicable performance year.

Benefit Plans. Executive shall be entitled to participate in and receive benefits under any employee benefit plan or stock-based plan

of the Company in accordance with their terms, and shall be eligible for any other plans and benefits covering executives of the Company, to

the extent commensurate with his then duties and responsibilities fixed by the Board. The Company shall not make any change in such plans or

benefits that would adversely affect Executive’s rights thereunder, unless such change affects all, or substantially all, executive officers of the

Company.

9.

Equity Compensation.

(a) The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that the Company may in its discretion grant Executive equity-based compensation
awards from time to time. Executive shall be eligible to receive a discretionary annual equity-based award (“Annual Equity Award”)
as determined by the Compensation Committee in its discretion. Any Annual Equity Award that the Company determines to grant
Executive may be in such amount, form(s) and mix as the Compensation Committee shall determine in its sole discretion after giving
consideration to annual equity-based awards granted to Chief Executive Officers in the Company’s peer group.

(b) Each Company equity compensation award granted to Executive, including but not limited to those held by Executive that are
outstanding as of the Effective Date, (i) shall, to the extent that such award does not provide for 100% vesting of the shares subject to
such award upon a Change in Control, provide for 100% vesting of the shares subject to such awards upon a Qualifying Termination
(as defined in the applicable award agreement which, to the extent such phrase includes a termination by the Company without Cause,
by Executive for Good Reason and/or as a result of Executive’s Disability, shall refer to such terms as defined herein) on or within 24
months following a Change in Control (as defined herein), and (ii) if such award is a Company stock option and Executive’s
employment is terminated by the Company without Cause, by Executive for Good Reason or as a result of Executive’s death or
Disability, shall, to the extent vested as of the Termination Date (after giving effect to any accelerated vesting that occurs in connection
with such termination), remain exercisable until the earlier to occur of (A) the second anniversary of the Termination Date or, if later,
such longer period of time as set forth in the applicable stock option agreement, or (B) the stated expiration date set forth in the
applicable stock option agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that this Section 9(b) shall constitute an amendment to each
Company equity compensation award agreement



outstanding as of the Effective Date to the extent necessary to implement the requirements of this Section 9(b).

(c) The Company agrees that for so long as it is required to file reports under Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, it will maintain in effect a Form S-8 registration statement covering the issuance to Executive of the shares underlying
Executive’s then outstanding equity-based compensation awards.

10. Vacation. Executive shall be entitled to four weeks of paid annual vacation in accordance with the policies established from time to

time by the Board.
11. [This Section intentionally left blank.]

12. Business Expenses. The Company shall reimburse Executive or otherwise pay for all reasonable expenses incurred by Executive in
furtherance of or in connection with the business of the Company, including, but not limited to, automobile and traveling expenses and all
reasonable entertainment expenses, subject to such reasonable documentation and other limitations as may be established by the Company.

13. Legal Fees. The Company shall reimburse Executive for up to $15,000 in legal fees and expenses actually incurred by Executive in
connection with the drafting, review and negotiation of this Agreement on or prior to the Effective Date. Subject to Section 20(b) below, the
Company shall reimburse such legal fees and expenses in 2014 within thirty (30) days following Executive’s delivery to the Company of

documentation evidencing such expenses.

14. Disability. In the event Executive incurs a Disability, Executive’s obligation to perform services under this Agreement will

terminate, and the Board may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Executive.
15. Termination.

(a) Termination without Salary Continuation. In the event that (i) Executive terminates his employment hereunder other than
for Good Reason, or (ii) Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for Cause, Executive shall have no right to

compensation or other benefits pursuant to this Agreement for any period after his last day of active employment.

(b) Termination without Cause or for Good Reason (No Change in Control). Except as provided in Section 15(c) in the
event of a Change in Control, and subject to Executive and the Company each executing a general release attached as Exhibit A and B
hereto, respectively, (provided, however, that Executive shall not be required to execute a general release as a condition to the receipt
of the payments and benefits described below unless the Company also executes a general release) within 30 days following the
Termination Date, in the event that Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for a reason other than death, Disability



or Cause, or Executive terminates his employment for Good Reason, then, subject to Section 15(e) below, the Company shall:

©

6))] pay Executive a severance amount equal to 2.99 times Executive’s Base Salary (determined without regard to any
reduction in violation of Section 5) as of his last day of active employment; the severance amount shall be paid in a single lump

sum on the first business day of the month following the Termination Date;

(ii) pay to Executive, for the period ending on the earliest of (A) 18 months following the Termination Date, (B) the
date of Executive’s full-time employment by another employer, (C) Executive’s death, or (D) the first month in which
Executive does not pay to the Company the applicable monthly premium for COBRA insurance coverage under the Company’s
group health plan, a monthly cash payment, payable on the first business day of each month that follows the Termination Date,
in an amount equal to Executive’s monthly premium cost for “COBRA” family health coverage under the Company’s group

health plan; and

(iii) pay to Executive, for the period ending on the earliest of (A) 18 months following the Termination Date, (B) the
date of Executive’s full-time employment by another employer, or (C) Executive’s death, a monthly cash payment, payable on
the first business day of each month that follows the Termination Date, in an amount equal to the monthly premium cost that
the Company would have paid on behalf of Executive to cover Executive under the Company’s life and disability insurance

plans if Executive’s employment with the Company had not terminated.

Termination without Cause or for Good Reason (Change in Control). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth

in Section 15(b), and subject to Executive and the Company each executing a general release attached as Exhibit A and B hereto,

respectively, (provided, however, that Executive shall not be required to execute a general release as a condition to the receipt of the

payments and benefits described below unless the Company also executes a general release) within 30 days following the Termination

Date, in the event that within 24 months following a Change in Control Executive terminates his employment for Good Reason, or

Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for a reason other than death, Disability or Cause, then, subject to Section 15(e)

below, the Company shall:

6))] pay Executive a severance amount equal to 2.99 times the sum of (a) Executive’s Base Salary (determined without
regard to any reduction in violation of Section 5), and (b) Executive’s Target Bonus, each as of his last day of active
employment; the severance amount shall be paid in a single lump sum on the first business day of the month following the

Termination Date;

(ii) pay to Executive, for the period ending on the earliest of (A) 18 months following the Termination Date, (B) the
date of Executive’s full-time employment by another employer, (C) Executive’s death, or (D) the first month in which

Executive does



not pay to the Company the applicable monthly premium for COBRA insurance coverage under the Company’s group health
plan, a monthly cash payment, payable on the first business day of each month that follows the Termination Date, in an amount
equal to Executive’s monthly premium cost for “COBRA” family health coverage under the Company’s group health plan;

(iii) pay to Executive, for the period ending on the earliest of (A) 18 months following the Termination Date, (B) the
date of Executive’s full-time employment by another employer, or (C) Executive’s death, a monthly cash payment, payable on
the first business day of each month that follows the Termination Date, in an amount equal to the monthly premium cost that
the Company would have paid on behalf of Executive to cover Executive under the Company’s life and disability insurance
plans if Executive’s employment with the Company had not terminated; and

(iv) pay to Executive a pro-rata portion of Executive’s Annual Bonus for the fiscal year in which the Termination Date
occurs, based on actual results for such year (determined by multiplying the amount of such bonus which would be due for the
full fiscal year by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days during the fiscal year of termination that Executive
is employed by the Company and the denominator of which is the total number of days in such fiscal year), payable in a single
lump sum no later than March 15 of the year following the year in which the Termination Date occurs.

(d) Termination Notice. Except in the event of Executive’s death, a termination under this Agreement shall be effected by
means of a Termination Notice.

(e) Payment Delay. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, no compensation or benefits, including without
limitation any severance payments or benefits payable under this Section 15, shall be paid to Executive during the six (6)-month period
following Executive’s “separation from service” (within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(A)(i) of the Code) to the extent that the
Company reasonably determines that paying such amounts at the time or times indicated in this Agreement would be a prohibited
distribution under Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code. Any amounts delayed as a result of the previous sentence shall be paid to
Executive in a lump sum within thirty (30) days after the end of such six (6) month period, and any amounts payable to Executive after
the expiration of such six (6) month period under this Agreement shall continue to be paid to Executive in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement. If Executive dies during such six-month period and prior to the payment of the delayed amounts hereunder, such
unpaid delayed payments shall be paid to the personal representative of Executive’s estate within thirty (30) days after the date of
Executive’s death. If any of the payments payable pursuant to this Section 15 are delayed due to such requirements, there shall be
added to such payments interest during the delayed period at a rate, per annum, equal to the applicable federal short-term deferral rate
(compounded monthly) in effect under Section 1274(d) of the Code on Executive’s Termination Date. If a portion of the severance pay
or benefits is deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code, and the payment thereof is contingent upon



16.

execution and nonrevocation of a general release of claims, and the period for considering or revoking the release spans two calendar
years, then the portion of the severance pay or benefits that is deferred compensation will be paid or begin to be paid on the first
business day of the second calendar year.

f) Expiration of Employment Term. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, in no event shall the expiration of the
employment term set forth in Section 3 above or the Company’s election not to renew the employment term constitute a termination of
Executive’s employment by the Company without Cause.

Limitation on Payments.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event that any payment or benefit received or to be received
by Executive (including any payment or benefit received in connection with a termination of Executive’s employment, whether
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement or agreement) (all such payments and benefits, including the
payments and benefits under Section 15 hereof, being hereinafter referred to as the “Total Payments”) would be subject (in whole or
part) to the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then, after taking into account any reduction in the
Total Payments provided by reason of Section 280G of the Code in such other plan, arrangement or agreement, the Total Payments
shall be reduced to the extent necessary so that no portion of the Total Payments is subject to the Excise Tax, but such reduction shall
be made only if (i) the net amount of such Total Payments as so reduced (and after subtracting the net amount of federal, state and local
income taxes on such reduced Total Payments and after taking into account the phase out of itemized deductions and personal
exemptions attributable to such reduced Total Payments), is greater than or equal to (ii) the net amount of such Total Payments without
such reduction (but after subtracting the net amount of federal, state and local income taxes on such Total Payments and the amount of
Excise Tax to which Executive would be subject in respect of such unreduced Total Payments and after taking into account the phase
out of itemized deductions and personal exemptions attributable to such unreduced Total Payments). The Total Payments shall be
reduced in the following order: (A) reduction of any cash severance payments otherwise payable to Executive that are exempt from
Section 409A of the Code; (B) reduction of any other cash payments or benefits otherwise payable to Executive that are exempt from
Section 409A of the Code, but excluding any payments attributable to any acceleration of vesting or payments with respect to any
equity award that are exempt from Section 409A of the Code; (C) reduction of any other payments or benefits otherwise payable to
Executive on a pro-rated basis or such other manner that complies with Section 409A of the Code, but excluding any payments
attributable to any acceleration of vesting and payments with respect to any equity award that are exempt from Section 409A of the
Code; and (D) reduction of any payments attributable to any acceleration of vesting or payments with respect to any equity award that
are exempt from Section 409A of the Code, in each case beginning with payments that would otherwise be made last in time.
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b) For purposes of determining whether and the extent to which the Total Payments will be subject to the Excise Tax, (i) no
portion of the Total Payments the receipt or enjoyment of which Executive shall have waived at such time and in such manner as not to
constitute a “payment” within the meaning of Section 280G(b) of the Code shall be taken into account; (ii) no portion of the Total
Payments shall be taken into account which, in the written opinion of independent auditors of nationally recognized standing
(“Independent Advisors”) selected by the Company, does not constitute a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Section
280G(b)(2) of the Code (including by reason of Section 280G(b)(4)(A) of the Code) and, in calculating the Excise Tax, no portion of
such Total Payments shall be taken into account which, in the opinion of the Independent Advisors, constitutes reasonable
compensation for services actually rendered, within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(4)(B) of the Code, in excess of the Base Amount
(as defined in Section 280G(b)(3) of the Code) allocable to such reasonable compensation; and (iii) the value of any non-cash benefit
or any deferred payment or benefit included in the Total Payments shall be determined by the Independent Advisors in accordance with
the principles of Sections 280G(d)(3) and (4) of the Code.

17. Assignability. The Company may assign this Agreement and its rights and obligations hereunder in whole, but not in part, to any
entity to which the Company may transfer all or substantially all of its assets, if in any such case said entity shall expressly in writing assume
all obligations of the Company hereunder as fully as if it had been originally made a party hereto. The Company may not otherwise assign this
Agreement or its rights and obligations hereunder. This Agreement is personal to Executive and his rights and duties hereunder shall not be

assigned except as expressly agreed to in writing by the Company.

18. Death of Executive. If Executive dies during the term of this Agreement, the Company shall pay Executive’s spouse a death benefit
equal to one (1) times Executive’s Base Salary at the time of his death, which shall be paid to Executive’s spouse in a lump sum cash payment
within thirty (30) days following the date of Executive’s death. In addition, the Company shall pay to Executive’s spouse and eligible
dependents for the period ending on the earlier of (i) the first anniversary of Executive’s death, or (ii) the first month in which Executive’s
spouse and/or eligible dependents do not pay to the Company the applicable monthly premium for COBRA insurance coverage under the
Company’s group health plan, a monthly cash payment that is equal to Executive’s monthly premium cost for “COBRA” family health
coverage under the Company’s group health plan. The first monthly cash payment provided for in the immediately preceding sentence shall be
paid within thirty (30) days following the date of Executive’s death and each monthly payment thereafter shall be paid on the first business day
of each month, commencing with the second month that follows the date of Executive’s death. Any amounts due Executive under this
Agreement (not including any Base Salary not yet earned by Executive) unpaid as of the date of Executive’s death shall be paid in a single sum
on the first business day of the second month following Executive’s death to Executive’s surviving spouse, or if none, to the duly appointed

personal representative of his estate.

19. Restrictive Covenants.
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(a) Confidentiality. Executive acknowledges a duty of confidentiality owed to the Company and shall not, at any time during or
after his employment by the Company, retain in writing, use, divulge, furnish, or make accessible to anyone, without the express
authorization of the Board, any trade secret, private or confidential information or knowledge of the Company obtained or acquired by
him while so employed, except as required by law. All computer software, business cards, telephone lists, customer lists, price lists,
contract forms, catalogs, Company books, records, files and know-how acquired while an employee of the Company are acknowledged
to be the property of the Company and shall not be duplicated, removed from the Company’s possession or premises or made use of
other than in pursuit of the Company’s business or as may otherwise be required by law or any legal process, or as is necessary in
connection with any adversarial proceeding against the Company and, upon termination of employment for any reason, Executive shall
deliver to the Company, without further demand, all copies thereof which are then in his possession or under his control. No
information shall be treated as “confidential information” if it is generally available public knowledge at the time of disclosure or use

by Executive.

(b) Inventions and Improvements. Executive shall promptly communicate to the Company all ideas, discoveries and
inventions which are or may be useful to the Company or its business. Executive acknowledges that all such ideas, discoveries,
inventions, and improvements which heretofore have been or are hereafter made, conceived, or reduced to practice by him at any time
during his employment with the Company heretofore or hereafter gained by him at any time during his employment with the Company
are the property of the Company, and Executive hereby irrevocably assigns all such ideas, discoveries, inventions, and improvements to
the Company for its sole use and benefit, without additional compensation. The provisions of this Section 19(b) shall apply whether
such ideas, discoveries, inventions, or improvements were or are conceived, made or gained by him alone or with others, whether
during or after usual working hours, whether on or off the job, whether applicable to matters directly or indirectly related to the
Company’s business interests (including potential business interests), and whether or not within the specific realm of his duties.
Executive shall, upon request of the Company, but at no expense to Executive, at any time during or after his employment with the
Company, sign all instruments and documents reasonably requested by the Company and otherwise cooperate with the Company to
protect its right to such ideas, discoveries, inventions, or improvements including applying for, obtaining, and enforcing patents and
copyrights thereon in such countries as Company shall determine.

(©) Noncompetition. During the Employment Period and during the Restricted Period following any Termination Date that
occurs during, or upon the expiration or termination of, the Employment Period, Executive shall not, without the express written
consent of the Company, directly or indirectly: (i) engage in any business or other activity conducted or operated in the United States,
Canada and internationally which is competitive with the Company in the products or services being published, manufactured,
marketed, distributed, or being actively developed by the Company as evidenced by the Company’s books and records as of the
Termination Date (the “Business”); (ii) be or become a stockholder, partner, owner, officer, director or employee or
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agent of, or a consultant to or give financial or other assistance to, any person or entity engaged in the Business; (iii) seek in
competition with the business of the Company to procure orders from or do business with any customer of the Company; (iv) solicit, or
contact with a view to the engagement or employment by any person or entity of, any person who is an employee of the Company; (v)
seek to contract with or engage (in such a way as to adversely affect or interfere with the business of the Company) any person or entity
who has been contracted with or engaged to manufacture, assemble, supply or deliver products, goods, materials or services to the
Company; or (vi) engage in or participate in any effort or act to induce any of the customers, associates, consultants, or employees of
the Company to take any action which might be disadvantageous to the Company; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prohibit
Executive and his affiliates from owning, as passive investors, in the aggregate not more than 5% of the outstanding publicly traded

stock of any corporation so engaged; and provided, further, following the Termination Date, that Executive shall not be prohibited from
(1) making any investment in, being or becoming a partner, owner, officer, director or employee or agent of, or consultant to, or give
financial or other assistance to, any business enterprise (including, without limitation, any investment or venture capital fund or
investment bank) that makes or has made any investment in or that provides advisory, financing or underwriting services to any Person
or entity engaged in the Business provided that Executive does not render services (whether as an employee, consultant, advisor or
otherwise) to the division or portion of such person or entity engaged in the Business or (2) rendering services (including under (1)
above) to an entity conducting its business operations or providing services in the Business, if such entity is diversified and Executive
does not render services, directly or indirectly, to the division or portion of the entity which is conducting its business operations or
providing services in the Business. In the event that this Agreement expires or is otherwise terminated and Executive’s employment
with the Company continues after the expiration or termination of this Agreement (such that this Agreement no longer governs the
terms of Executive’s employment with the Company), the restrictions set forth in this Section 19(c) shall cease to be of any force or

effect with respect to any action or activity by Executive following such expiration or termination of this Agreement.
(d) Injunctive and Other Relief.

6))] Executive acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained herein are fair and reasonable in light of the
consideration paid hereunder, and that damages alone shall not be an adequate remedy for any breach by Executive of his
covenants contained herein and accordingly expressly agrees that, in addition to any other remedies which Company may have,
Company shall be entitled to injunctive relief in any court of competent jurisdiction for any breach or threatened breach of any
such covenants by Executive. Nothing contained herein shall prevent or delay Company from seeking, in any court of
competent jurisdiction, specific performance or other equitable remedies in the event of any breach or intended breach by
Executive of any of its obligations hereunder.

(ii) Notwithstanding the equitable relief available to the Company, Executive, in the event of a breach of his covenants
contained in Section 19 hereof, understands and agrees
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20.

that the uncertainties and delay inherent in the legal process would result in a continuing breach for some period of time, and
therefore, continuing injury to the Company until and unless Company can obtain such equitable relief. Therefore, in addition
to such equitable relief, Company shall be entitled to monetary damages for any such period of breach until the termination of
such breach, in an amount up to the amount of all monies received by Executive as a result of said breach. If Executive should
use or reveal to any other person or entity any confidential information, such use or revelation would be considered a
continuing violation on a daily basis for as long as such confidential information is made use of by Executive.

(iii) If any provision of Section 19 is determined to be invalid or unenforceable by reason of its duration or scope, such
duration or scope, or both, shall be deemed to be reduced to a duration or scope to the extent necessary to render such provision
valid and enforceable. In such event, Executive shall negotiate in good faith to provide Company with lawful and enforceable

protection that is most nearly equivalent to that found to be invalid or unenforceable.

(e) Continuing Operation. Except as specifically provided in this Section 19, the termination of Executive’s employment or of
this Agreement shall have no effect on the continuing operation of this Section 19.

) Company. For purposes of this Section 19, the term “Company” shall mean Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation and
any corporation, partnership or other entity owned directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Integra LifeSciences Holdings
Corporation.

Miscellaneous.

(a) Amendment. No provision of this Agreement may be amended unless such amendment is signed by Executive and such
officer as may be specifically designated by the Board to sign on the Company’s behalf.

(b) Section 409A.

(6] This Agreement shall be interpreted to avoid any penalty taxes or interest under Section 409A of the Code. If any
payment or benefit cannot be provided or made at the time specified herein without incurring taxes or interest under Section
409A of the Code, then such benefit or payment shall be provided in full at the earliest time thereafter when such taxes or
interest will not be imposed. All payments of nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code to be
made upon a termination of employment under this Agreement may only be made upon a “separation from service” as defined
under Section 409A of the Code. For purposes of Section 409A of the Code, each payment made under this Agreement shall be
treated as a separate payment. In no event may Executive, directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of payment.
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(ii) To the extent that any payments or reimbursements provided to Executive under this Agreement are deemed to
constitute compensation to which Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(i)(1)(iv) would apply, such payments or
reimbursements shall be made or provided in accordance with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code, including, where
applicable, the requirement that (A) any reimbursement is for expenses incurred during Executive’s lifetime (or during a
shorter period of time specified in this Agreement), (B) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement during a calendar
year may not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement in any other calendar year, (C) the reimbursement of an eligible
expense will be made on or before the last day of the calendar year following the year in which the expense is incurred, and (D)
the right to reimbursement is not subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. If expenses are incurred in connection
with litigation, any reimbursements under this Agreement shall be paid not later than the end of the calendar year following the

year in which the litigation is resolved.

(0 Nature of Obligations. Nothing contained herein shall create or require the Company to create a trust of any kind to fund
any benefits which may be payable hereunder, and to the extent that Executive acquires a right to receive benefits from the Company
hereunder, such right shall be no greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company.

(d) Withholding. The Company shall have the right to withhold from all payments made pursuant to this Agreement any
federal, state, or local taxes and such other amounts as may be required by law to be withheld from such payments.

(e) Prior Employment. Executive represents and warrants that his acceptance of employment with the Company has not
breached, and the performance of his duties hereunder will not breach, any duty owed by him to any prior employer or other person.
Executive further represents and warrants to the Company that (i) the performance of his obligations hereunder will not violate any
agreement between him and any other person, firm, organization or other entity, (ii) he is not bound by the terms of any agreement with
any previous employer or other party to refrain from competing, directly or indirectly, with the business of such previous employer or
other party that would be violated by him entering into this Agreement and/or providing services to the Company pursuant to the terms
of this Agreement, and (iii) Executive’s performance of his duties under this Agreement will not require him to, and he shall not, rely
on in the performance of his duties or disclose to the Company or any other person or entity or induce the Company in any way to use
or rely on any trade secret or other confidential or proprietary information or material belonging to any previous employer of

Executive.

) Headings. The Section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way
the meaning or interpretation or this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between a heading and the content of a Section, the content

of the Section shall control.
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() Recoupment. To the extent required by applicable law or any applicable securities exchange listing standards, any amounts
paid or payable under this Agreement (including, without limitation, amounts paid prior to the effectiveness of such law or listing
standards) shall be subject to forfeiture, repayment or recapture to the extent required by such applicable law or listing standard.

(h) Gender and Number. Whenever used in this Agreement, a masculine pronoun is deemed to include the feminine and a
neuter pronoun is deemed to include both the masculine and the feminine, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. The singular
form, whenever used herein, shall mean or include the plural form where applicable.

@) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable law, such event shall not affect or render invalid or unenforceable any other provision of this

Agreement and shall not affect the application of any provision to other persons or circumstances.

G) Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective
successors, permitted assigns, heirs, executors and administrators.

k) Notice. For purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if hand-delivered, sent by documented overnight delivery service or by certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the respective addresses set forth below:

To the Company:

Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation
311 Enterprise Drive

Plainsboro, New Jersey 08536

Attn: General Counsel

To Executive: at Executive’s most recent address on the records of the Company

()] Effectiveness; Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective as of the Effective Date. As of the Effective Date,
this Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements, arrangements and
communications, whether oral or written, pertaining to the subject matter hereof, including the Prior Agreement. Prior to the Effective

Date, the Prior Agreement shall remain in effect in accordance with its terms.

(m) Governing Law. The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the
laws of the United States where applicable and otherwise by the laws of the State of New Jersey.

[Signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date first above written.

INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION EXECUTIVE
/s/ Stuart Essig /s/ Peter J. Arduini
Stuart Essig, Peter J. Arduini

Chairman of the Board of Directors



Exhibit A
GENERAL RELEASE

In exchange for the consideration set forth in that certain Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Employment
Agreement”), dated as of , 2014 between Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and Peter J. Arduini
(“Executive”), the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Company does hereby release and forever discharge the
“Releasees” hereunder, consisting of Executive and his heirs and assigns, of and from any and all manner of action or actions, cause or causes
of action, in law or in equity, suits, debts, liens, contracts, agreements, promises, liability, claims, demands, damages, losses, costs, attorneys’
fees or expenses, of any nature whatsoever, known or unknown, fixed or contingent (hereinafter called “Claims”), which the Company or any it
subsidiaries now has or may hereafter have against the Releasees, or any of them, by reason of any matter, cause, or thing whatsoever from the
beginning of time to the date hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this General Release shall not operate to release any Claims which the
undersigned may have relating to or arising out of (i) Executive’s intentional, willful or reckless misconduct, (ii) Executive’s fraud or breach of
fiduciary duty, or (iii) any acts or omissions by Executive that are not covered by the Company’s director and officer insurance coverage or not
properly the subject of defense or indemnity by the Company (the “Unreleased Claims”).

The Company represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim (other than
Unreleased Claims) which it may have against Releasees, or any of them, and the Company agrees to indemnify and hold Releasees, and each
of them, harmless from any liability, Claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by Releasees, or any of them, as
the result of any such assignment or transfer or any rights or Claims under any such assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the parties that
this indemnity does not require payment as a condition precedent to recovery by the Releasees against the Company under this indemnity.

The Company agrees that if it hereafter commences any suit arising out of, based upon, or relating to any of the Claims released
hereunder or in any manner asserts against Releasees, or any of them, any of the Claims released hereunder, then the Company agrees to pay to
Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to Releasees thereby, all reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by Releasees
in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim.

The Company further understands and agrees that neither the payment of any sum of money nor the execution of this Release shall
constitute or be construed as an admission of any liability whatsoever by the Releasees, or any of them, who have consistently taken the
position that they have no liability whatsoever to the Company.

[Signature page follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this Release as of this ___ day of ,20

INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By:
Its: Chairman of the Board of Directors




Exhibit B

GENERAL RELEASE

In exchange for the consideration set forth in that certain Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (the “Employment
Agreement”), dated as of , 2014 between Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and Peter J. Arduini
(“Executive”), the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned does hereby release and forever discharge the
“Releasees” hereunder, consisting of the Company and each of its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, partners, associates, heirs,
assigns, agents, directors, officers, employees, representatives, lawyers, insurers, and all persons acting by, through, under or in concert with
them, or any of them, of and from any and all manner of action or actions, cause or causes of action, in law or in equity, suits, debts, liens,
contracts, agreements, promises, liability, claims, demands, damages, losses, costs, attorneys’ fees or expenses, of any nature whatsoever,
known or unknown, fixed or contingent (hereinafter called “Claims”), which the undersigned now has or may hereafter have against the
Releasees, or any of them, by reasons of any matter, cause, or thing whatsoever from the beginning of time to the date hereof. The Claims
released herein include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any Claims in any way arising out of, based upon, or related to the
employment or termination of employment of the undersigned by the Releasees, or any of them; any alleged breach of any express or implied
contract of employment; any alleged torts or other alleged legal restrictions on Releasee’s right to terminate the employment of the
undersigned; and any alleged violation of any federal, state or local statute or ordinance including, without limitation, Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the New Jersey Law Against
Discrimination, the New Jersey Equal Pay Act and the New Jersey Conscientious Employee Protection Act. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
this Release shall not operate to release any Claims which the undersigned may have (i) to payments or benefits under the Employment
Agreement, (ii) to any vested and unpaid benefits under any employee benefit plan, including but not limited to any vested and undistributed
deferred compensation, (iii) to vested equity compensation awards that remain unpaid or unsettled, (iv) under the Company’s Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, (v) under the Company’s Amended and Restated By-Laws, (vi) under any director and officer insurance
policy maintained by the Company and (vii) under that certain Indemnification Agreement dated as of between the Company and
Executive (the “Unreleased Claims™).

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE OLDER WORKERS BENEFIT PROTECTION ACT OF 1990, THE UNDERSIGNED IS HEREBY
ADVISED AS FOLLOWS:

(A) TO CONSULT WITH AN ATTORNEY BEFORE SIGNING THIS RELEASE;

(B) HE HAS TWENTY-ONE (21) DAYS TO CONSIDER THIS RELEASE BEFORE SIGNING IT, AND IF HE SIGNS
THIS RELEASE BEFORE THE EXPIRATION OF THE TWENTY-ONE (21) DAY PERIOD, HE KNOWINGLY AND
VOLUNTARILY WAIVES THE BALANCE OF THAT PERIOD; AND

©) HE HAS SEVEN (7) DAYS AFTER SIGNING THIS RELEASE TO REVOKE THIS RELEASE, AND THIS
RELEASE WILL BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON THE EXPIRATION OF THAT REVOCATION PERIOD.



The undersigned represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any Claim (other than
Unreleased Claims) which he may have against Releasees, or any of them, and the undersigned agrees to indemnify and hold Releasees, and
each of them, harmless from any liability, Claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by Releasees, or any of
them, as the result of any such assignment or transfer or any rights or Claims under any such assignment or transfer. It is the intention of the
parties that this indemnity does not require payment as a condition precedent to recovery by the Releasees against the undersigned under this
indemnity.

The undersigned agrees that if he hereafter commences any suit arising out of, based upon, or relating to any of the Claims released
hereunder or in any manner asserts against Releasees, or any of them, any of the Claims released hereunder, then the undersigned agrees to pay
to Releasees, and each of them, in addition to any other damages caused to Releasees thereby, all reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by
Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the undersigned shall not be obligated to
pay to Releasees any attorneys’ fees incurred by Releasees in defending or otherwise responding to said suit or Claim to the extent such claim
challenges the release of claims under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act.

The undersigned further understands and agrees that neither the payment of any sum of money nor the execution of this Release shall
constitute or be construed as an admission of any liability whatsoever by the Releasees, or any of them.

The provisions of this Release are severable, and if any part of this Release is found to be unenforceable, the other paragraphs (or
portions thereof) shall remain fully valid and enforceable.

[Signature page follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Release as of this ____ day of

Peter J. Arduini

,20__



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File Nos. 333-46024, 333-82233, 333-58235, 333-06577,
333-73512, 333-109042, 333-127488, 333-155263 and 333-170210) and Form S-3 (File No. 333-192079) of Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation and
its Subsidiaries of our report dated February 26, 2014, except with respect to our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the
effects of the change in accounting for the medical devise excise tax and the realignment of segment revenues discussed in Note 2A, as to which the date is
June 19, 2014, relating to the consolidated financial statements, financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Florham Park, New Jersey

June 19, 2014



Exhibit 99.1

PART II

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report. We have acquired numerous businesses and product
lines during the previous five years. As a result of these acquisitions, the consolidated financial results and balance sheet data for certain of the periods
presented below may not be directly comparable.

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands, except per share data)
Operating Results:
Total revenues, net $ 836,214  $ 830,871 $ 780,078 $ 732,068 $ 682,487
Costs and expenses (1) 846,370 757,089 725,166 633,374 584,663
Operating income (loss) (10,156) 73,782 54,912 98,694 97,824
Interest income (expense), net (2) (3) (19,345) (21,032) (27,175) (18,131) (22,596)
Other income (expense), net (1,801) (721) 757 1,551 (2,076)
Income (loss) before income taxes (31,302) 52,029 28,494 82,114 73,152
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes (10,235) 10,825 505 16,445 22,197
Net income (loss) $ (21,067) $ 41,204 $ 27,989 $ 65,669 $ 50,955
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.74) $ 1.44 3 095 $ 217  $ 1.74
Weighted average common shares outstanding for diluted net
income (loss) per share 28,416 28,516 29,495 30,149 29,292
As of December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(As adjusted)*

(In thousands)
Financial Position:

Cash, cash equivalents $ 120,614 $ 96,938 $ 100,808 $ 128,763 $ 71,891
Total assets 1,192,139 1,163,599 1,144,109 1,017,308 940,102
Long-term borrowings under the revolving portion of the senior

credit facility(2) 186,875 321,875 179,688 — 160,000
Long-term debt(3) 205,182 197,672 352,576 294,842 148,754
Retained earnings 280,956 302,023 260,819 232,830 167,161
Stockholders’ equity(4) 666,090 517,775 492,638 499,963 444,885

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.
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(1) In 2013, we recorded a $46.7 million goodwill impairment charge related to our Spine reporting unit. See Note 2 "Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

In 2011, we recorded a total of $13.3 million in stock-based compensation charges related to our former chief executive officer employment
agreement extension, accelerated vesting of his outstanding shares upon the appointment of the new chief executive officer, and his minimum
annual stock-based compensation award which was fully vested on the date of grant.

(2) For each of the periods presented we report the borrowings outstanding under the revolving portion of our Senior Credit Facility as long-term debt
based on our current intent and ability to repay the borrowings outside of the following twelve-month periods. At December 31, 2013, we have a total
of $186.9 million outstanding under our Senior Credit Facility and $413.1 million available for future borrowings.

Subsequent to year-end, in January 2014, we borrowed an additional $235.0 million from the Senior Credit Facility in connection with our acquisition
of Confluent Surgical, Inc.; these additional borrowings are not reflected in the amounts above.

(3) In 2007, we issued $165.0 million of 2.75% senior convertible notes due 2010 (the “2010 Notes”) and $165.0 million of 2.375% senior convertible
notes due 2012 (the “2012 Notes”). The 2010 Notes were paid off in June 2010 in accordance with their terms. The 2012 Notes were repaid in June
2012 in accordance with their terms.

In 2011, we issued $230.0 million of 1.625% convertible senior notes due in 2016 (the “2016 Notes”). We expect to satisfy any conversion of the 2016
Notes with cash up to their principal amount pursuant to the net share settlement mechanism set forth in the indenture and, with respect to any excess
conversion value, with shares of common stock.

(4) In 2013, we sold 4.025 million shares of our common stock at a price of $40.00 per share. The aggregate offering proceeds were $161.0 million. The
net proceeds of the offering were $152.5 million after deducting the underwriters' discounts and commissions and all other estimated offering
expenses.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with the selected consolidated financial
data and our financial statements and the related notes appearing elsewhere in this report. In the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed its method of
accounting for the medical device excise tax (“MDET?”). Prior to the change the Company recorded the MDET in inventory at the time of the first sale and
then recognized the tax in cost of goods sold when the medical device was sold to the ultimate customer. Under the new method, the MDET will be recorded in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the period the first sale occurs, which could be an intercompany sale.

The Company believes that this change in accounting principle is preferable as the new method provides a better comparison with the Company's industry
peers, the majority of which expense the MDET at the time of the first sale.

The medical device excise tax applies to sales beginning January 1, 2013; therefore, only 2013 financial results were affected by this change. Accordingly, the
2013 results have been adjusted to reflect the retrospective application of the change in accounting principle had the new method been in effect that year. The
financial impact of this change on 2013 has been incorporated into the amounts presented throughout this Form 8-K and the impact on the 2013 results is
discussed in detail in Note 2A to the consolidated financial statements. For a full reconciliation of the impact on the 2013 historical quarterly financial
results, see the investor presentations on the Investor Relations homepage of Integra's website at investor.integralife.com.

Additionally, in the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed the segments in which it recognizes certain product revenues. The result of this change was a
decrease in revenues for the U.S. Extremities segment, and an increase in revenues for the U.S. Instruments and U.S. Spine and Other segments. Finally, the
December 31, 2013 disclosure of inventory by category has been revised to correct an immaterial misclassification of certain items between work in process
and raw materials. The financial information presented herein has been adjusted to reflect those changes on all affected periods.

This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially
from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including but not limited to those under the heading “Risk Factors.”



GENERAL

Integra is a world leader in medical technology focused on limiting uncertainty for surgeons so they can concentrate on providing the best patient care. Integra
provides customers with clinically relevant, innovative and cost-effective products that improve the quality of life for patients. We focus on cranial and spinal
procedures, small bone and joint injuries, the repair and reconstruction of soft tissue, and instruments for surgery.

We manage our business through a combination of product groups and geography, and accordingly, we report our financial results under five reportable
segments - U.S. Instruments, U.S. Neurosurgery, U.S. Extremities, U.S. Spine and Other (which consists of our U.S. Spine and Private Label businesses) and
International.

We present revenues in the following three product categories: Orthopedics, Neurosurgery and Instruments. Our orthopedics products group includes
specialty metal implants for surgery of the extremities, shoulder and spine, orthobiologics products for repair and grafting of bone, dermal regeneration
products and tissue-engineered wound dressings and nerve and tendon repair products. Our neurosurgery products group includes, among other things, dural
grafts that are indicated for the repair of the dura mater, ultrasonic surgery systems for tissue ablation, cranial stabilization and brain retraction systems,
systems for measurement of various brain parameters and devices used to gain access to the cranial cavity and to drain excess cerebrospinal fluid from the
ventricles of the brain. Our instruments products group includes a wide range of specialty and general surgical and dental instruments and surgical lighting for
sale to hospitals, outpatient surgery centers, and physician, veterinarian and dental practices.

We manufacture many of our products in plants located in the United States, Puerto Rico, France, Germany, Ireland, the United Kingdom and Mexico. We
also source most of our handheld surgical instruments, specialty metal and pyrocarbon implants, and dural sealant products through specialized third-party
vendors.

In the United States, we have several sales channels. We sell orthopedics products through a large direct sales organization and through specialty distributors
focused on their respective surgical specialties. Neurosurgery products are sold through directly employed sales representatives. Instruments products are sold
through two sales channels, both directly and through distributors and wholesalers, depending on the customer call point. We sell in the international markets
through a combination of a direct sales organization and distributors.

We also market certain products through strategic partners in the United States.

Our objective is to become a multi-billion dollar diversified global medical technology company that helps patients by limiting uncertainty for medical
professionals, and is a high-quality investment for shareholders. We will achieve these goals by delivering on our Brand Promises to our customers worldwide
and by becoming a top player in all markets in which we compete. Our strategy includes the following key elements: geographic expansion, disciplined focus
and execution, global quality assurance and acquiring or in-licensing products that fit existing sales channels, margin expansion and leveraging platform
synergies.

We aim to achieve growth in our revenues while maintaining strong financial results. While we pay attention to any meaningful trend in our financial results,
we pay particular attention to measurements that are indicative of long-term profitable growth. These measurements include (1) revenue growth (including
internal growth and by acquisitions), (2) gross margins on total revenues, (3) operating margins (which we aim to continually expand as we leverage our
existing infrastructure), (4) earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization, and (5) earnings per diluted share of common stock.

We believe that we are particularly effective in the following aspects of our business:

*  Regenerative Medicine Platform. We have developed numerous product lines through our proprietary collagen matrix and demineralized bone matrix
technologies that are sold through every one of our sales channels.

*  Diversification and Platform Synergies. Each of our three selling platforms contributes a different strength to our core business. Orthopedics enables
us to grow our top line and increase gross margins. Neurosurgery provides stable growth as a market with few elective procedures. The Instruments
business has a strong capacity to generate cash flows. We have unique synergies among these platforms, such as our regenerative medicine
technology, instrument sourcing capabilities, and Group Purchasing Organization (“GP0O”) contract management.

*  Unique Sales Footprint. Our medical technology investment and manufacturing strategy provides us with a unique set of customer call-points and
synergies. We have market-leading products across our portfolio providing both scale and depth in solutions for a broad set of clinical needs across
many departments in the healthcare system - for example, many neurosurgeons also perform spine surgeries, and our instruments division calls on
hospitals across the United States. We also have clinical expertise across all of our channels in the United States, and have an opportunity to expand
and leverage this expertise in markets worldwide. Many of our customers are facing pressure placed upon them by healthcare reform and the
affordable care act. In response to our customers’ needs for clinical and technical solutions across multiple



departments and clinical areas, we have developed and deployed our Enterprise Clients Group. The mission of the Enterprise Client Group’s efforts
is to bring unique clinical solutions to even the most difficult healthcare issues in our key accounts across multiple clinical sites and multi-hospital
integrated delivery networks.

»  Ability to Change and Adapt. Our corporate culture is truly what enables us to adapt and reinvent ourselves. We have demonstrated that we can
quickly and profitably integrate new products and businesses. This core strength has made it possible for us to grow over the years, and is key to our
ability to grow into a multi-billion dollar company.

ACQUISITIONS

Our strategy for growing our business includes the acquisition of complementary product lines and companies. Our recent acquisitions of businesses, assets
and product lines may make our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2013 not directly comparable to those of the corresponding prior-year
period. See Note 3, “Acquisitions and Pro Forma Results” to our consolidated financial statements for a further discussion.

From January 2011 through December 2013, we acquired the following businesses, assets and product lines:

In January 2013, we acquired all outstanding preferred and common stock of Tarsus Medical, Inc. ("Tarsus") for $4.7 million consisting of $3.1 million in
cash (including working capital adjustments of $0.2 million) and contingent consideration with an estimated acquisition date fair value of approximately $1.6
million. The potential maximum undiscounted contingent consideration consists of a first milestone payment of up to $1.5 million and a second payment of
up to $11.5 million. These payments are based on reaching certain sales of acquired products. Tarsus Medical, Inc. is a podiatry device company addressing
clinical needs associated with diseases and injuries of the foot and ankle.

In September 2011, we acquired Ascension Orthopedics, Inc. (“Ascension”) for $66.0 million, which includes amounts paid for working capital adjustments
of $0.2 million less amounts received from our escrow of $0.7 million. Ascension, based in Austin, Texas, develops and distributes a range of implants for the
shoulder, elbow, wrist, hand, foot and ankle. In particular, Ascension adds a significant number of new and differentiated products to our extremities portfolio
and access to the shoulder market.

In May 2011, we acquired SeaSpine, Inc. (“SeaSpine”) for approximately $88.7 million, which includes amounts paid for working capital adjustments of $0.3
million and indemnification holdbacks totaling $7.4 million, all of which was released to the seller prior to December 31, 2012. SeaSpine, based in Vista,
California, offers spinal fusion products to customers across the U.S. and in select markets in Europe. The addition of the SeaSpine business effectively
doubled our distribution footprint and customer base in the U.S. spine hardware market.

Subsequent to year-end, on January 15, 2014, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of Confluent Surgical, Inc., ("Confluent Surgical") - including
their surgical sealant and adhesion barrier product lines - from Covidien Group S.a.r.l, ("Covidien") for an aggregate purchase price of $231.0 million. The
Company paid Covidien an initial cash payment of $231.0 million upon the closing of the transaction and at that time made a separate prepayment of $4.0
million under a transitional supply agreement with an affiliate of Covidien. In addition, the Company may pay Covidien up to $30.0 million following the
closing, contingent upon obtaining certain U.S. and European governmental approvals related to the completion of the transition of the Confluent Surgical
business and the timely supply of products under the transitional supply agreement. The Company also entered into a transition services agreement with an
affiliate of Covidien at the closing. This acquisition complements Integra's global neurosurgery growth strategy aimed at providing a broader set of solutions
for surgical procedures in the head. Since the acquisition occurred subsequent to December 31, 2013, the acquisition is not included in the results of
operations for any of the periods presented.

FACILITY OPTIMIZATION ACTIVITIES

As a result of our ongoing acquisition strategy and significant growth in recent years, we have undertaken cost-saving initiatives to consolidate manufacturing
and distribution facilities and transfer activities, implement a global enterprise resource planning system, eliminate duplicative positions, realign various sales
and marketing activities, and to expand and upgrade production capacity for our regenerative medicine products. We expect that during 2014 we will continue
to build inventories and incur additional expenses related to the facilities consolidation and transfer activities; however, the benefits of these efforts and
expenditures will contribute to our financial results in 2015 and beyond.

While we expect a positive impact from ongoing restructuring, integration and manufacturing transfer and expansion activities, such results remain uncertain.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Executive Summary



Our net loss in 2013 was $21.1 million, or $0.74 per diluted share, as compared to net income of $41.2 million, or $1.44 per diluted share in 2012 and net
income of $28.0 million, or $0.95 per diluted share in 2011.

Our 2013 operating results were negatively impacted by the following events:

*  Our 2013 total revenues were negatively affected by our voluntary recall of certain products manufactured in our Afiasco, Puerto Rico facility,
including DuraGen® Dural Graft Matrix products. The recall caused significant supply disruptions resulting in a decrease in our worldwide revenue
and a larger than usual total backorder during the first half of the year. Increases in reserves related to inventory associated with the recall and
increased quality costs at our manufacturing facilities negatively impacted our gross margin.

* In January 2013, we began paying the manufacturer's excise tax imposed on the first sale of certain medical devices in the United States, and
expense such amounts to selling, general and administrative expenses.

*  Operating expenses increased due to higher headcount and increased expenses incurred in connection with the implementation of our global ERP
system, and consulting costs to support various strategic projects.

+  Operating expenses for the year include a goodwill impairment charge in our U.S. Spine reporting unit of $46.7 million. See Note 2 "Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Our 2012 revenues compared to 2011 increased $50.8 million, which generated approximately $35.0 million of additional gross margin. Costs and expenses
increased as new headcount, especially in selling, general and administrative, joined the Company either through acquisitions or new hires. Costs and
expenses in 2011 included an incremental stock-based compensation expense of $13.3 million related to our former CEQ's employment agreement and the
accelerated vesting of awards upon appointment of our new CEO. These items resulted in our operating income increasing from 2011 to 2012.

Changes in income before taxes result from the operating items described above and changes in interest expense, which decreased in 2013 and 2012 as our
2012 convertible notes matured and a portion of our interest cost was capitalized in our construction in progress balance.

Income tax expense increased in 2012 and decreased sharply in 2013 as a result of significant changes in U.S. income.

Special Charges

Income (loss) before taxes includes the following special charges:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Manufacturing facility remediation costs $ 8,230 $ 7939 $ 5,830
Global ERP implementation charges 24,264 16,384 17,068
Structural optimization charges 8,793 10,098 2,956
Certain expenses associated with product recalls 3,431 — —
Certain employee termination charges 1,205 1,356 2,705
Discontinued product lines charges — 1,368 3,926
Acquisition-related charges 3,113 2,808 5,253
Impairment charges 47,078 141 2,648
European entity restructuring charges — — 378
Convertible debt non-cash interest (1) 6,463 8,520 10,521
Certain executive compensation charges — — 13,391
Financing charges — — 790

Total $ 102,577 $ 48,614 $ 65,466

(1) The 2013 and 2012 amounts have been reduced by $1.0 million and $1.6 million, respectively, representing the non-cash interest that was capitalized
as a component of the historical cost of assets constructed for the Company's own use. See Note 2 "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" of
our consolidated financial statements for more information.

The items reported above are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as follows:



Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Cost of goods sold $ 18,153 $ 16,425 $ 13,418
Research and development 968 — 669
Selling, general and administrative 30,255 23,669 37,420
Intangible asset amortization — — 2,648
Goodwill impairment charge 46,738 — —
Interest expense 6,463 8,520 11,311
Total $ 102,577 $ 48,614 $ 65,466

We typically define special charges as items for which the amounts and/or timing of such expenses may vary significantly from period to period, depending
upon our acquisition, integration and restructuring activities, and for which the amounts are non-cash in nature, or for which the amounts are not expected to
recur at the same magnitude as we implement certain tax planning strategies. We believe that given our ongoing strategy of seeking acquisitions, our
continuing focus on rationalizing our existing manufacturing and distribution infrastructure and our continuing review of various product lines in relation to
our current business strategy, some of the special charges discussed above could recur with similar materiality in the future. In 2010 we began investing
significant resources in the global implementation of a single enterprise resource planning system. We began capitalizing certain costs for the project starting
in 2011 and will continue to do so during 2014.

We believe that the separate identification of these special charges provides important supplemental information to investors regarding financial and business
trends relating to our financial condition and results of operations. Investors may find this information useful in assessing comparability of our operating
performance from period to period, against the business model objectives that management has established, and against other companies in our industry. We
provide this information to investors so that they can analyze our operating results in the same way that management does and to use this information in their
assessment of our core business and valuation of Integra.

Update on Remediation Activities

Remediation activities in our regenerative medicine facility in Plainsboro, New Jersey affected revenues and gross margin in the year 2013 and 2012. We
received a warning letter from the FDA in December 2011, related to quality systems and compliance issues at that plant. The letter resulted from an
inspection held at that facility in August 2011, and did not identify any new observations that were not provided in the Form 483 that followed the inspection.
The warning letter did not restrict our ability to manufacture or ship products, nor did it require the recall of any product. In June and July 2012, the FDA
again inspected the regenerative medicine facility. The second inspection closed out on July 30, 2012 and a FDA Form 483 Inspectional Observations was
issued. On July 16, 2013, the FDA began its third inspection of the Plainsboro facility and focused primarily on the issues raised in the warning letter and in
previous inspections of the Plainsboro facility. At the conclusion of the inspection, the FDA found that the Company had addressed the issues raised in the
warning letter and previous inspectional observations, and it issued no other inspectional observations. In reaching this conclusion, the FDA determined that
the Company’s remediation activities were effective and its quality management system was adequate and the warning letter was closed out effective
September 24, 2013.

The FDA inspected our neurosurgery manufacturing facility in Andover, England in June 2012. On November 5, 2012, we received a warning letter dated
November 1, 2012 related to quality systems issues at that facility. The warning letter identified violations related to corrective and preventative actions,
process validations, internal quality audits, and internal review of the suitability and effectiveness of the quality system at defined intervals. Since the
conclusion of the FDA inspection in June 2012, we have undertaken significant efforts to remediate the observations that the FDA has made and continue to
do so. We have provided the FDA with monthly status reports and are working cooperatively with the FDA to resolve any outstanding issues.

On February 14, 2013, we received a warning letter from the FDA relating to quality systems issues at our manufacturing facility located in Afiasco, Puerto
Rico. We filed the FDA warning letter as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K on February 19, 2013. The letter resulted from an inspection conducted
at that facility during October and November 2012. On February 15, 2013 we stopped distribution of our collagen products manufactured in the Afiasco
facility in order to confirm that we had successfully validated all such products and engaged a third-party consultant having appropriate quality system
regulations expertise to confirm such validations. On February 22, 2013 the third-party consultant certified the completeness of such validations and we
resumed distribution of collagen products from the Afiasco, Puerto Rico facility.

On April 10, 2013, we initiated a voluntary recall of certain products manufactured in our Afiasco facility between December 2010 and May 2011 and
between November 2012 and March 2013. Specific lots of these products, as described below, were recalled



because we identified that there may have been deviations from required processes in their production. We identified through an internal quality assurance
review that we may have deviated from a production process during the manufacturing of specific lots of collagen products during the periods described. The
product lots in question passed all product finished goods testing including endotoxin testing, are sterile, and were tested and accepted for release. However,
due to the process deviation, they may have been released with higher levels of endotoxins than permitted by the product specifications. Higher levels of
endotoxins may result in a fever in the immediate postoperative period. There have been no reports of patient injuries or other adverse events attributable to
the products subject to the recall. We continue to manufacture all such products in our Afiasco facility.

We believe that most of the recalled product lots manufactured between December 2010 and May 2011 have already been consumed, and that therefore, the
recall of those lots will not have a material financial impact. However, the return of products, manufactured between November 2012 and March 2013, which
were substantially sold in the first three months ended March 31, 2013, directly reduced revenues in the year ended December 31, 2013 by $3.4 million. As
we anticipated, we were not able to produce all the affected products quickly enough to meet the demand from customers throughout 2013. Such supply
shortages resulted in lower revenues in the year ended December 31, 2013. Also, as expected the recall and supply shortages had a significant impact on the
U.S. Neurosurgery, U.S. Spine and Other, and International segments in the year 2013. By the end of the fourth quarter, the Company had reduced its
backorders of products manufactured at the Afiasco facility to an insubstantial level from the level that prevailed at the beginning of 2013.

The recall applied to limited and specific lots of DuraGen® Dural Graft Matrix, DuraGen® Plus Dural Regeneration Matrix, DuraGen® Suturable Dural
Regeneration Matrix, DuraGen XS™ Dural Regeneration Matrix, Layershield® Adhesion Barrier Matrix, NeuraWrap™ Nerve Protector, NeuraGen® Nerve
Guide, BioMend® Absorbable Collagen Membrane, OraMem® Absorbable Collagen Membrane, BioMend® Extend Absorbable Collagen Membrane,
CollaCote® Absorbable Collagen Wound Dressing for Dental Surgery, CollaTape® Absorbable Collagen Wound Dressing for Dental Surgery, CollaPlug®
Absorbable Collagen Wound Dressing for Dental Surgery, HeliTape® Absorbable Collagen Wound Dressing for Dental Surgery, HeliPlug® Absorbable
Collagen Wound Dressing for Dental Surgery, OraTape® Absorbable Collagen Wound Dressing for Dental Surgery, OraPlug® Absorbable Collagen Wound
Dressing for Dental Surgery, Instat® Microfibrillar Collagen Hemostat, Helistat® Absorbable Collagen Hemostatic Sponge (ACS/Helistat), and Helitene®
Absorbable Collagen Hemostatic Agent. The Absorbable Collagen Sponge (ACS) is not a final product, but a component of a product assembled by another
company.

We met with the Office of Compliance at the Center for Devices and Radiological Health on March 26, 2013. We presented our plans for both immediate
remediation and our corporate plan for the development and implementation of a single Quality System for the entire Company. We have engaged former
FDA professionals as third party consultants to work with us on our remediation plans. We also met with the Office of Compliance at the FDA San Juan,
Puerto Rico office to discuss the remediation plans at the Afiasco, Puerto Rico facility. We have prioritized senior level quality and regulatory staff to address
the quality system improvement plans at all of our facilities. On July 16, 2013, FDA initiated an inspection of our Plainsboro, NJ facility. At the end of the
inspection no FDA Inspectional Observations were issued. FDA closed the Warning Letter at the Integra Plainsboro facility on September 24, 2013. On
October 24, 2013, the United States Food and Drug Administration began an inspection of the Afiasco facility. At the end of the inspection on November 26,
2013, the FDA issued a new Form 483 with six additional observations relating to Corrective and Preventative Action (“CAPA”), quality system procedures
and instructions, procedures pertaining to complaints, procedures pertaining to checking and maintaining equipment, procedures for finished device
acceptance and procedures to prevent contamination of equipment or products. These observations did not impact our ability to manufacture and sell product.
We had committed to several corporate-wide corrections and additional site corrections and will continue to complete these within the timeframes provided to
the FDA in order to remediate the observations that the FDA has made.

We have undertaken significant efforts to remediate the observations that the FDA has made and have been working on improving and revising our quality
systems. During the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, we incurred $8.2 million and $7.9 million in remediation activities expenses, respectively,
consisting of consulting expenses and other work activities required to complete our remediation activities, and we expect to incur similar types of expenses
during 2014, albeit at lower spending levels. We will provide periodic status reports to the FDA and work cooperatively with the agency to resolve any
outstanding issues.



Revenues and Gross Margin

Our revenues and gross margin on product revenues were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)
Orthopedics ** $ 370,359 $ 364,714 $ 324,535
Neurosurgery 278,672 277,527 272,538
Instruments ** 187,183 188,630 183,005
Total revenues 836,214 830,871 780,078
Cost of goods sold 327,045 314,427 299,150
Gross margin on total revenues $ 509,169 $ 516,444 $ 480,928
Gross margin as a percentage of total revenues 60.9% 62.2% 61.7%

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.
** Certain revenues have been reclassified from the Orthopedics category to the Instruments category in each of the periods presented.

Revenues by Reportable Segment

Net sales by reportable segment for the three years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
U.S. Neurosurgery $ 172,250 $ 171,278 $ 165,652
U.S. Instruments *** 163,908 166,921 160,777
U.S. Extremities *** 128,336 116,279 91,513
U.S. Spine and Other *** 182,006 192,516 176,131
International **** 189,714 183,877 186,005
Total revenues $ 836,214 $ 830,871 $ 780,078

*+#% Certain revenues have been reclassified from the U.S. Extremities segment, to the U.S. Instruments segment and the U.S. Spine and Other segment in
each of the periods presented.

*+*%*The Company attributes revenue to geographic areas based on the location of the customer. There are certain revenues managed by the various U.S.
segments above that are generated from non-U.S. customers and therefore included in Europe and the Rest of World revenues.

Revenues

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, total revenues increased by $5.3 million or 1%, to $836.2 million from $830.9 million during the prior year. Domestic
revenues were essentially flat at $642.7 million and were 77% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013. International revenues were up 3% at
$193.5 million as compared to 2012. Foreign exchange fluctuations had a negligible impact on revenues for the year.

Our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013, were negatively affected by our voluntary recall of certain products manufactured in our Afiasco,
Puerto Rico facility, including DuraGen® Dural Graft Matrix products.

U.S. Neurosurgery revenues were $172.3 million, an increase of 1% from the prior year. Capital sales were up as we saw growth in our critical care, cranial
stabilization, tissue ablation and stereotaxy lines. These increases were offset by decreases in sales of our collagen products and loss of market share resulting
from the recall related supply shortage, and decreases in shunts.



U.S. Instruments revenues were $163.9 million, a decrease of 2% from the prior year. We saw sustained growth in sales of our LED surgical headlamp, and
our retractor sales have increased. We experienced lower sales of our legacy lighting products due to some product discontinuation and conversion of the
legacy xenon lighting products to LED lighting. Alternate-site sales decreased due to product discontinuation of some of our lower margin products. Hospital
starts also decreased during the year resulting in fewer large orders in the second half of the year, driving a weaker revenue result in our acute-care franchise.

U.S. Extremities revenues were $128.3 million, an increase of 10% from the prior year. This growth resulted from double digit increases in both our upper
and lower extremities businesses driven in part by new product introductions, including shoulder implants. Sales of our dermal and wound care products were
up high-single digits.

U.S. Spine and Other revenues, which include our spine hardware, orthobiologics and private label products, were $182.0 million, a decrease of 5% from the
prior year. In addition to general market softness and pricing pressure in spine hardware, our product sales declined more than the market because of poor
execution in the business and some distributor turnover. That said, spine hardware began to improve toward the end of the year. Orthobiologics sales
increased mid-single digits and were affected by backorders in collagen ceramic bone void fillers in the first half of 2013. Our supplies returned to normal
levels by the end of the third quarter and we have seen a sequential increase in sales in the fourth quarter. The demand for the overall orthobiologics line
remains strong and partially offsets some of the softness in hardware. Sales of our private label products were down significantly from the prior-year period
resulting from the loss of some business to certain customers because of the recall-related supply shortages, and changes in the demand of components that
we manufacture for our strategic partners.

International segment revenues were $189.7 million, up 3% from the prior year. Our sales around the world were affected by the recall of our collagen
products and backorders on these recalled products; however, we cleared most of our backorders in the third quarter of 2013. We saw growth in our spine
implants across all geographies, increases in our dermal and wound businesses with several new product introductions, and increasing product coverage in
direct and indirect channels. We experienced some growth in Asia-Pacific and Latin America markets for our duraplasty products.

With our global reach, we generate revenues in multiple foreign currencies, including euros, British pounds, Swiss francs, Canadian dollars, Japanese yen,
and Australian dollars. Accordingly, we will experience currency exchange risk with respect to those foreign currency denominated revenues.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, total revenues increased by $50.8 million or 7% to $830.9 million from $780.1 million during 2011. Domestic
revenues increased by 9% to $642.8 million and were 77% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011. International revenues were essentially
flat at $188.1 million. Foreign exchange fluctuations, arising primarily from a weaker euro throughout the year compared to the U.S. dollar, accounted for a
$6.8 million decrease in revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012. On a constant currency basis, our overall revenues increased 7% compared to 2011.

U.S. Neurosurgery revenues were $171.3 million, an increase of 3% from 2011. The increase resulted from stronger sales of our market-leading duraplasty
products and cranial stabilization products and strength in our critical care.

U.S. Instruments revenues were $166.9 million, an increase of 4% from 2011. We continued to experience strong sales within instruments, largely driven by
strength in our acute care sales channel, and continued growth of our LED surgical headlamp product, which was launched in late 2011, and sales to our
alternate site customers.

U.S. Extremities revenues were $116.3 million, an increase of 27% from 2011. This growth resulted primarily from significant increases in sales of our
dermal and wound care products. Sales of our metal implants also increased more than 30%, especially products for the foot and ankle and hand and wrist, in
part because of the acquisition of Ascension Orthopedics in September 2011.

U.S. Spine and Other revenues, which include our Spine hardware, orthobiologics and private label products, were $192.5 million, an increase of 9% from
2011. We continued double digit growth in our orthobiologics business, led by a strong demand for our EVO3 and Integra Mozaik products. Our sales team
was focused on signing up new distributors, essential to our incremental growth, and as a result we saw some increases in sales. Our Spine hardware products
also experienced double-digit growth over 2011 despite continuing price erosion because of increasing competition, in part because of the acquisition of
SeaSpine in May 2011.

International segment revenues were $183.9 million, down 1% from 2011. Foreign currency fluctuations, arising primarily from a weaker euro throughout the
year, compared to the U.S. dollar in 2011, accounted for a $6.8 million decrease in the revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012. Our sales in Europe
declined 6%, but on a constant currency basis sales would have been in line with prior year. We saw decreases in capital spending as European hospitals
continued to control costs and manage their budgets. Our Rest of World markets posted a 5% increase. The Neurosurgery and Extremities product categories
posted the



strongest performances from a product standpoint. We continued to expand our growth in China as we transitioned to a new distribution network.

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of revenues was 60.9% in 2013, 62.2% in 2012, and 61.7% in 2011. Cost of product revenues in 2013, 2012, and 2011 included
$2.2 million, $2.8 million, and $3.3 million, respectively, in fair value inventory purchase accounting adjustments recorded in connection with acquisitions,
and $6.7 million, $6.6 million, and $8.2 million, respectively, of amortization for technology-based intangible assets inclusive of impairments.

The decrease in gross margin percentage from 2012 to 2013 resulted primarily from increases in reserves related to inventory associated with the recall, and
increased quality costs at our manufacturing facilities.

The increase in gross margin percentage from 2011 to 2012 resulted primarily from favorable product mix and lower amortization expense offset by increased

spending on quality processes and remediation costs.

We expect our consolidated gross margin percentage for the full year 2014 to be between 61% and 62%, subject to the finalization of the purchase price
accounting for our Confluent Surgical acquisition. We expect our gross margin will see increases from improved product mix - with more sales in the
orthopedics and DuraSeal® lines - and improvements in yield as we resolve FDA inspection issues.

Other Operating Expenses

The following is a summary of other operating expenses as a percent of total revenues:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*
Research and development 6.2% 6.1% 6.6%
Selling, general and administrative 48.8% 44.9% 45.9%
Intangible asset amortization 1.5% 2.2% 2.1%
Goodwill impairment charge 5.6% —% —%

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

Total operating expenses, which consist of research and development expenses, selling, general and administrative expenses, intangible asset amortization
expense, and goodwill impairment charge, increased $76.7 million or 17% to $519.3 million in 2013, compared to $442.7 million in the same period last year.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT. Research and development expenses increased slightly to $52.1 million in 2013, compared to $51.0 million in 2012 and
$51.5 million in 2011. The increase in research and development cost from 2012 to 2013 was primarily due to higher spending on a clinical trial for a wound
care product, further development of our shoulder lines, and the impairment of an in-process research and development intangible asset, offset in part by
lower costs from site closures that occurred in 2012. The slight decrease in research and development from 2011 to 2012 was mostly driven by a reduction in
headcount.

We target full-year 2014 spending on research and development to be approximately 6% of total revenues.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE. Selling, general and administrative expenses in the year ended December 31, 2013 increased by $34.7
million or 9.3% to $407.8 million compared to $373.1 million in the same period last year. Selling and marketing expenses increased by $13.4 million
primarily resulting from higher headcount compared to last year, and the U.S. Extremities' commission costs were higher as a result of increases in revenue.
General and administrative costs were up $21.3 million primarily because of $13.6 million in medical device excise tax in the U.S. which became effective
January 1, 2013, and also because of higher headcount, increased expenses incurred in connection with the implementation of our global ERP system, and
increased consulting costs to support various strategic projects.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased by $15.0 million or 4.2% to $373.1 million compared to $358.1
million in 2011. Selling and marketing expenses increased by $24.3 million, primarily resulting from a higher proportion of sales through distributors, which
generally have a higher cost than the direct selling model. Additionally, bonuses and commission costs were higher as a result of increases in revenue and
headcount. We also added significantly to our

10



planning and customer services departments. Furthermore, we incurred $1.1 million of expenses in the second quarter to terminate an exclusive product
distribution agreement with a former distributor in China, which included the transfer of certain product registration rights back to us. General and
administrative costs were down $9.3 million, primarily because of prior year incremental charges of $13.3 million of stock based-compensation related to
executive changes and $1.7 million of acquisition related costs that did not repeat in the current period. These decreases were offset by increases in our
spending on the global enterprise resource planning system, accrued non-selling bonuses, consulting and other costs related to various strategic projects and
the addition of our SeaSpine and Ascension operations.

For 2014, we expect general and administrative expenses to be down slightly compared to 2013 as a percentage of revenue as we will have fewer special
charges once we launch our ERP system in the U.S., and experience less remediation costs in the quality area. We also expect selling expenses to decrease as
a percentage of revenue as we reach scale in our orthopedic lines. We expect our reported selling, general, and administrative expenses to be between 47%
and 48% of revenue in 2014.

INTANGIBLE ASSET AMORTIZATION. Amortization expense (excluding amounts reported in cost of product revenues for technology-based intangible
assets) in the year ended December 31, 2013 was $12.7 million compared to $18.5 million last year. The decrease is primarily due to certain intangible assets
becoming fully amortized in the first half of 2013.

In 2012, amortization expense (excluding amounts reported in cost of product revenues for technology-based intangible assets) increased by $2.1 million to
$18.5 million compared to $16.4 million in 2011. The increase primarily resulted from amortization of the significant intangible assets added as part of our
Ascension acquisition that occurred during the third quarter of 2011.

We may discontinue certain products in the future as we continue to assess the profitability of our product lines. As our profitability assessment evolves, we
may make further decisions about our trade names and incur additional impairment charges or accelerated amortization. We expect total annual amortization
expense (including amounts reported in cost of product revenues, but excluding any possible future amortization associated with 1) acquired IPR&D, and 2)
intangible assets that may be capitalized as a result of our Confluent Surgical acquisition in January 2014) to be approximately $18.4 million in 2014, $16.5
million in 2015, $14.3 million in 2016, $12.5 million in 2017 and $12.1 million in 2018.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 also included a goodwill impairment charge of $46.7 million. The goodwill impairment charge is
related to our U.S. Spine reporting unit. See Note 2 "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" to our
consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Non-Operating Income and Expenses

The following is a summary of non-operating income and expenses:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Interest income $ 443 $ 1,205 $ 465
Interest expense (19,788) (22,237) (27,640)
Other income (expense) (1,801) (721) 757
Total non-operating income and expense $ (21,146) $ (21,753) $ (26,418)

Interest Income and Interest Expense

Interest income decreased for the year ended December 31, 2013 because the investment yields of accounts held outside of the United States have declined as
compared to the prior-year. Interest income on our invested cash in 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $0.4 million, $1.2 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Interest expense was $19.8 million, $22.2 million and $27.6 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Interest expense in 2013 decreased by $2.4 million
primarily as a result of the June 2012 repayment of our 2012 Senior Convertible Notes, which decreased our interest expense by $4.9 million. In addition, we
capitalized $3.2 million of interest expense on our qualified construction in progress balances in 2013, which is $0.7 million less than we capitalized in 2012.
These decreases were partially offset by an additional $1.1 million of higher interest expense because of increased borrowing on our revolving line of credit
and $0.2 million of additional amortization of financing costs relating to our Senior Credit Facility amendment in 2013. Furthermore, the amount of our 2016
Notes discount amortization increased by $0.4 million as expected when using the effective interest method for its amortization in 2013.

Our reported interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 includes non-cash interest related to the accounting for convertible
securities of $6.5 million, $8.5 million and $10.6 million, respectively. The expense was primarily associated with the principal amount of the outstanding
2016 Notes and 2012 Notes, and interest and fees related to our $600.0
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million senior secured credit facility. In 2013 and 2012, we capitalized a total of $1.4 million and $1.6 million of non-cash interest, respectively, and included
it in the historical cost of assets constructed for the Company's own use.

Interest expense in the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased by $5.4 million primarily as a result of the June repayment of our 2012 Notes and
capitalizing a portion of our interest cost relating to certain assets constructed for our internal use.

Our reported interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 included $2.3 million, $2.7 million and $3.4 million, respectively, of
non-cash amortization of debt issuance costs. The 2011 amount includes approximately $0.8 million of fees expensed in connection with our refinancing in
June 2011.

Other Income (Expense)

Other expense of $1.8 million in 2013 was primarily attributable to a write-off of $1.5 million for a capital expenditure project not placed into service and by
foreign exchange losses on intercompany balances.

In 2012, net other expense of $0.7 million consisted predominantly of foreign exchange losses.

In 2011, net other income of $0.8 million consisted of research and development reimbursements from third-party partners and foreign governments, partially
offset by foreign exchange losses.

Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 32.7%, 20.8% and 1.8% of income before income taxes in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. See Note 10, “Income
Taxes,” in our consolidated financial statements for a reconciliation of the United States federal statutory rate to our effective tax rate.

In 2013 our full-year worldwide income decreased significantly, primarily due to the impairment of goodwill (which primarily created a non-deductible tax
event for the current year), the introduction of the medical device excise tax in the U.S., and an overall decrease of earnings generated in the United States and
around the world. The foreign effective tax rate decreased as well due to the shift in the mix of earnings, minimal benefits associated with the goodwill
impairment charge, and a loss of income tax benefits in France as a result of a French tax law change that was enacted on December 30, 2013. This increase
was partially offset by a reversal of $3.8 million of accrued uncertain tax positions, which includes interest. Additionally, the Company recorded a tax benefit
in the fourth quarter of 2013 of $1.0 million related to the correction of a deferred tax item relating primarily to 2011.

In 2012, our full-year worldwide income increased significantly, primarily due to the increase of earnings generated in the United States. The shift in the mix
of earnings caused a significant increase in our worldwide effective tax rate. This increase was partially offset by a reversal of $2.6 million of reserves, which
includes interest for uncertain tax positions.

In 2011, we recorded a reversal of $2.5 million of reserves, which included interest, for uncertain tax positions due to matters that were considered effectively
settled. We recorded additional tax expenses of $1.7 million for a correction to a state deferred tax asset relating to 2009 and recorded a tax benefit of
$2.2 million relating to the correction of various deferred tax items for periods prior to 2011 that largely impacted foreign operations. These amounts were not
material to the current or prior periods and were therefore recorded in 2011.

Our effective tax rate could vary from year to year depending on, among other factors, the geographic and business mix and taxable earnings and losses. We
consider these factors and other, including our history of generating taxable earnings, in assessing our ability to realize deferred tax assets. We estimate the
range of our worldwide effective income tax rate for 2014 to be approximately 21% to 22%.

We have recorded a valuation allowance of $9.1 million against the remaining $112.5 million of gross deferred tax assets recorded at December 31, 2013.
This valuation allowance relates to deferred tax assets for which the Company does not believe it has satisfied the more likely than not threshold for
realization. We do not anticipate additional income tax benefits through future reductions in the valuation allowance. However, if we determine that we would
be able to realize more or less than the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets, we will record an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance
in the period such a determination is made. Our deferred tax asset valuation allowance decreased $5.2 million in 2013, $18.1 million in 2012, and
$4.3 million in 2011.

At December 31, 2013 we had net operating loss carryforwards of $56.7 million for federal income tax purposes, $36.6 million for foreign income tax
purposes and $54.7 million for state income tax purposes to offset future taxable income. The federal net operating loss carryforwards expire through 2032,
$18.9 million of the foreign net operating loss carryforwards expire through 2021 with the remaining $17.7 million having an indefinite carry forward period.
The state net operating loss carryforwards expire through 2032.
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As of December 31, 2013, we have not provided deferred U.S. income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on temporary differences of approximately $190.7
million resulting from earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries which are permanently reinvested outside the U.S. The unrecognized deferred tax liability
associated with these temporary differences was estimated to be $30.9 million at December 31, 2013. Events that could trigger a need to repatriate foreign
cash to the U.S. and generate a tax might include U.S. acquisitions, loans from a foreign subsidiary, or anticipated tax law changes that are considered
unfavorable and would result in higher taxes on repatriations that occur after the change in tax law goes into effect.

GEOGRAPHIC PRODUCT REVENUES AND OPERATIONS

We attribute revenues to geographic areas based on the location of the customer. There are certain revenues that the various U.S. segments manage that are
generated from non-U.S. customers and therefore included in Europe and the Rest of World revenues below — these revenues are not significant. Total
revenue by major geographic area consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
United States $ 642,694 $ 642,830 $ 589,946
Europe 93,977 90,920 97,184
Rest of World 99,543 97,121 92,948
Total revenues $ 836,214 $ 830,871 $ 780,078

In 2013, sales to our U.S. customers were essentially flat compared to the prior year. We saw increases in our reconstructive, neurosurgery and orthobiologics
business; however, these gains were offset by decreases in spine hardware, instruments, and private label. European sales increased approximately 3% in 2013
compared to the prior year resulting primarily from increases in sales of spine hardware. Sales to customers in the Rest of the World region increased
approximately 2% for the year ended December 31, 2013 due largely to spine hardware across all geographies, and instruments in Asia.

In 2012 sales to our U.S. customers increased approximately 9% compared to the prior year, resulting from a full-year impact of the SeaSpine and Ascension
acquisitions, with steady increases in all of our U.S. segments sales. European sales declined approximately 6% in 2012 compared to the prior year resulting
primarily from changes in foreign exchange rates, which had an impact on our neurosurgery and orthopedics products, and to a lesser extent, instruments.
Sales to customers in the Rest of the World region increased approximately 5% for the year ended December 31, 2012. We experienced this increase in all
product lines across all Rest of the World geographies.

With our global reach, we generate revenues and incur operating expenses in multiple foreign currencies, including euros, British pounds, Swiss francs,
Canadian dollars, Japanese yen, and Australian dollars. Accordingly, we will experience currency exchange risk with respect to those foreign currency
denominated revenues and operating expenses. The Company generated revenues denominated in foreign currencies of $134.2 million, $133.3 million and
$142.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

We will continue to assess the potential effects that changes in foreign currency exchange rates could have on our business. However, either a strengthening or
a weakening of the dollar against individual foreign currencies could reduce future revenues and gross margins. If we believe this potential impact presents a
significant risk to our business, we may enter into derivative financial instruments to mitigate this risk.

Additionally, we generate significant revenues outside the United States, a portion of which are U.S. dollar-denominated transactions conducted with
customers who generate revenue in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. As a result, currency fluctuations between the U.S. dollar and the currencies in
which those customers do business may have an impact on the demand for our products in foreign countries.

Local economic conditions, regulatory, legal or political considerations, the effectiveness of our sales representatives and distributors, local competition and
changes in local medical practice all could combine to affect our sales into markets outside the United States.

Relationships with customers and effective terms of sale frequently vary by country, often with longer-term receivables than are typical in the United States.

Economic conditions in certain European countries, especially Greece, Ireland, Italy, Portugal and Spain, have been steadily improving through 2013.
Accounts receivable from customers in these countries represented approximately $6.1 million of our total accounts receivable balance of which $0.7 million
was reserved at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2012, the accounts receivable from customers in these countries was $4.3 million of which $0.4 million
was reserved. We continually evaluate

13



receivables for potential collection risks associated with our customers. If the financial condition of customers or their respective countries’ healthcare
systems continue to deteriorate it may negatively impact our results in future periods.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and Marketable Securities
We had cash and cash equivalents totaling approximately $120.6 million and $96.9 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We determined that our existing cash, future cash to be generated from operations, and our remaining $413.1 million of borrowing capacity under our senior
secured revolving credit facility at December 31, 2013, if needed, will satisfy our foreseeable working capital, debt repayment and capital expenditure
requirements for at least the next twelve months.

In 2014, we anticipate that our principal uses of cash will include between $45.0 million and $55.0 million on capital expenditures primarily for our continued
expansion of regenerative medicine manufacturing capacity, support and maintenance in our existing plants, our enterprise resource planning system
implementation, and additions to our instrument kits used in sales of orthopedic products. Additionally, we will continue to build inventories in preparation
for our facilities consolidations in 2014.

At December 31, 2013, our non-U.S. subsidiaries held approximately $96.1 million of cash and cash equivalents that are available for use by all of our
operations around the world. However, if these funds were repatriated to the United States or used for United States operations, certain amounts could be
subject to United States tax for the incremental amount in excess of the foreign tax paid.

Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 53,268 $ 59,100
Net cash used in investing activities (50,296) (79,276)
Net cash provided by financing activities 19,019 11,750
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 1,685 4,556
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 23,676 $ (3,870)

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

In the fourth quarter of 2013, we sold 4.025 million shares of our common stock in a registered public offering to a select group of underwriters. The net
proceeds of the offering were $152.5 million after deducting the underwriters' discounts and commissions and all other estimated offering expenses. Through
December 31, 2013, we have used all of the net proceeds from this offering to pay down a portion of our outstanding Senior Credit Facility balance.

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities
We generated operating cash flows of $53.3 million, $59.1 million and $104.3 million for years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Operating cash flow was lower than the same period in 2012. Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2013 plus items included in that loss which did not
result in a change to our cash balance amounted to cash inflows of $80.7 million compared to $82.7 million in 2012. Changes in working capital in 2013
decreased cash flows by approximately $22.9 million. Among the changes in working capital, accounts receivable used $2.9 million of cash, inventory used
$35.5 million of cash, prepaid expenses and other current assets provided $4.8 million of cash, and accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current
liabilities provided $9.9 million of cash.

Operating cash flows for 2012 were lower than the same period in 2011 largely because of the repayment of our convertible 2012 Notes of $165.0 million, of
which $31.0 million were classified as an operating use of cash for the repayment of accreted interest. Cash from operations was also negatively impacted by
a one-time tax withholding payment of $29.8 million related to our former CEQ's deferred equity compensation. Net income for the year ended December 31,
2012, plus items included in those earnings that did not result in a change to our cash balance, amounted to approximately $82.7 million. Changes in working
capital decreased cash flows by approximately $22.1 million. Among the changes in working capital, accounts receivable provided $3.8 million of
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cash, inventory used $0.7 million of cash, prepaid expenses and other current assets used $3.1 million of cash, and accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other current liabilities used $21.1 million of cash, where the $29.8 million cash paid for federal and state taxes was presented.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2011, plus items included in those earnings that did not result in a change to our cash balance, amounted to
$119.4 million. In 2011, the impact of net working capital items on operating cash flows excluding the impact of acquisitions was a decrease of $12.3 million.
Increases in accounts receivable used $1.9 million of cash, increases in prepaid expenses and other current assets used $0.4 million of cash, which includes a
tax refund of $10.0 million, and decreases in accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities used $11.8 million of cash. Decreases in
inventory provided $1.7 million of cash.

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we paid $47.9 million in cash for capital expenditures, most of which was directed to the expansion of our
regenerative medicine production capacity and our global enterprise resource planning system implementation. We also paid $3.0 million in cash for the
acquisition of Tarsus Medical, Inc.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we paid $69.0 million in cash for capital expenditures, most of which was directed to the expansion and
remediation of our regenerative medicine production capacity and implementation of a global enterprise resource planning system. We released $7.4 million
of our indemnification holdback to the sellers of SeaSpine, Inc. We also experienced net unfavorable impact in short-term time deposit accounts representing
the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we paid $152.0 million (net of $0.8 million of cash acquired) related to our acquisitions of Ascension
Orthopedics, Inc. and SeaSpine, Inc. and invested $38.4 million in capital expenditures related primarily to expanding our regenerative medicine
manufacturing capacity and to the implementation of our global enterprise resource planning system.

Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities

Our principal sources of cash from financing activities in the year ended December 31, 2013 were from $152.5 million of net proceeds from the issuance of
4.025 million shares of common stock in the fourth quarter, $30.0 million borrowings under our Senior Credit Facility, $2.3 million in proceeds from stock
option exercises and the tax impact of stock-based compensation, offset by $165.0 million repayments under our Senior Credit Facility and capitalized cost
related to the amendment of our Senior Credit Facility of $1.1 million.

Our principal uses of cash for financing activities in the year ended December 31, 2012 were the payment of the liability component of our 2012 Notes of
$134.4 million and $12.8 million of repayments under our Senior Credit Facility offset by $155.0 million of borrowings under our Senior Credit Facility.

Our principal sources of cash from financing activities in the year ended December 31, 2011 were from $230.0 million in borrowings under the 2016 Notes
issued in June 2011 and proceeds from the related warrant sale of $28.5 million. These amounts were offset by $68.4 million in payments under our Senior
Credit Facility, $42.9 million for the call option on our 2016 Notes, debt issuance costs of $8.1 million, treasury stock purchases of $83.5 million and
proceeds from stock option exercises and the tax impact of stock based compensation of $4.5 million.

Working Capital
At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, working capital was $401.8 million and $346.1 million, respectively.

Upcoming Debt Maturities

The Company’s Senior Credit Facility and 1.625% senior convertible notes due December 2016 all mature in 2016. Subsequent to December 31, 2013 we
incurred additional borrowing under our Senior Credit Facility, and as a result we have approximately $651.9 million of outstanding borrowings under these
two financing arrangements. The Company may attempt to refinance or extend, either or both of these obligations over the next 12-18 months depending on
prevailing market conditions. Our ability to refinance or extend these obligations will depend on our operating and financial performance, which in turn is
subject to prevailing economic conditions and financial, business and other factors beyond our control. Any disruptions in our operations, the financial
markets, or overall economy may adversely affect the availability and cost of credit to us.

Amended and Restated Senior Credit Agreement

On August 10, 2010, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the “First Amendment") with a syndicate of lending banks and
further amended the agreement on June 8, 2011 (the “Second Amendment”, and collectively referred to herein as the “Senior Credit Facility”). The Second
Amendment increased the revolving credit component from $450.0 million to
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$600.0 million and eliminated the $150.0 million term loan component that existed under the First Amendment, allows the Company to further increase the
size of the revolving credit component by an aggregate of $200.0 million with additional commitments, provides the Company with decreased borrowing
rates and annual commitment fees, and provides more favorable financial covenants. The Second Amendment extended the Senior Credit Facility’s maturity
date from August 10, 2015 to June 8, 2016. Both the First Amendment and the Second Amendment are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the
Company’s U.S. subsidiaries, excluding intangible assets. At December 31, 2013, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.

On May 11, 2012, the Company entered into another amendment to the Senior Credit Facility. The 2012 amendment modified certain financial and negative
covenants as disclosed in Note 4 "Debt", the effect of which was to increase the Company’s capacity to borrow. In connection with the May 11, 2012
amendment, the Company capitalized $0.4 million in incremental financing costs.

On June 21, 2013, the Company entered into another amendment to the Senior Credit Facility. The 2013 amendment provides for an increase to the
Company's Maximum Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio and permits the addition of certain costs and expenses in the calculation of the consolidated
EBITDA as disclosed in Note 4 "Debt" to the Financial Statements. There were no other changes as a result of the 2013 amendment. In connection with the
June 21, 2013 amendment, the Company capitalized $1.1 million in incremental financing costs.

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility currently bear interest, at the Company’s option, at a rate equal to (i) the Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the Senior
Credit Facility, which definition has not changed) in effect from time to time plus the applicable rate (ranging from 1.00% to 1.75%) or (ii) the highest of
(x) the weighted average overnight Federal funds rate, as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, plus 0.5%, (y) the prime lending rate of Bank
of America, N.A. or (z) the one-month Eurodollar Rate plus 1.0%. The applicable rates are based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio (defined
as the ratio of (a) consolidated funded indebtedness less cash in excess of $40 million that is not subject to any restriction of the use or investment thereof to
(b) consolidated EBITDA) at the time of the applicable borrowing. The Company will also pay an annual commitment fee (ranging from 0.15% to 0.30%,
based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio) on the daily amount by which the revolving credit facility exceeds the outstanding loans and letters
of credit under the credit facility.

We plan to utilize the Senior Credit Facility for working capital, capital expenditures, share repurchases, acquisitions, debt repayments and other general
corporate purposes. At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, there were $186.9 million and $321.9 million outstanding, respectively, under the Senior
Credit Facility at a weighted average interest rate of 2.0% and 1.8%, respectively. The Company considers the balance to be long-term in nature based on its
current intent and ability to repay the borrowing outside of the next twelve-month period.

At December 31, 2013, there was approximately $413.1 million available for borrowing under the Senior Credit Facility.

Subsequent to year-end, in January 2014, we borrowed an additional $235.0 million from the Senior Credit Facility in connection with our acquisition of
Confluent Surgical.

Convertible Debt and Related Hedging Activities

We pay interest each June 15 and December 15 on our $230.0 million senior convertible notes due December 2016 (“2016 Notes”) at an annual interest rate
of 1.625%. We repaid our $165.0 million senior convertible notes due June 2012 (2012 Notes") in full during June 2012 in accordance with their term.

The 2016 Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of Integra, and are convertible into cash and, if applicable, shares of our common stock based on an initial
conversion rate, subject to adjustment, of 17.4092 shares per $1,000 principal amount of 2016 Notes (which represents an initial conversion price of
approximately $57.44 per share). We expect to satisfy any conversion of the 2016 Notes with cash up to the principal amount pursuant to the net share
settlement mechanism set forth in the respective indenture and, with respect to any excess conversion value, with shares of our common stock. The 2016
Notes are convertible only in the following circumstances: (1) if the closing sale price of our common stock exceeds 150% of the conversion price during a
period as defined in the applicable indenture; (2) if the average trading price per $1,000 principal amount of the 2016 Notes is less than or equal to 98% of the
average conversion value of the 2016 Notes during a period as defined in the applicable indenture; (3) at any time on or after June 15, 2016; or (4) if specified
corporate transactions occur. The issue price of the 2016 Notes was equal to their face amounts, which is also the amount holders are entitled to receive at
maturity if the 2016 Notes are not converted. None of these conditions existed with respect to the 2016 Notes; therefore the 2016 Notes are classified as long-
term.

In connection with the issuance of the 2016 Notes, we entered into call transactions and warrant transactions, primarily with affiliates of the initial purchasers
of the 2016 Notes (the “hedge participants”). The cost of the call transactions to us was approximately $42.9 million for the 2016 Notes. We received
approximately $28.5 million of proceeds from the warrant transactions for 2016 Notes. The call transactions involved our purchasing call options from the
hedge participants, and the warrant transactions involved us selling call options to the hedge participants with a higher strike price than the purchased call
options. The initial
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strike price of the call transactions is approximately $57.44, subject to anti-dilution adjustments substantially similar to those in the 2016 Notes. The initial
strike price of the warrant transactions is approximately $70.05 for the 2016 Notes, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments.

We may from time to time seek to retire or purchase a portion of our outstanding 2016 Notes through cash purchases and/or exchanges for equity securities, in
open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions,
our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. Under certain circumstances, the call options associated with any repurchased 2016
Notes may terminate early, but only with respect to the number of 2016 Notes that cease to be outstanding. The amounts involved may be material.

Share Repurchase Plan

On October 23, 2012, our Board of Directors terminated the October 2010 authorization and authorized the repurchase of up to $75.0 million of outstanding
common stock through December 2014. Shares may be purchased either in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. We repurchased no shares
under this program through December 31, 2013 and $75.0 million remains available under the authorization.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our formation. Our Senior Credit Facility limits the amount of dividends that we may pay.
Any future determinations to pay cash dividends on our common stock will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As of December 31, 2013, we were obligated to pay the following amounts under various agreements:

Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5 Years

(In millions)

Convertible Securities(1) $ 2300 $ — 230.0 $ — 5 —
Senior Credit Facility(2) 186.9 — 186.9 — —
Interest(3) 11.2 3.7 7.5 — —
Employment Agreements(4) 1.3 1.3 — — —
Operating Leases 66.9 12.1 17.4 9.0 28.4
Purchase Obligations 17.1 54 5.5 6.2 —
Other 8.5 3.1 3.2 1.0 1.2
Total $ 5219 $ 256 § 4505 $ 162 $ 29.6

(1) The estimated debt service obligation of the senior convertible securities includes interest expense representing the amortization of the discount on the
liability component of the senior convertible notes in accordance with the authoritative guidance. See Note 4 "Debt" of our consolidated financial
statements for additional information.

(2) The Company may borrow and make payments against the credit facility from time to time and considers all of the outstanding amounts to be long
term based on its current intent and ability to repay the borrowing outside of the next twelve-month period.

Subsequent to year-end, in January 2014, the Company borrowed an additional $235.0 million from the Senior Credit Facility in connection with our
acquisition of Confluent Surgical.

(3) Interest is calculated on the convertible securities based on current interest rates paid by the Company. As the revolving credit facility can be repaid at
any time, no interest has been included in the calculation.

(49) Amounts shown under Employment Agreements do not include compensation resulting from a change in control.

17



Excluded from the contractual obligations table is the liability for uncertain tax benefits, including interest and penalties, totaling $3.8 million. This liability
for uncertain tax benefits has been excluded because we cannot make a reliable estimate of the period in which the uncertain tax benefits may be realized.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There were no off-balance sheet arrangements during the year ended December 31, 2013 that have or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect
on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that
is material to our interests.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND THE USE OF ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. Significant estimates affecting amounts reported or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements include allowances for doubtful
accounts receivable and sales returns and allowances, net realizable value of inventories, valuation of intangible assets including in-process research and
development, amortization periods for acquired intangible assets, estimates of projected cash flows and discount rates used to value intangible assets and test
goodwill and intangible assets for impairment, estimates of projected cash flows and depreciation and amortization periods for long-lived assets, computation
of taxes, computation of valuation allowances recorded against deferred tax assets, valuation of stock-based compensation, valuation of pension assets and
liabilities, valuation of derivative instruments, valuation of the equity component of convertible debt instruments, valuation of debt instruments and loss
contingencies. These estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the current
circumstances. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

We believe that the following accounting policies, which form the basis for developing these estimates, are those that are most critical to the presentation of
our consolidated financial statements and require the more difficult subjective and complex judgments:

Change in Accounting Principle

In the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed its method of accounting for the medical device excise tax (“MDET”). Prior to the change the Company
recorded the MDET in inventory at the time of the first sale and then recognized the tax in cost of goods sold when the medical device was sold to the
ultimate customer. Under the new method, the MDET will be recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the period the first sale occurs,
which could be an intercompany sale.

The Company believes that this change in accounting principle is preferable as the new method provides a better comparison with the Company's industry
peers, the majority of which expense the MDET at the time of the first sale.

The medical device excise tax applies to sales beginning January 1, 2013; therefore, only 2013 financial results were affected by this change. Accordingly, the
2013 results included herein have been revised to reflect the retrospective application of the change in accounting principle had the new method been in effect
that year,

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable and Sales Returns and Allowances

We evaluate the collectability of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In circumstances where a specific customer is unable to meet its
financial obligations to us, we record an allowance against amounts due to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount that we reasonably expect to
collect. For all other customers, we record allowances for doubtful accounts based on the length of time the receivables are past due, the current business
environment and our historical experience. If the financial condition of customers or the length of time that receivables are past due were to change, we may
change the recorded amount of allowances for doubtful accounts in the future through charges or reductions to selling, general and administrative expense.

We record a provision for estimated sales returns and allowances on revenues in the same period as the related revenues are recorded. We base these estimates
on historical sales returns and allowances and other known factors. If actual returns or allowances differ from our estimates and the related provisions for
sales returns and allowances, we may change the sales returns and allowances provision in the future through an increase or decrease in revenues.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting of purchased materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead, are stated at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out
method) or market. At each balance sheet date, we evaluate ending inventories for excess quantities, obsolescence or shelf-life expiration. Our evaluation
includes an analysis of historical sales levels by product, projections of future demand by product, the risk of technological or competitive obsolescence for
our products, general market conditions, a review of the shelf-life expiration dates for our products, and the feasibility of reworking or using excess or
obsolete products or components in the production or assembly of other products that are not obsolete or for which we do not have excess quantities in
inventory. To the extent that we determine there are excess or obsolete quantities or quantities with a shelf life that is too near its expiration
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for us to reasonably expect that we can sell those products prior to their expiration, we adjust their carrying value to estimated net realizable value. If future
demand or market conditions are lower than our projections, or if we are unable to rework excess or obsolete quantities into other products, we may record
further adjustments to the carrying value of inventory through a charge to cost of product revenues in the period the revision is made.

Valuation of Goodwill, Identifiable Intangible Assets, and In-Process Research and Development Charges

We review goodwill, identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives and capitalized in-process research and development for impairment annually. We
continually assess whether events or changes in circumstances represent a 'triggering' event that would require us to complete an impairment assessment.
Factors that we consider in determining whether a triggering event has occurred include a significant change in the business climate, legal factors, operating
performance indicators, competition, sale or disposition of significant assets or products, or the termination of development programs. Application of these
impairment tests requires significant judgments, including estimation of future cash flows, which is dependent on internal forecasts, estimation of the long-
term rate of growth for our business, the useful life over which cash flows will occur and determination of our weighted-average cost of capital.

Should a triggering event be deemed to occur, and for each of the annual goodwill impairment assessments, we are required to estimate the expected net cash
flows to be realized over the life of the asset and/or the asset's fair value. Fair values are determined by a discounted cash flow model. These estimates are
also subject to significant management judgment including the determination of many factors such as revenue growth rates, cost growth rates, terminal value
assumptions and discount rates. Changes in these estimates can have a significant impact on the determination of cash flows and fair value and could
potentially result in future material impairments.

We test our goodwill for impairment at least annually on July 31 of each year. We performed our most recent annual assessment on July 31, 2013 which
resulted in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $46.7 million in our U.S. Spine reporting unit. As previously disclosed, the Company has monitored its
U.S. Spine business and disclosed that it was at risk for impairment. In the third quarter, during the course of the annual strategic planning process, the
Company determined that both the actual and expected income and cash flows for the U.S. Spine reporting unit were projected to be substantially lower than
forecasts, and the U.S. spine market recovery may take longer than originally forecasted, including the current expectation of future significant negative
pricing pressures. Factors that contributed to the impairment of the U.S. Spine reporting unit include broader market issues as well as company-specific
issues. Company-specific issues have included turnover of some distributors, significant delays in new product introductions and other operational issues that
negatively impacted the projected revenues and decreased their projected number by a material amount. As a result, the Company lowered its expectations of
recovery in the U.S. market and its related impact on the U.S. Spine reporting unit. This revised outlook resulted in a reduction of the U.S. Spine forecasts of
the sales, operating income and cash flows expected in 2014 and beyond and consequently, has resulted in an impairment charge.

To derive the fair value of the reporting units, as required in step one of the impairment test, the Company used the income approach, specifically the
discounted cash flow ("DCF") method, which incorporates significant estimates and assumptions made by management which, by their nature, are
characterized by uncertainty. The key assumptions impacting the valuation included:

*  The Company's financial projections for its reporting units, which are based on management's assessment of regional and macroeconomic variables,
industry trends and market opportunities, and the Company's strategic objectives and future growth plans.

*  The projected terminal value for each reporting unit, which represents the present value of projected cash flows beyond the last period in the
discounted cash flow analysis. The terminal value reflects the Company's assumptions related to long-term growth rates and profitability, which are
based on several factors, including local and macroeconomic variables, market opportunities, and future growth plans.

*  The discount rate used to measure the present value of the projected future cash flows is set using a weighted-average cost of capital method that
considers market and industry data as well as the Company's specific risk factors that are likely to be considered by a market participant. The
weighted-average cost of capital is the Company's estimate of the overall after-tax rate of return required by equity and debt holders of a business
enterprise.

Based on the results of step one of the impairment test, the Company determined that the carrying value of the U.S. Spine reporting unit exceeded its
respective fair value, and accordingly, the Company proceeded to step two of the impairment test.

In the second step, the Company assigned the reporting unit's fair value to all of its assets and liabilities, including any unrecognized intangible assets, in a
hypothetical analysis that calculates the implied fair value of goodwill in the same manner as if the reporting unit were being acquired in a business
combination. If the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is less than the carrying value, the difference is recorded as an impairment charge. This
allocation process was performed only for the purposes of measuring the goodwill impairment and not to adjust the carrying values of the recognized tangible
assets and liabilities. Step two of the impairment was initiated in the third quarter of 2013, but due to the time necessary to complete the analysis, was not
completed at that time. The Company recorded its estimate of the goodwill impairment charge of $46.7 million during the third quarter of
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2013, which represents the remaining goodwill balance in the U.S. Spine reporting unit. The Company finalized the step two analysis in the fourth quarter of
2013 and there were no changes to the impairment charge initially recorded. Approximately $16.2 million of the goodwill impairment charge was deductible
for tax purposes.

Prior to performing the annual goodwill impairment tests for the U.S. Spine reporting unit, we tested long-lived assets to be held and used by this reporting
unit for impairment on an undiscounted cash flow basis. Based on the results of this testing, there was no impairment.

Derivatives

We develop, manufacture, and sell medical devices globally. Our earnings and cash flows are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and
currency exchange rates. We address these risks through a risk management program that includes the use of derivative financial instruments, and operate the
program pursuant to documented corporate risk management policies. All derivative financial instruments are recognized in the financial statements at fair
value in accordance with the authoritative guidance. Under the guidance, for those instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, the
hedging instrument must be designated as a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge, or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, based on the exposure
being hedged. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a
hedging relationship and, further, on the type of hedging relationship. Our derivative instruments do not subject our earnings or cash flows to material risk,
and gains and losses on these derivatives generally offset losses and gains on the item being hedged. We have not entered into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes and all of our derivatives are designated as hedges.

All derivative instruments are recognized at their fair values as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. We determine the fair value of our derivative
instruments, using the framework prescribed by the authoritative guidance, by considering the estimated amount we would receive to sell or transfer these
instruments at the reporting date and by taking into account expected forward interest rates, currency exchange rates, the creditworthiness of the counterparty
for assets, and our creditworthiness for liabilities. In certain instances, we may utilize a discounted cash flow model to measure fair value. Generally, we use
inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; other observable inputs for the asset or liability; and inputs that are derived
principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means. As of December 31, 2013, observable inputs are available for
substantially the full term of our derivative instruments.

Income Taxes

Since we conduct operations on a global basis, our effective tax rate has and will depend upon the geographic distribution of our pre-tax earnings among
locations with varying tax rates. Changes in the tax rates of the various jurisdictions in which we operate affect our profits. In addition, we maintain a reserve
for uncertain tax benefits, changes to which could impact our effective tax rate in the period such changes are made. The effective tax rate can also be
impacted by changes in valuation allowances of deferred tax assets, and tax law changes.

Our provision for income taxes may change period-to-period based on specific events, such as the settlement of income tax audits and changes in tax laws, as
well as general factors, including the geographic mix of income before taxes, state and local taxes and the effects of the Company's global income tax
strategies. We maintain strategic management and operational activities in overseas subsidiaries and our foreign earnings are taxed at rates that are generally
lower than in the United States. See Note 10, “Income Taxes,” in our consolidated financial statements for disclosures related to foreign and domestic pretax
income, foreign and domestic income tax (benefit) expense and the effect foreign taxes have on our overall effective tax rate.

We recognize a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of
the position. The amount of the accrual for which an exposure exists is measured by determining the amount that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of
being realized upon ultimate settlement of the position. Components of the reserve are classified as a long-term liability in the consolidated balance sheets.
We record interest and penalties accrued in relation to uncertain tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

We believe we have identified all reasonably identifiable exposures and the reserve we have established for identifiable exposures is appropriate under the
circumstances; however, it is possible that additional exposures exist and that exposures will be settled at amounts different than the amounts reserved. It is
also possible that changes in facts and circumstances could cause us to either materially increase or reduce the carrying amount of our tax reserves.

Our deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their basis for income tax purposes, and also the temporary differences created by the tax effects of capital loss, net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. We record valuation allowances to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts that are more likely than not to be realized. We could recognize
no benefit from our deferred tax assets or we could recognize some or all of the future benefit depending on the amount and timing of taxable income we
generate in the future.

Our policy is to provide income taxes on earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries only to the extent those earnings are taxable or are expected to be remitted.
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Loss Contingencies

We are subject to claims and lawsuits in the ordinary course of our business, including claims by employees or former employees, with respect to our
products and involving commercial disputes. We accrue for loss contingencies when it is deemed probable that a loss has been incurred and that loss is
estimable. The amounts accrued are based on the full amount of the estimated loss before considering insurance proceeds, if applicable, and do not include an
estimate for legal fees expected to be incurred in connection with the loss contingency. We consistently accrue legal fees expected to be incurred in
connection with loss contingencies as those fees are incurred by outside counsel as a period cost. Our financial statements do not reflect any material amounts
related to possible unfavorable outcomes of claims and lawsuits to which we are currently a party because we currently believe that such claims and lawsuits
are not expected, individually or in the aggregate, to result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition. However, it is possible that these
contingencies could materially affect our results of operations, financial position and cash flows in a particular period if we change our assessment of the
likely outcome of these matters.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards

On February 5, 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The objective of this standard is to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income. The amendment requires an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other amounts that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety
to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-reference other disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that provide additional detail
about those amounts. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a
balance sheet account (for example, inventory) instead of directly to income or expense in the same reporting period. This ASU is effective for fiscal years
and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2012 for public entities and its adoption did not have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

On July 17, 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-10, Inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (or Overnight Index Swap Rate) as a Benchmark
Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes. The revised standard allows entities to now use the Federal Funds Effective Swap Rate (which is the Overnight
Index Swap Rate, or OIS rate, in the U.S.) as a benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes under U.S. GAAP. Previously, only U.S. Treasury and
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) rates could be used as benchmark interest rates in hedge accounting. In issuing the new guidance, which became
effective July 17, 2013, the FASB responded to an increase in demand for hedging exposures to the OIS rate, driven partly by regulations that require
collateralization and central clearing of over-the-counter derivatives. The guidance allows entities to develop new hedging strategies but does not resolve
ineffectiveness issues that arise in existing LIBOR hedges when the OIS rate is used to discount future cash flows. The standard adoption did not have a
material impact on the Company's financial statements.

On July 18, 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. This updated guidance requires an unrecognized tax benefit to be presented in the financial statements as a
reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. To the extent the tax benefit is not
available at the reporting date under the governing tax law or if the entity does not intend to use the deferred tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax
benefit should be presented as a liability and not combined with deferred tax assets. The ASU 2013-11 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within
those years beginning after December 15, 2013 for public entities. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments are to be applied to all unrecognized tax
benefits that exist as of the effective date and may be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented. The standard adoption will not have a
material impact on the Company's financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to various market risks, including changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates that could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition. To manage the volatility relating to these typical business exposures, we may enter into various derivative transactions
when appropriate. We do not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading or other speculative purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange and Other Rate Risks

We operate on a global basis and are exposed to the risk that changes in foreign currency exchange rates could adversely affect our financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows. We are primarily exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk with respect to transactions and net assets denominated in
euros, Swiss francs, British pounds, Canadian dollars, Japanese yen, and Australian dollars. We manage the foreign currency exposure centrally, on a
combined basis, which allows us to net exposures and to take advantage of any natural offsets. To mitigate the impact of currency fluctuations on transactions
denominated in nonfunctional currencies, we periodically enter into derivative financial instruments in the form of foreign currency exchange forward
contracts with major financial institutions. We temporarily record realized and unrealized gains and losses on these
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contracts that qualify as cash flow hedges in other comprehensive income, and then recognize them in other income or expense when the hedged item affects
net earnings.

From time to time, we enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts with terms of up to 12 months to manage currency exposures for transactions
denominated in a currency other than an entity’s functional currency. As a result, the impact of foreign currency gains/losses recognized in earnings are
partially offset by gains/losses on the related foreign currency forward exchange contracts in the same reporting period. At December 31, 2013, the company
had no foreign currency forward contracts outstanding. At December 31, 2012, the notional amount of foreign currency contracts outstanding not designated
as hedges was equivalent to $3.9 million, and there were no foreign currency forward contracts that were designated as hedges.

We maintain written policies and procedures governing our risk management activities. With respect to cash flow hedges, changes in cash flows attributable
to hedged transactions are generally expected to be completely offset by changes in the fair value of hedge instruments. Consequently, foreign currency
exchange contracts would not subject us to material risk due to exchange rate movements, because gains and losses on these contracts offset gains and losses
on the assets, liabilities or transactions being hedged.

The results of operations discussed herein have not been materially affected by inflation.

Interest Rate Risk

Cash and Cash Equivalents - We are exposed to the risk of interest rate fluctuations on the interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents. A
hypothetical 100 basis point movement in interest rates applicable to our cash and cash equivalents outstanding at December 31, 2013 would increase interest
income by approximately $1.2 million on an annual basis. No significant decrease in interest income would be expected as our cash balances are earning
interest at rates of approximately 23 basis points. We are subject to foreign currency exchange risk with respect to cash balances maintained in foreign
currencies.

Senior Credit Facility - Our interest rate risk relates primarily to U.S. dollar LIBOR-indexed borrowings. We use an interest rate swap derivative instrument
to manage our earnings and cash flow exposure to changes in interest rates. This interest rate swap fixed the interest rate on a portion of our expected LIBOR-
indexed floating-rate borrowings beginning on December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2013 the interest rate swap had a notional amount of $112.5 million
outstanding, and the fair value was a net liability of $2.4 million. We recognized $1.9 million of additional interest expense related to this interest rate swap
during 2013.

Based on our outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2013, a one-percentage point change in interest rates would have impacted interest expense on the
unhedged portion of the debt by $0.7 million on an annualized basis.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Financial statements and the financial statement schedules specified by this Item, together with the report thereon of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, are
presented following Item 15 of this report.

Information on quarterly results of operations is set forth in our financial statements under Note 15, “Selected Quarterly Information — Unaudited,” to our
consolidated financial statements.

PART II1
INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The information called for by Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities relating
to equity compensation plans, Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance, Item 11. Executive Compensation, Item 12. Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and
Director Independence and Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement
for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on May 20, 2014, which definitive proxy statement is expected to be filed with the Commission
not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this report relates.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as a part of this report.
1. Financial Statements.

The following financial statements and financial statement schedules are filed as a part of this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts F-63

All other schedules not listed above have been omitted, because they are not applicable or are not required, or because the required information is included in
the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Integra Lifesciences Holdings Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Integra Lifesciences Holdings Corporation and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2013 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) of the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible
for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting (not presented
herein) appearing under Item 9A of the Company’s 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
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weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for the medical device excise tax
effective January 1, 2013.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Florham Park, New Jersey

February 26, 2014, except with respect to our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the effects of the change in accounting
for the medical devise excise tax and the realignment of segment revenues discussed in Note 2A, as to which the date is June 19, 2014.



INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Total revenue, net $ 836,214 $ 830,871 780,078
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of goods sold 327,045 314,427 299,150
Research and development 52,088 51,012 51,451
Selling, general and administrative 407,802 373,114 358,132
Intangible asset amortization 12,697 18,536 16,433
Goodwill impairment charge 46,738 — —
Total costs and expenses 846,370 757,089 725,166
Operating income (loss) (10,156) 73,782 54,912
Interest income 443 1,205 465
Interest expense (19,788) (22,237) (27,640)
Other income (expense), net (1,801) (721) 757
Income (loss) before income taxes (31,302) 52,029 28,494
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (10,235) 10,825 505
Net income (loss) (21,067) 41,204 27,989
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ (0.74) 1.46 0.97
Diluted net income (loss) per common share $ 0.74) $ 1.44 0.95
Weighted average common shares outstanding (See Note 11):
Basic 28,416 28,232 28,952
Diluted 28,416 28,516 29,495

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Change in foreign currency translation adjustments
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives
Unrealized derivative gains (losses) arising during period
Less: Reclassification adjustments for gains (losses) included in net income (loss)

Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives

Defined benefit pension plan - net gain (loss) arising during period
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax

Income tax (expense) benefit related to items in other comprehensive income (loss)

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)

$ (21,067) $ 41,204 $ 27,989
5,874 5,224 (5,624)
(110) (2,062) (6,306)
(1,830) (2,210) (2,269)
1,720 148 (4,037)

(1,398) (1,313) 861
6,196 4,059 (8,800)

(472) 237 1,502
5,724 4,296 (7,298)

$ (15,343) $ 45,500 $ 20,691




INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2013 2012
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 120,614 96,938
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of $6,194 and $7,221 118,145 114,916
Inventories, net 206,919 171,806
Deferred tax assets 48,616 39,100
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 26,858 30,291
Total current assets 521,152 453,051
Property, plant and equipment, net 200,310 177,898
Intangible assets, net 197,163 212,267
Goodwill 249,764 294,067
Deferred tax assets 15,412 15,957
Other assets 8,338 10,359
Total assets $ 1,192,139 1,163,599
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade $ 50,752 36,742
Deferred revenue 4,197 3,505
Accrued compensation 28,079 34,914
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 36,354 31,768
Total current liabilities 119,382 106,929
Long-term borrowings under senior credit facility 186,875 321,875
Long-term convertible securities 205,182 197,672
Deferred tax liabilities 2,083 5,393
Other liabilities 12,527 13,955
Total liabilities 526,049 645,824
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred Stock; no par value; 15,000 authorized shares; none outstanding — —
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 60,000 authorized shares; 41,042 and 36,852 issued at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively 410 369
Additional paid-in capital 750,918 587,301
Treasury stock, at cost; 8,903 shares at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (367,121) (367,121)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 927 (4,797)
Retained earnings 280,956 302,023
Total stockholders’ equity 666,090 517,775
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,192,139 1,163,599

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ (21,067)  $ 41,204 S 27,989
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 47,010 52,611 50,172
Non-cash impairment charges 47,078 = —
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) (13,145) 1,537 1,156
Share-based compensation 10,393 9,051 26,805
Amortization of debt issuance costs 2,298 2,725 3,387
Non-cash interest expense 6,463 8,520 10,591
Payment of accreted interest — (30,617) —
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,965 1,312 =
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements (270) (3,634) (848)
Other, net _ — 164

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of business acquisitions:

Accounts receivable (2,892) 3,783 (1,878)
Inventories (35,505) (711) 1,702
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,823 (3,067) (395)
Other non-current assets 441 (553) 375
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities 9,945 (21,071) (11,842)
Deferred revenue 697 (1,051) 104
Other non-current liabilities (4,966) (939) (3,154)
Net cash provided by operating activities 53,268 59,100 104,328
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Cash used in business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (2,980) (7,278) (151,951)
Purchases of property and equipment (47,851) (69,031) (38,425)
Sales of property and equipment 535 _ o
Purchases of short-term investments _ (67,907) —
Maturities of short-term investments _ 64,940 _
Net cash used in investing activities (50,296) (79,276) (190,376)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under senior credit facility 30,000 155,000 145,000
Repayments under senior credit facility (165,000) (12,812) (213,437)
Proceeds from liability component of convertible notes _ — 186,830
Proceeds from equity component of convertible notes _ _ 43,170
Proceeds from sale of stock purchase warrants _ — 28,451
Purchase of option hedge on convertible notes — — (42,895)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 152,458 _ _
Payment of liability component of convertible notes _ (134,383) —
Debt issuance costs (1,053) (385) (8,064)
Purchases of treasury stock — — (83,463)
Proceeds from exercised stock options 2,344 696 3,697
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 270 3,634 848
Net cash provided by financing activities 19,019 11,750 60,137
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,685 4,556 (2,044)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23,676 (3,870) (27,955)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 96,938 100,808 128,763
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 120,614  $ 96,938 $ 100,808

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance, December 31, 2010

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Proceeds from equity component on convertible notes
Proceeds from sale of stock purchase warrants

Purchase of option hedge on convertible notes

Equity portion of convertible notes issuance costs
Issuance of common stock through employee benefit plans
Share-based compensation

Repurchase of common stock

Balance, December 31, 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Issuance of common stock through employee benefit plans
Share-based compensation

Balance, December 31, 2012

Net loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Issuance of common stock

Issuance of common stock through employee benefit plans
Share-based compensation

Balance, December 31, 2013

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Accumulated Other Retained
Paid-In Comprehensive Earnings (As
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) adjusted)* Total Equity
(In thousands)
35,527 355 (6,994) $ (283,658) $ 552,231 (1,795) $ 232,830 $ 499,963
— — — — — 27,989 27,989
— — — — — (7,298) — (7,298)
— — — — 43,170 — — 43,170
— — — — 28,451 — — 28,451
_ - — — (42,895) — — (42,895)
— — — — (1,334) — — (1,334)
207 2 — — 374 — — 376
— — — — 27,679 — — 27,679
— — (1,909) (83,463) — — — (83,463)
35,734 357 (8,903) $ (367,121) $ 607,676 (9,093) $ 260,819 $ 492,638
— — — — — — 41,204 41,204
— — — — — 4,296 — 4,296
9 1 — — 250 — — 251
1,109 11 — — (20,625) — — (20,614)
36,852 369 (8,903) $ (367,121) $ 587,301 4,797) $ 302,023 $ 517,775
_ _ _ — — — (21,067) (21,067)
— — — — — 5,724 — 5,724
4,025 40 — — 152,418 — — 152,458
165 1 - - 1,065 — - 1,066
— - — — 10,134 - — 10,134
41,042 410 (8,903) $ (367,121) $ 750,918 927 $ 280956 $ 666,090




INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS

Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware in 1989. The Company, a world leader in medical devices, is
dedicated to limiting uncertainty for surgeons through the development, manufacturing, and marketing of cost-effective surgical implants and medical
instruments. Its products are used primarily in neurosurgery, extremity reconstruction, orthopedics and general surgery.

The Company sells its products directly through various sales forces and through a variety of other distribution channels.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements and the accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and conform to Regulation S-X under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. See Note 3, “Acquisitions and Pro Forma Results", for details of new subsidiaries included in the
consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses. Significant estimates affecting amounts reported or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements include allowances for doubtful accounts
receivable and sales returns and allowances, net realizable value of inventories, valuation of intangible assets and in-process research and development
("IPR&D"), amortization periods for acquired intangible assets, discount rates and estimated projected cash flows used to value and test impairments of long-
lived assets and goodwill, estimates of projected cash flows, depreciation and amortization periods for long-lived assets, computation of taxes, valuation
allowances recorded against deferred tax assets, the valuation of stock-based compensation, valuation of pension assets and liabilities, valuation of derivative
instruments, valuation of the equity component of convertible debt instruments, and valuation of debt instruments and loss contingencies. These estimates are
based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the current circumstances. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

OUT OF PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

In the fourth quarter of 2013, income tax benefit was increased by $1.0 million for the cumulative effect of immaterial errors related to the Company's reserve
for uncertain tax positions that related to prior periods. Of the $1.0 million increase, $0.9 million was to correct an error that was recorded in the deferred tax
accounts in 2011, and the remainder of the error had an insignificant impact across several years. Based upon our evaluation of relevant factors related to this
matter, we concluded that the uncorrected adjustments in our previously issued consolidated financial statements for any of the periods affected are
immaterial and that the impact of recording the cumulative correction in the fourth quarter of 2013 is not material to our earnings for the full year ending
December 31, 2013.

In the fourth quarter of 2012, interest expense was reduced by $3.3 million for the cumulative correction of immaterial errors in capitalized interest on our
construction in progress balances related to prior periods. The $3.3 million decrease in interest expense reflects (a) $1.5 million of interest expense that should
have been capitalized in previous quarters in 2012, and (b) $1.4 million and $0.4 million of interest expense that should have been capitalized in the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The 2012 amount above includes $2.1 million, $1.4 million, and $0.4 million related to the first three
quarters of 2012 and to the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Based upon our evaluation of relevant factors related to this matter, we
concluded that the uncorrected adjustments in our previously issued consolidated financial statements for any of the periods affected are immaterial and that
the impact of recording the cumulative correction in the fourth quarter of 2012 is not material to our earnings for the full year ending December 31, 2012.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts from the prior years' financial statements have been reclassified in order to conform to the current year's presentation.
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INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Company considers all short-term, highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company grants credit to customers in the normal course of
business, but generally does not require collateral or any other security to support its receivables.

The Company evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In circumstances where a specific customer is unable to
meet its financial obligations to the Company, a provision to the allowances for doubtful accounts is recorded against amounts due to reduce the net
recognized receivable to the amount that is reasonably expected to be collected. For all other customers, a provision to the allowances for doubtful accounts is
recorded based on factors including the length of time the receivables are past due, the current business environment and the Company's historical experience.
Provisions to the allowances for doubtful accounts are recorded to selling, general and administrative expenses. Account balances are charged off against the
allowance when it is probable that the receivable will not be recovered.

INVENTORIES

Inventories, consisting of purchased materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead, are stated at the lower of cost, the value determined by the first-in,
first-out method, or market. Inventories consisted of the following:

December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)
Finished goods $ 123,786 $ 102,401
Work in process 47,403 40,067
Raw materials 35,730 29,338
Total inventories, net $ 206,919 $ 171,806

The December 31, 2013 amounts above have been revised to correct an immaterial misclassification of certain items between work in process and raw
materials.

At each balance sheet date, the Company evaluates inventories for excess quantities, obsolescence or shelf life expiration. This evaluation includes analysis of
historical sales levels by product, projections of future demand, the risk of technological or competitive obsolescence for products, general market conditions,
a review of the shelf life expiration dates for products, as well as the feasibility of reworking or using excess or obsolete products or components in the
production or assembly of other products that are not obsolete or for which there are not excess quantities in inventory. To the extent that management
determines there are excess or obsolete inventory or quantities with a shelf life that is too near its expiration for the Company to reasonably expect that it can
sell those products prior to their expiration, the Company adjusts the carrying value to estimated net realizable value.

The Company capitalizes inventory costs associated with certain products prior to regulatory approval, based on management's judgment of probable
economic benefit. The Company could be required to expense previously capitalized costs related to pre-approval inventory upon a change in such judgment,
due to, among other potential factors, a denial or delay of approval by necessary regulatory bodies or a decision by management to discontinue the related
development program. No such amounts were capitalized at December 31, 2013 or 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment charges. The Company provides for depreciation
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease term or the
useful life. The cost of major additions and improvements is capitalized, while maintenance and repair costs that do not improve or extend the lives of the
respective assets are charged to operations as incurred. The cost of computer software developed or obtained for internal use is accounted for in accordance
with the Accounting Standards Codification 350-40, Internal-Use Software.



INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Property, plant and equipment balances and corresponding lives were as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012 Useful Lives

(In thousands)

Land $ 3,022 $ 2,768
Buildings and building improvements 15,377 7,908 5-40 years
Leasehold improvements 42,900 46,240 1-20 years
Machinery and production equipment 86,192 85,721 3-20 years
Surgical instrument kits 30,352 26,231 4-5 years
Information systems and hardware 51,171 42,145 1-7 years
Furniture, fixtures, and office equipment 16,363 15,692 1-15 years
Construction-in-progress 112,130 90,243

Total 357,507 316,948
Less: Accumulated depreciation (157,197) (139,050)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 200,310 $ 177,898

Depreciation expense associated with property, plant and equipment was $27.6 million, $27.5 million and $25.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company leases certain computer equipment under capital lease agreements. At December 31, 2013 the gross carrying value and accumulated
depreciation of such leases amounted to $1.6 million and $0.1 million, respectively, and the cost is included as a component of Furniture, fixtures, office
equipment and information systems. The Company had no capital leases at December 31, 2012.

CAPITALIZED INTEREST

The interest cost on capital projects, including facilities build-out and internal use software, is capitalized and included in the cost of the project.
Capitalization commences with the first expenditure for the project and continues until the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.
When no debt is incurred specifically for a project, interest is capitalized on project expenditures using the weighted average cost of the Company's
outstanding borrowings. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, the Company capitalized $3.2 million and $3.9 million of interest
expense into property, plant and equipment.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The excess of the cost over the fair value of net assets of acquired businesses is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is not subject to amortization, but is reviewed
for impairment at the reporting unit level annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. The Company's assessment of the recoverability of
goodwill is based upon a comparison of the carrying value of goodwill with its estimated fair value. The Company revised its operating segments and
reporting segments in connection with the change in the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (who serves as the Company’s chief operating decision maker)
effective January 3, 2012. As a result, the Company reassigned the goodwill to these new reportable segments based on the relative fair value of the
Company’s reporting units as of January 1, 2012.

Historically, goodwill was tested annually for impairment as of June 30 of each fiscal year. During the quarter ended June 30, 2012, the Company adopted a
new accounting principle whereby the annual impairment review of goodwill is performed as of July 31 of each year. The change in the annual goodwill
impairment testing date was made to better align the annual goodwill impairment test with the timing of the Company’s annual strategic planning process. In
line with this change, the Company performed an assessment of the goodwill in each of its reporting units during the first quarter of 2012. This change in
accounting principle did not delay, accelerate or avoid an impairment charge. Accordingly, the Company believes that the change described above was
preferable under the circumstances.

On July 31, 2013, the Company performed the annual goodwill impairment test which resulted in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $46.7 million for
its U.S. Spine reporting unit, which is a part of the U.S. Spine and Other reportable segment.

As previously disclosed, the Company has monitored its U.S. Spine business and disclosed that it was at risk for impairment. During the course of the annual
strategic planning process performed during the third quarter, the Company determined that both the actual and expected income and cash flows for the U.S.
Spine reporting unit were projected to be substantially lower than forecasts, and the U.S. spine market recovery may take longer than originally forecasted,
including the current expectation of future significant negative pricing pressures. Factors that contributed to the impairment of the U.S. Spine reporting unit
include broader market issues as well as company-specific issues. Company-specific issues have included turnover of some distributors, significant delays in
new product introductions and other operational issues that negatively impacted and decreased projected revenues by a material amount. As a result, the
Company lowered its expectations of recovery in the U.S. market and its related
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INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

impact on the U.S. Spine reporting unit. This revised outlook resulted in a reduction of the U.S. Spine forecasts of the sales, operating income and cash flows
expected in 2014 and beyond and consequently, resulted in an impairment charge.

To derive the fair value of the reporting units, as required in step one of the impairment test, the Company used the income approach, specifically the
discounted cash flow ("DCF") method, which incorporates significant estimates and assumptions made by management which, by their nature, are
characterized by uncertainty. Inputs used to fair value the Company's reporting units are considered inputs of the fair value hierarchy. For Level 3
measurements, significant increases or decreases in long-term growth rates or discount rates in isolation or in combination could result in a significantly lower
or higher fair value measurement. The key assumptions impacting the valuation included:

*  The Company's financial projections for its reporting units, which are based on management's assessment of regional and macroeconomic variables,
industry trends and market opportunities, and the Company's strategic objectives and future growth plans.

*  The projected terminal value for each reporting unit, which represents the present value of projected cash flows beyond the last period in the
discounted cash flow analysis. The terminal value reflects the Company's assumptions related to long-term growth rates and profitability, which are
based on several factors, including local and macroeconomic variables, market opportunities, and future growth plans.

*  The discount rate used to measure the present value of the projected future cash flows is set using a weighted-average cost of capital method that
considers market and industry data as well as the Company's specific risk factors that are likely to be considered by a market participant. The
weighted-average cost of capital is the Company's estimate of the overall after-tax rate of return required by equity and debt holders of a business
enterprise.

Based on the results of step one of the impairment test, the Company determined that the carrying value of the U.S. Spine reporting unit exceeded its
respective fair value, and accordingly, the Company proceeded to step two of the impairment test.

In the second step, the Company assigned the reporting unit's fair value to all of its assets and liabilities, including any unrecognized intangible assets, in a
hypothetical analysis that calculates the implied fair value of goodwill in the same manner as if the reporting unit were being acquired in a business
combination. If the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is less than the carrying value, the difference is recorded as an impairment charge. This
allocation process was performed only for the purposes of measuring the goodwill impairment and not to adjust the carrying values of the recognized tangible
assets and liabilities. Step two of the impairment test was initiated in the third quarter of 2013, but due to the time necessary to complete the analysis, was not
completed at that time. The Company recorded its estimate of the goodwill impairment charge of $46.7 million in the third quarter of 2013, which represented
the remaining goodwill balance in the U.S. Spine reporting unit. During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company finalized the step two analysis relating to its
impairment assessment of the goodwill and there were no changes to the impairment charge initially recorded. Approximately $16.2 million of the goodwill
impairment charge was deductible for tax purposes.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

u.s.
Spine
UsS. U.sS. UsS. and
Neurosurgery Instruments Extremities Other International Total
(In thousands)
Goodwill, gross $ 94,312 $ 57,514 $ 60,353 $ 56,219 $ 25,669 $ 294,067
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — — —
Goodwill at December 31, 2012 $ 94,312 $ 57,514 $ 60,353 $ 56,219 $ 25,669 $ 294,067
Tarsus Medical, Inc. acquisition — — 180 — — 180
Goodwill impairment charge — — — (46,738) — (46,738)
Foreign currency translation 853 519 546 106 231 2,255
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 95,165 $ 58,033 $ 61,079 $ 9,587 $ 25,900 $ 249,764

Identifiable intangible assets are initially recorded at fair market value at the time of acquisition generally using an income or cost approach. The Company
capitalizes costs incurred to renew or extend the term of recognized intangible assets and amortizes those costs over their expected useful lives.
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INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The components of the Company's identifiable intangible assets were as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Weighted Weighted
Average Accumulated Average Accumulated
Life Cost Amortization Net Life Cost Amortization Net
(Dollars in Thousands)
Completed technology 12 years $ 81,238 $ (45,343) $ 35,895 12years $ 75,692 $ (38,402) $ 37,290
Customer relationships 12 years 146,627 (79,624) 67,003 12 years 147,690 (70,005) 77,685
Trademarks/brand
names 31 years 33,703 (15,648) 18,055 31 years 33,807 (15,034) 18,773
Trademarks/brand
names Indefinite 48,484 — 48,484 Indefinite 48,484 — 48,484
Supplier relationships 27 years 34,721 (9,305) 25,416 27 years 34,721 (7,817) 26,904
All other M 5 years 4,251 (1,941) 2,310 4 years 4,519 (1,388) 3,131
$ 349,024 $ (151,861) $ 197,163 $ 344913 $ (132,646) $ 212,267

(1) At December 31, 2013 and 2012, all other included IPR&D of $1.4 million and $1.7 million, respectively, which was indefinite-lived.

The Company performs its assessment of the recoverability of indefinite-lived intangible assets annually during the second quarter, or more frequently as
impairment indicators arise, and it is based upon a comparison of the carrying value of such assets to their estimated fair values. The Company performed its
most recent annual assessment during the second quarter of 2013, which resulted in no additional impairments.

During 2013, the Company recorded impairment charges of $0.4 million in research and development expense related to IPR&D projects that have been
discontinued in its U.S Extremities segment.

During 2012, the Company recorded impairment charges of $0.1 million in cost of goods sold of its U.S. Neurosurgery segment related to technology assets
whose related products were being discontinued.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recorded impairment charges to finite-lived intangible assets of $2.1 million related to technology
assets whose related products were discontinued and $0.2 million related to a trade name that it no longer used because of the rebranding strategy. The
Company recorded the charges as a component of cost of goods sold and amortization expense, respectively. The Company also identified one indefinite-
lived trade name asset that it no longer used as a result of its rebranding strategy, which resulted in an impairment of $0.9 million. This charge was recorded
as a component of amortization expense.

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $19.4 million, $25.1 million and $24.6 million, respectively. Annual
amortization expense (including amounts reported in cost of product revenues, but excluding any possible future amortization associated with 1) acquired
IPR&D, and 2) intangible assets that may be capitalized as a result of our Confluent Surgical acquisition in January 2014 (see Note 16)), is expected to
approximate $18.4 million in 2014, $16.5 million in 2015, $14.3 million in 2016, $12.5 million in 2017 and $12.1 million in 2018. Amortization of product
technology based intangible assets totaled $6.7 million, $6.6 million and $8.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
and is presented by the Company within cost of goods sold.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Long-lived assets held and used by the Company, including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. For purposes of evaluating the recoverability of
long-lived assets to be held and used, a recoverability test is performed using projected undiscounted net cash flows applicable to the long-lived assets. If an
impairment exists, the amount of such impairment is calculated based on the estimated fair value of the asset. Impairments to long-lived assets to be disposed
of are recorded based upon the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the applicable assets.

INTEGRA FOUNDATION

The Company may periodically make contributions to the Integra Foundation, Inc. The Integra Foundation was incorporated in 2002 exclusively for
charitable, educational, and scientific purposes and qualifies under IRC 501(c)(3) as an exempt private foundation. Under its charter, the Integra Foundation
engages in activities that promote health, the diagnosis and treatment of disease, and the development of medical science through grants, contributions and
other appropriate means. The Integra Foundation is a separate legal entity and is not a subsidiary of the Company; therefore, its results are not included in
these consolidated financial
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statements. The Company contributed $0.6 million, $1.0 million and $0.3 million to the Integra Foundation during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. These contributions were recorded in selling, general, and administrative expense.

DERIVATIVES

The Company develops, manufactures, and sells medical devices globally, and its earnings and cash flows are exposed to market risk from changes in interest
rates and currency exchange rates. The Company addresses these risks through a risk management program that includes the use of derivative financial
instruments, and operates the program pursuant to documented corporate risk management policies. All derivative financial instruments are recognized in the
financial statements at fair value in accordance with the authoritative guidance. Under the guidance, for those instruments that are designated and qualify as
hedging instruments, the hedging instrument must be designated as a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge, or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation,
based on the exposure being hedged. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and
qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, further, on the type of hedging relationship. The Company's derivative instruments do not subject its earnings
or cash flows to material risk, and gains and losses on these derivatives generally offset losses and gains on the item being hedged. The Company has not
entered into derivative transactions for speculative purposes and from time to time, the Company may enter into derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments in order to protect itself from currency volatility due to intercompany balances.

All derivative instruments are recognized at their fair values as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company determines the fair value of its
derivative instruments, using the framework prescribed by the authoritative guidance, by considering the estimated amount the Company would receive to sell
or transfer these instruments at the reporting date and by taking into account: expected forward interest rates, currency exchange rates, the creditworthiness of
the counterparty for assets, and its creditworthiness for liabilities. In certain instances, the Company utilizes a discounted cash flow model to measure fair
value. Generally, the Company uses inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, other observable inputs for the asset or
liability and inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means. The Company has classified all of its
derivative assets and liabilities within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because observable inputs are available for substantially the full term of its
derivative instruments. The Company classifies derivatives that meet the definition of hedges in the same category as the item being hedged for cash flow
presentation purposes.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

All assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries which have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are translated at the rate of exchange at year-end,
while elements of the income statement are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during the year. The net effect of these translation adjustments is
shown as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). These currency translation adjustments are not currently adjusted for income taxes
as they relate to permanent investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are reported in other income (expense), net.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for by using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. A
valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period when the change is enacted.

The Company recognizes a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination based on the technical
merits of the position. Reserves are established for positions that don't meet this recognition threshold. The reserve is measured as the largest amount of
benefit determined on a cumulative probability basis that the Company believes is more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement of the position.
These reserves are classified as long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets of the Company. The Company also records interest and penalties
accrued in relation to uncertain tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

While the Company believes it has identified all reasonably identifiable exposures and the reserve it has established for identifiable exposures is appropriate
under the circumstances, it is possible that additional exposures exist and that exposures may be settled at amounts different than the amounts reserved. It is
also possible that changes in facts and circumstances could cause the Company to either materially increase or reduce the carrying amount of its tax reserve.

The Company's policy has been to leave its unremitted foreign earnings invested indefinitely outside the United States, and it intends to continue this policy.
As such, taxes have not been provided on any of the remaining accumulated foreign unremitted earnings. Where it has become apparent that some or all of
the undistributed earnings will be remitted in the foreseeable future, tax consequences are considered.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Total revenues, net, include product sales, product royalties and other revenues, such as fees received under research, licensing, distribution arrangements,
research grants, and technology-related royalties.
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Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred; title and risk of loss have passed to the customer, there is a
fixed or determinable sales price, and collectability of that sales price is reasonably assured. For product sales, the Company's stated terms are primarily FOB
shipping point and with most customers, title and risk of loss pass to the customer at that time. With certain United States customers, the Company retains risk
of loss until the customers receive the product, and in those situations, the Company recognizes revenue upon receipt by the customer. A portion of the
Company's product revenue is generated from consigned inventory maintained at hospitals and distributors, and also from inventory physically held by field
sales representatives. For these types of products sales, the Company retains title until receiving appropriate notification that the product has been used or
implanted, at which time revenue is recognized.

Each revenue transaction is evidenced by either a contract with the customer or a valid purchase order and an invoice which includes all relevant terms of
sale. There are generally no significant customer acceptance or other conditions that prevent the Company from recognizing revenue in accordance with its
delivery terms. In certain cases, where the Company has performance obligations that are significant to the functionality of the product, the Company
recognizes revenue upon fulfillment of its obligation.

Sales invoices issued to customers contain the Company's price for each product or service. The Company performs a review of each specific customer's
credit worthiness and ability to pay prior to accepting them as a customer. Further, the Company performs periodic reviews of its customers' status
prospectively.

The Company records a provision for estimated returns and allowances on revenues in the same period as the related revenues are recorded. These estimates
are based on historical sales returns and discounts and other known factors. The provisions are recorded as a reduction to revenues.

The Company's return policy, as set forth in its product catalogs and sales invoices, requires the Company to review and authorize the return of product in
advance. Upon authorization, a credit will be issued for goods returned within a set amount of days from shipment, which is generally ninety days.

Product royalties are estimated and recognized in the same period that the royalty-based products are sold by the Company's strategic partners. The Company
estimates and recognizes royalty revenue based upon communication with licensees, historical information and expected sales trends. Differences between
actual revenues and estimated royalty revenues are adjusted in the period in which they become known, which is typically the following quarter. Historically,
such adjustments have not been significant.

Other operating revenues may include fees received under research, licensing, and distribution arrangements, technology-related royalties and research grants.
Non-refundable fees received under research, licensing and distribution arrangements or for the licensing of technology are recognized as revenue when
received if the Company has no continuing obligations to the other party. For those arrangements where the Company has continuing performance
obligations, revenue is recognized using the lesser of the amount of non-refundable cash received or the result achieved using the proportional performance
method of accounting based upon the estimated cost to complete these obligations. Research grant revenue is recognized when the related expenses are
incurred.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING FEES AND COSTS

Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are included in revenues. The related shipping and freight charges incurred by the Company are
included in cost of goods sold. Distribution and handling costs of $14.1 million, $13.6 million and $11.5 million were recorded in selling, general and
administrative expense during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Certain of the Company's medical devices, including monitoring systems and neurosurgical systems, are reusable and are designed to operate over long
periods of time. These products are sold with warranties which may extend for up to two years from date of purchase. The Company accrues estimated
product warranty costs at the time of sale based on historical experience. Any additional amounts are recorded when such costs are probable and can be
reasonably estimated. Accrued warranty expense of $0.3 million and $0.4 million is recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development costs, including salaries, depreciation, consultant and other external fees, and facility costs directly attributable to research and
development activities, are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

IPR&D recorded in connection with acquisitions represent the value assigned to acquired assets to be used in research and development activities and for
which there is no alternative use. Value is generally assigned to these assets based on the net present value of the projected cash flows expected to be
generated by those assets.

During 2013 the Company capitalized $0.3 million of IPR&D as a result of current-year acquisitions, and there was none capitalized in 2012.
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EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS AND OTHER EXIT-RELATED COSTS

The Company does not have a written severance plan, and it does not offer similar termination benefits to affected employees in all restructuring initiatives.
Accordingly, in situations where minimum statutory termination benefits must be paid to the affected employees, the Company records employee severance
costs associated with these restructuring activities in accordance with the authoritative guidance for non-retirement post-employment benefits. Charges
associated with these activities are recorded when the payment of benefits is probable and can be reasonably estimated. In all other situations where the
Company pays out termination benefits, including supplemental benefits paid in excess of statutory minimum amounts and benefits offered to affected
employees based on management's discretion, the Company records these termination costs in accordance with the authoritative guidance for exit or disposal
costs.

The timing of the recognition of charges for employee severance costs other than minimum statutory benefits depends on whether the affected employees are
required to render service beyond their legal notification period in order to receive the benefits. If affected employees are required to render service beyond
their legal notification period, charges are recognized ratably over the future service period. Otherwise, charges are recognized when management has
approved a specific plan and employee communication requirements have been met.

For leased facilities and equipment that have been abandoned, the Company records estimated lease losses based on the fair value of the lease liability, as
measured by the present value of future lease payments subsequent to abandonment, less the present value of any estimated sublease income on the cease-use
date. For owned facilities and equipment that will be disposed of, the Company records impairment losses based on fair value less costs to sell. The Company
also reviews the remaining useful life of long-lived assets following a decision to exit a facility and may accelerate depreciation or amortization of these
assets, as appropriate.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company applies the authoritative guidance for stock-based compensation. This guidance requires companies to recognize the expense related to the fair
value of their stock-based compensation awards. Stock-based compensation expense for stock option awards granted after January 1, 2006 was based on the
fair value on the grant date using the binomial distribution model. The Company recognized compensation expense for stock option awards, restricted stock
awards, performance stock awards and contract stock awards on a ratable basis over the requisite service period of the award. The long form method was used
in the determination of the windfall tax benefit in accordance with the guidance.

PENSION BENEFITS

Defined benefit pension plans cover certain employees and retirees in the U.K. and former employees in Germany. Various factors are considered in
determining the pension liability, including the number of employees expected to be paid their salary levels and years of service, the expected return on plan
assets, the discount rate used to determine the benefit obligations, the timing of benefit payments and other actuarial assumptions. If the actual results and
events for the pension plans differ from current assumptions, the benefit obligation may be over or under valued.

Retirement benefit plan assumptions are reassessed on an annual basis or more frequently if changes in circumstances indicate a re-evaluation of assumptions
are required. The key benefit plan assumptions are the discount rate and expected rate of return on plan assets. The discount rate is based on average rates on
bonds that matched the expected cash outflows of the benefit plans. The expected rate of return is based on historical and expected returns on the various
categories of plan assets.

Pension contributions are expected to be consistent over the next few years since the Germany and U.K. plans are frozen. Contributions to the plans during
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $0.8 million, $0.8 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, which are held
at major financial institutions, investment-grade marketable debt securities and trade receivables.

The Company's products are sold on an uncollateralized basis and on credit terms based upon a credit risk assessment of each customer. A portion of the
Company's trade receivables to customers outside the United States includes sales to foreign distributors, who then sell to government owned or supported
healthcare systems. The ongoing economic conditions in certain European countries, especially Greece, Ireland, Italy, Portugal and Spain remain uncertain.
Accounts receivable from customers in these countries was approximately $6.1 million at December 31, 2013, of which $0.7 million was reserved. At
December 31, 2012, the accounts receivable from customers in these countries was $4.3 million, of which $0.4 million was reserved.

None of the Company's customers accounted for 10% or more of the consolidated net sales during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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RECENTLY ISSUED AND ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On February 5, 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The objective of this standard is to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income. The amendment requires an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other amounts that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety
to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-reference other disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that provide additional detail
about those amounts. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a
balance sheet account (for example, inventory) instead of directly to income or expense in the same reporting period. This ASU is effective for fiscal years
and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2012 for public entities and its adoption did not have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

On July 17, 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-10, Inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (or Overnight Index Swap Rate) as a Benchmark
Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes. The revised standard allows entities to now use the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (which is the Overnight
Index Swap Rate, or OIS rate, in the U.S.) as a benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes under U.S. GAAP. Previously, only U.S. Treasury and
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) rates could be used as benchmark interest rates in hedge accounting. In issuing the new guidance, which became
effective July 17, 2013, the FASB responded to an increase in demand for hedging exposures to the OIS rate, driven partly by regulations that require
collateralization and central clearing of over-the-counter derivatives. The guidance allows entities to develop new hedging strategies but does not resolve
ineffectiveness issues that arise in existing LIBOR hedges when the OIS rate is used to discount future cash flows. The standard adoption did not have a
material impact on the Company's financial statements.

On July 18, 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. This updated guidance requires an unrecognized tax benefit to be presented in the financial statements as a
reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. To the extent the tax benefit is not
available at the reporting date under the governing tax law or if the entity does not intend to use the deferred tax asset for such purpose, the unrecognized tax
benefit should be presented as a liability and not combined with deferred tax assets. This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those
years beginning after December 15, 2013 for public entities. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments are to be applied to all unrecognized tax benefits
that exist as of the effective date and may be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented. The standard adoption will not have a material
impact on the Company's financial statements.

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In addition to the payment of accreted interest associated with the settlement of the 2012 Convertible Notes, cash paid for interest during the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $9.5 million (net of $3.2 million that was capitalized into construction in progress), $12.0 million (net of $2.1 million
that was capitalized into construction in progress) and $13.2 million, respectively.

Cash paid for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $7.6 million, $12.7 million and $14.5 million, respectively.
Property and equipment purchases included in liabilities at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $8.6 million, $9.5 million and $6.4 million, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 the Company entered into a capital lease for equipment in the amount of $1.6 million.

2A. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND REALIGNMENT OF SEGMENT REVENUES

Change in Accounting_Principle

In the first quarter of 2014, the Company changed its method of accounting for the medical device excise tax (“MDET?). Prior to the change the Company
recorded the MDET in inventory at the time of the first sale and then recognized the tax in cost of goods sold when the medical device was sold to the
ultimate customer. Under the new method, the MDET will be recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the period the first sale occurs,
which could be an intercompany sale.

The Company believes that this change in accounting principle is preferable as the new method provides a better comparison with the Company's industry
peers, the majority of which expense the MDET at the time of the first sale.



INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The medical device excise tax applies to sales beginning January 1, 2013; therefore, only 2013 financial results were affected by this change. Accordingly, the
2013 results included herein have been revised to reflect the retrospective application of the change in accounting principle had the new method been in effect
that year, as follows:

Consolidated Statements of Operations:

Year ended December 31, 2013

Originally As
Reported Adjustments Adjusted
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Cost of goods sold $ 334,085 $ (7,040) $ 327,045
Selling, general and administrative 394,250 13,552 407,802
Income tax expense (benefit) (7,813) (2,422) (10,235)
Net income (loss) (16,977) (4,090) (21,067)
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ (0.60) $ (0.74)
Diluted net income (loss) per common share (0.60) (0.74)

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income:

Year ended December 31, 2013

Originally As
Reported Adjustments Adjusted
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Net income (loss) $ (16,977) $ (4,090) $ (21,067)
Comprehensive income (loss) (11,253) (4,090) (15,343)

Consolidated Balance Sheets:

December 31, 2013

Originally As
Reported Adjustments Adjusted
(In thousands)
Inventories $ 213,431 $ (6,512) $ 206,919
Deferred tax assets - current 46,300 2,316 48,616
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 26,752 106 26,858
Retained earnings 285,046 (4,090) 280,956

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

Year ended December 31, 2013

Originally As
Reported Adjustments Adjusted
(In thousands)
Net income (loss) $ (16,977) $ (4,000) $ (21,067)
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) (10,829) (2,316) (13,145)
Inventories (42,017) 6,512 (35,505)
Prepaid and other current assets 4,929 (106) 4,823
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Realignment of Segment Revenues

In the first quarter of 2014 the Company realigned certain products between operating segments. The Company did not change its management structure and
has determined that the Company still has the same five reportable segments. The impact of this immaterial change on all periods presented is that (i) the
revenues and segment profit of the U.S. Extremities segment is lower, and U.S. Instruments and U.S. Spine and Other segments are higher, and (ii) the global
revenues of the Orthopedics product category is lower and the Instruments product category is higher. These changes have been reflected in all periods
presented. There has been no change in the Company's net revenues reported.

3. ACQUISITIONS AND PRO FORMA RESULTS
Tarsus Medical Inc.

On January 24, 2013, the Company acquired all outstanding preferred and common stock of Tarsus Medical, Inc. ("Tarsus") for a total of $4.7 million
consisting of $3.1 million in cash (including working capital adjustments of $0.2 million) and contingent consideration with an estimated acquisition date fair
value of approximately $1.6 million. The potential maximum undiscounted contingent consideration consists of a first milestone payment of up to $1.5
million and a second payment of up to $11.5 million. These payments are based on reaching certain sales thresholds of acquired products. Tarsus is a podiatry
device company addressing clinical needs associated with diseases and injuries of the foot and ankle.

The following summarizes the final allocation of the purchase price based on fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Final Purchase Price
Allocation

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash $ 85

Prepaid expenses 13

Intangible assets: Wtd. Avg, Life:
Technology 5,040 10 - 14 years
In-process research and development 340 Indefinite

Deferred tax asset - long term 1,334

Goodwill 116
Total assets acquired 6,928

Accounts payable and other liabilities 111

Deferred tax liability 2,152

Net assets acquired $ 4,665

Management determined the preliminary fair value of net assets acquired during the first quarter of 2013 and finalized the working capital adjustment in the
second quarter of 2013. The Company accounts for the contingent consideration by recording its fair value as a liability on the date of the acquisition and re-
measuring the fair value at each reporting date until the contingency is resolved. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in
earnings. Accordingly, on January 24, 2013 the Company recorded $1.6 million representing the initial fair value estimate of the contingent consideration that
will be earned through December 31, 2015. The fair value of this liability is based on future sales projections of the Tarsus Medical product under various
potential scenarios and weighting the probability of these outcomes for the period ended December 31, 2015. At the date of the acquisition, the first milestone
cash flow projection was discounted using a rate of 4.3% based on an estimated after tax cost of debt; the second milestone cash flow projection was
discounted using a weighted average cost of capital of 16.5%. These fair value measurements were based on significant inputs not observed in the market and
thus represented a Level 3 measurement.

At December 31, 2013 the carrying value of the second milestone was reduced to zero as management determined that the probability was remote that the
underlying sales threshold needed to warrant a payment would be achieved. Additionally, the carrying value of the first milestone was increased to reflect the
change in the time value of money during the period. A reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances of these Level 3 measurements are as
follows (dollars in thousands):
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Location in Statement of Operations

Balance as of January 1, 2013 $ =
Contingent consideration from Tarsus acquisition 1,600
Gain from decrease in fair value of contingent consideration liability (373) Selling, general and administrative
Fair value at December 31, 2013 $ 1,227

The goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is based on (i) expected cost savings, operating synergies and other benefits expected to result from
the combined operations, (ii) the value of the going-concern element of Tarsus’ existing business (that is, the higher rate of return on the assembled net assets
versus if the Company had acquired all of the net assets separately), and (iii) intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition such as Tarsus’
assembled workforce. The goodwill acquired will not be deductible for tax purposes.

The impact of the Tarsus acquisition is not material to the consolidated operating results of the Company; therefore, the pro-forma impact of the acquisition
has not been presented.
Ascension Orthopedics, Inc.

On September 23, 2011, the Company acquired Ascension Orthopedics, Inc. (“Ascension”) for $66.0 million, which includes amounts paid for working
capital adjustments of $0.2 million less amounts received from escrow of $0.7 million. Ascension, based in Austin, Texas, develops and distributes a range of
implants for the shoulder, elbow, wrist, hand, foot and ankle.

The following summarizes the final allocation of the purchase price based on fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Final
Purchase Price
Allocation

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash $ 627

Inventory 12,760

Accounts receivable 2,917

Other current assets 2,398

Property, plant and equipment 4,649

Other long-term assets 70

Deferred tax asset — long term 12,543

Intangible assets: Wwtd. Avg, Life:
Technology 7,885 10 years
Customer relationships 5,750 12 years
In-process research and development 1,739 Indefinite
Supplier relationship 4,510 10 years
Trade name 560 1 year

Goodwill 15,460
Total assets acquired 71,868

Accounts payable and other liabilities 5,827

Net assets acquired $ 66,041

Management determined the preliminary fair value of net assets acquired during the third quarter of 2011 and finalized the working capital adjustment in the
second quarter of 2012. Measurement period adjustments included above reflected a decrease in the total fair value of inventory acquired and a decrease in
the value of long-term deferred tax assets acquired which was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2011. The measurement period adjustments were made to
reflect facts and circumstances existing as of the acquisition date, and did not result from intervening events subsequent to the acquisition date. These
adjustments did not have a significant impact on the Company’s previously reported consolidated financial statements and, therefore, the Company has not
retrospectively adjusted those financial statements.
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The goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is based on (i) expected cost savings, operating synergies and other benefits expected to result from
the combined operations, (ii) the value of the going-concern element of Ascension’s existing business (that is, the higher rate of return on the assembled net
assets versus if the Company had acquired all of the net assets separately), and (iii) intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition such as
Ascension’s assembled workforce. The goodwill acquired will not be deductible for tax purposes.

SeaSpine, Inc.

On May 23, 2011, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of SeaSpine, Inc. (“SeaSpine) for $88.7 million, which includes amounts paid
for working capital adjustments of $0.3 million and indemnification holdbacks totaling $7.4 million all of which was released to the seller prior to
December 31, 2013. SeaSpine is based in Vista, California and designs, develops and manufactures spinal fixation products and synthetic bone substitute
products.

The following summarizes the final allocation of the purchase price based on fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Final
Purchase Price
Allocation

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash $ 201

Inventory 14,900

Accounts receivable 7,608

Other current assets 623

Property, plant and equipment 9,177

Deferred tax asset—long term 302

Intangible assets: Wtd. Avg, Life:
Technology 3,000 8 years
Customer relationships 41,200 13 years
Non-compete agreements 1,900 4 years
Trade name 300 1 year

Goodwill 14,572
Total assets acquired 93,783

Accounts payable and other liabilities 5,108

Net assets acquired $ 88,675

Management determined the preliminary fair value of net assets acquired during the second quarter of 2011 and finalized the working capital adjustment in
the first quarter of 2012. Measurement period adjustments included above reflect a decrease in the total fair value of consideration to be transferred pursuant
to the final working capital adjustment. These measurement period adjustments were made to reflect facts and circumstances existing as of the acquisition
date, and did not result from intervening events subsequent to the acquisition date. This adjustment did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
previously reported consolidated financial statements and, therefore, the Company has not retrospectively adjusted those financial statements.

The goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is based on the benefits the Company expects to generate from SeaSpine’s future cash flows. For
tax purposes, the Company is treating the acquisition as an asset acquisition; therefore, the goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes.

Pro Forma Results (unaudited),

The following unaudited pro forma financial information summarizes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 as if the acquisitions
completed by the Company during 2011 had been completed as of January 1, 2010. The pro forma results are based upon certain assumptions and estimates,
and they give effect to actual operating results prior to the acquisitions and adjustments to reflect (i) increased interest expense, depreciation expense,
intangible asset amortization and fair value inventory step-up, (ii) decreases in certain expenses that will not be recurring in the post-acquisition entity, and
(iii) income taxes at a rate consistent with the Company’s statutory rate. No effect has been given to other cost reductions or operating synergies. As a result,
these pro forma results do not necessarily represent results that would have occurred if the acquisitions had taken place on the basis assumed above, nor are
they indicative of the results of future combined operations.
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Year Ended
December 31, 2011

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Total Revenue $ 811,933
Net income $ 23,236
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.80
Diluted $ 0.79
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4. DEBT

Amended and Restated Senior Credit Agreement

On August 10, 2010, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with a syndicate of lending banks (the “Senior Credit Facility™),
and subsequently amended the Senior Credit Facility on June 8, 2011, May 11, 2012, and June 21, 2013.

The June 8, 2011 amendment:

i.  increased the revolving credit component from $450 million to $600 million and eliminated the $150 million term loan component that existed under
the original amended and restated credit agreement;

ii. allows the Company to further increase the size of the revolving credit component by an aggregate of $200 million with additional commitments;
iii. provides the Company with decreased borrowing rates and annual commitment fees, and provides more favorable financial covenants; and
iv. extended the maturity date from August 10, 2015 to June 8, 2016.

On May 11, 2012, the Company entered into another amendment to the Senior Credit Facility (the “2012 Amendment”). The 2012 Amendment modified
certain financial and negative covenants. The 2012 Amendment provides that the Company’s Maximum Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio (a measure of net
debt to consolidated EBITDA, in each case as defined in the Senior Credit Facility, as amended) during any consecutive four quarter period should not be
greater than 3.75 to 1.00 during any such period ending on December 31, 2013 (instead of March 31, 2012). In addition, when calculating consolidated
EBITDA for any period, the 2012 Amendment permits the addition of certain costs and expenses in the calculation of consolidated net income for such
period, to the extent deducted in the calculation of consolidated net income. The Company capitalized $0.4 million of incremental financing costs in
connection with the 2012 Amendment.

On June 21, 2013, the Company entered into another amendment to the Senior Credit Facility (the “2013 Amendment”). The 2013 Amendment modified
certain financial and negative covenants and increased the Company’s Maximum Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio (a measure of net debt to consolidated
EBITDA, in each case as defined in the Senior Credit Facility, as amended) to 4.25 through June 30, 2014, with a step-down to 4.00 through March 31, 2015,
and then with another step-down to 3.75 thereafter. In addition, when calculating consolidated EBITDA for any period, the 2013 Amendment permits the
addition of certain costs and expenses in the calculation of consolidated net income for such period, to the extent deducted in the calculation of consolidated
net income. The effect of the 2013 Amendment is to increase the ability of the Company to borrow under the Senior Credit Facility during the affected
periods. The Company capitalized $1.1 million of incremental financing costs in connection with the 2013 Amendment, which will be amortized through the
maturity date of the Senior Credit Facility.

The Senior Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries, excluding intangible assets. The Senior Credit
Facility is subject to various financial and negative covenants and at December 31, 2013, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility currently bear interest, at the Company’s option, at a rate equal to (i) the Eurodollar Rate (as defined in the Senior
Credit Facility, which definition has not changed) in effect from time to time plus the applicable rate (ranging from 1.00% to 1.75%) or (ii) the highest of
(x) the weighted average overnight Federal funds rate, as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, plus 0.5%, (y) the prime lending rate of Bank
of America, N.A. or (z) the one-month Eurodollar Rate plus 1.0%. The applicable rates are based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio (defined
as the ratio of (a) consolidated funded indebtedness less cash in excess of $40 million that is not subject to any restriction of the use or investment thereof to
(b) consolidated EBITDA) at the time of the applicable borrowing.

The Company will also pay an annual commitment fee (ranging from 0.15% to 0.30%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio) on the daily
amount by which the revolving credit facility exceeds the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the credit facility.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, there was $186.9 million and $321.9 million outstanding, respectively, under the Senior Credit Facility at a weighted
average interest rate of 2.0% and 1.8%, respectively. At December 31, 2013, there was approximately $413.1 million available for borrowing under the Senior
Credit Facility. The fair value of outstanding borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility at December 31, 2013 was approximately $187.7 million. The fair
value of the Senior Credit Facility was determined by using a discounted cash flow model based on current market interest rates available to the Company.
These inputs are corroborated by observable market data for similar liabilities and therefore classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Level 2
inputs represent inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly and are other than active market observable
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inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities. The Company considers the balance to be long term in nature based on its current
intent and ability to repay the borrowing outside of the next twelve-month period.

2016 Convertible Senior Notes

On June 15, 2011, the Company issued $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 1.625% Convertible Senior Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes”). The
2016 Notes mature on December 15, 2016, and bear interest at a rate of 1.625% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on December 15 and June 15 of
each year. The portion of the debt proceeds that was classified as equity at the time of the offering was $43.2 million, an equivalent of that amount is being
amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method through December 2016. The effective interest rate implicit in the liability component is
5.6%.

At December 31, 2013, the carrying amount of the liability component was $205.2 million, the remaining unamortized discount was $24.8 million, and the
principal amount outstanding was $230.0 million. At December 31, 2012, the carrying amount of the liability component was $197.7 million, the remaining
unamortized discount was $32.3 million and the principal amount outstanding was $230.0 million.

The fair value of the 2016 Notes at December 31, 2013 was approximately $252.4 million. The fair value of the liability of the 2016 Notes was determined
using a discounted cash flow model based on current market interest rates available to the Company. These inputs are corroborated by observable market data
for similar liabilities and therefore classified within Level 2 of the fair-value hierarchy.

The 2016 Notes are senior, unsecured obligations of the Company, and are convertible into cash and, if applicable, shares of its common stock based on an
initial conversion rate, subject to adjustment of 17.4092 shares per $1,000 principal amount of 2016 Notes (which represents an initial conversion price of
approximately $57.44 per share). The Company will satisfy any conversion of the 2016 Notes with cash up to the principal amount of the 2016 Notes
pursuant to the net share settlement mechanism set forth in the indenture and, with respect to any excess conversion value, with shares of the Company’s
common stock. The 2016 Notes are convertible only in the following circumstances: (1) if the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock exceeds
150% of the conversion price during a period as defined in the indenture; (2) if the average trading price per $1,000 principal amount of the 2016 Notes is less
than or equal to 98% of the average conversion value of the 2016 Notes during a period as defined in the indenture; (3) at any time on or after June 15, 2016;
or (4) if specified corporate transactions occur. The issue price of the 2016 Notes was equal to their face amount, which is also the amount holders are entitled
to receive at maturity if the 2016 Notes are not converted. As of December 31, 2013, none of these conditions existed with respect to the 2016 Notes and as a
result, the 2016 Notes are classified as long term.

In connection with the issuance of the 2016 Notes, the Company entered into call transactions and warrant transactions, primarily with affiliates of the initial
purchasers of such notes (the “hedge participants”). The initial strike price of the call transaction is approximately $57.44 per share, subject to customary anti-
dilution adjustments. The initial strike price of the warrant transaction is approximately $70.05 per share, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments.

2012 Senior Convertible Notes

On June 11, 2007, the Company issued $165.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 2012 Notes (the “2012 Notes”). The 2012 Notes bear interest at a rate
of 2.375% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on December 1 and June 1 of each year. In accordance with the accounting guidance for debt with
conversion and other options, the Company accounted for the liability and equity components of the 2012 Notes separately. The portion of the debt proceeds
that the Company had classified as equity at the time of the offering, and recognized as a debt discount, was determined based on the fair value of similar debt
instruments that did not include a conversion feature and amounted to $30.6 million. The Company amortized the debt discount to interest expense using the
effective interest method through June 2012. The effective interest rate implicit in the liability component was based on the Company’s estimated non-
convertible borrowing rate at the date the 2012 Notes were issued and was 6.8%.

In connection with the issuance of the 2012 Notes, the Company entered into call transactions and warrant transactions, primarily with affiliates of the initial
purchasers of such notes (the “hedge participants”). The total cost of the call transactions to the Company was approximately $30.4 million and the Company
received approximately $12.2 million of proceeds from the warrant transactions. The call transactions involve the Company’s purchasing call options from
the hedge participants, and the warrant transactions involve the Company’s selling call options to the hedge participants with a higher strike price than the
purchased call options.

In June 2012, the Company repaid the 2012 Notes at maturity with long-term borrowings from its Senior Credit Facility and cash on hand. The related bond
hedge contracts terminated in components over the 100 trading day period commencing 90 days after the maturity of the 2012 Notes.
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Convertible Note Interest

The interest expense components of the Company’s convertible notes are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

2016 Notes:
Amortization of the discount on the liability component (1) $ 6,463 $ 5993 % 3,740
Cash interest related to the contractual interest coupon (2) 3,218 3,154 2,024

Total $ 9,681 $ 9,147 $ 5,764
2012 Notes:
Amortization of the discount on the liability component (1) $ — % 2,527 $ 6,850
Cash interest related to the contractual interest coupon (2) — 1,378 3,919

Total $ — 3 3905 $ 10,769

(1) In 2013, the amortization of the discount on the liability component of the 2016 Note is presented net of capitalized interest of $1.0 million. In 2012, the
amortization of the discount on the liability component of the 2016 and 2012 Notes are presented net of capitalized interest of $1.1 million and $0.5
million, respectively.

(2) In 2013, the cash interest related to the contractual interest coupon on the 2016 Note is presented net of capitalized interest of $0.5 million. In 2012, the
cash interest related to the contractual interest coupon on the 2016 and 2012 Notes are presented net of capitalized interest of $0.6 million and $0.3
million, respectively.

5. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Interest Rate Hedging

The Company’s interest rate risk relates to U.S. dollar denominated variable LIBOR interest rate borrowings. The Company uses an interest rate swap
derivative instrument entered into on August 10, 2010 with an effective date of December 31, 2010 to manage its earnings and cash flow exposure to changes
in interest rates by converting a portion of its floating-rate debt into fixed-rate debt beginning on December 31, 2010. This interest rate swap expires on
August 10, 2015.

The Company designates this derivative instrument as a cash flow hedge. The Company records the effective portion of any change in the fair value of a
derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge as unrealized gains or losses in accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”), net of tax, until
the hedged item affects earnings, at which point the effective portion of any gain or loss will be reclassified to earnings. If the hedged cash flow does not
occur, or if it becomes probable that it will not occur, the Company will reclassify the amount of any gain or loss on the related cash flow hedge to interest
expense at that time.

The Company expects that approximately $1.7 million of pre-tax losses recorded as net in AOCI related to the interest rate hedge could be reclassified to
earnings within the next twelve months.

Foreign Currency Hedging

From time to time the Company enters into foreign currency hedge contracts intended to protect the U.S. dollar value of certain forecasted foreign currency
denominated transactions. The Company records the effective portion of any change in the fair value of foreign currency cash flow hedges in AOCI, net of
tax, until the hedged item affects earnings. Once the related hedged item affects earnings, the Company reclassifies the effective portion of any related
unrealized gain or loss on the foreign currency cash flow hedge to earnings. If the hedged forecasted transaction does not occur, or if it becomes probable that
it will not occur, the Company will reclassify the amount of any gain or loss on the related cash flow hedge to earnings at that time.

The success of the Company’s hedging program depends, in part, on forecasts of certain activity denominated in euros. The Company may experience
unanticipated currency exchange gains or losses to the extent that there are differences between forecasted and actual activity during periods of currency
volatility. In addition, changes in currency exchange rates related to any unhedged transactions may affect its earnings and cash flows.

Counterparty Credit Risk

The Company manages its concentration of counterparty credit risk on its derivative instruments by limiting acceptable counterparties to a group of major
financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings, and by actively monitoring their credit ratings and outstanding positions on an ongoing basis.
Therefore, the Company considers the credit risk of the counterparties
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to be low. Furthermore, none of the Company’s derivative transactions are subject to collateral or other security arrangements, and none contain provisions
that depend upon the Company’s credit ratings from any credit rating agency.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The Company has classified all of its derivative instruments within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because observable inputs are available for
substantially the full term of the derivative instruments. The fair value of the foreign currency forward exchange contracts related to inventory purchases is
determined by comparing the forward rate as of the period end and the settlement rate specified in each contract. The fair value of the interest rate swap was
developed using a market approach based on publicly available market yield curves and the terms of the swap. The Company performs ongoing assessments
of counterparty credit risk.

The following table summarizes the fair value, notional amounts presented in U.S. dollars, and presentation in the consolidated balance sheet for derivatives
designated as hedging instruments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

Fair Value as of December 31,

Location on Balance Sheet ®: 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Derivatives designated as hedges — Liabilities:

Interest rate swap — Accrued expenses and other current liabilities @) $ 1,676 $ 1,888
Interest rate swap — Other liabilities 763 2,238
Total Derivatives designated as hedges — Liabilities $ 2439 $ 4,126

(@ The Company classifies derivative assets and liabilities as current based on the cash flows expected to be incurred within the following 12 months.
@ At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the notional amount related to the Company’s sole interest rate swap was $112.5 million and $127.5
million, respectively. In the next 12 months, the Company expects to reduce the notional amount by $15.0 million.

The following presents the effect of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations during
the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Amount of Amount of Gain (Loss)
Gain (Loss) Reclassified from
Balance in AOCI Recognized in AOCI into Location in
Beginning of AOCI- Earnings-(Effective Balance in AOCI Statements of
Year (Effective Portion) Portion) End of Year Operations

(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Foreign currency forward contracts $ (34 $ 142§ 108 $ —  Costs of goods sold
Interest rate swap (4,125) (252) (1,938) (2,439) Interest (expense)
$ 4,159) $ (110) $ (1,830) $ (2,439)
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Foreign currency forward contracts $ (216) $ 127) $ (309) $ (34) Costs of goods sold
Interest rate swap (4,091) (1,935) (1,901) (4,125) Interest (expense)
$ 4,307) $ (2,062) $ (2,210) $ (4,159)

The Company recognized no gains or losses resulting from ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. At
December 31, 2012, there were foreign currency contracts outstanding not designated as hedges with the notional amount equivalent to $3.9 million.
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6. TREASURY STOCK

On October 23, 2012, the Company's Board of Directors terminated the October 2010 authorization and authorized the repurchase of up to $75.0 million of its
outstanding common stock through December 2014 (the "2012 Authorization"). As of December 31, 2013, there remained $75.0 million available for
repurchases under this authorization.

In addition to the authorizations above, on June 3, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors separately authorized the Company to repurchase shares of
common stock from the proceeds of the 2016 Notes in connection with that offering.

There were no treasury stock repurchases during the years ended December 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

7. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock-based compensation expense - all related to employees - recognized under the authoritative guidance was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Selling, general and administrative $ 9,948 $ 8,646 $ 26,310
Research and development 355 335 404
Cost of goods sold 90 70 91
Total stock-based compensation expense 10,393 9,051 26,805
Total estimated tax benefit related to stock-based compensation expense 4,018 3,532 10,468
Net effect on net income $ 6,375 $ 5519 §$ 16,337

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The purpose of the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) is to provide eligible employees of the Company with the opportunity to acquire shares of
common stock at periodic intervals by means of accumulated payroll deductions. Under the ESPP, a total of 1.5 million shares of common stock are reserved
for issuance. These shares will be made available either from the Company’s authorized but unissued shares of common stock or from shares of common
stock reacquired by the Company as treasury shares. At December 31, 2013, 1.0 million shares remain available for purchase under the ESPP. During the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company issued 6,309 shares, 6,315 shares and 8,523 shares under the ESPP for $0.3 million, $0.2
million and $0.2 million, respectively.

The ESPP was amended in 2005 to reduce the discount available to participants to five percent and to fix the price against which such discount would be
applied. Accordingly, the ESPP is a non-compensatory plan.

EQUITY AWARD PLANS

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had stock options, restricted stock awards, performance stock awards, contract stock awards and restricted stock unit
awards outstanding under three plans, the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”), the 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan”), and the 2003
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan,” and collectively, (the “Plans”).

In July 2008 and May 2010, the stockholders of the Company approved amendments to the 2003 Plan to increase by 750,000 and 1,750,000, respectively, the
number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the 2003 Plan. The Company has reserved 2,000,000 shares under each of the 2000 Plan and the
2001 Plan, and 6,500,000 shares under the 2003 Plan. The Plans permit the Company to grant incentive and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, contract stock, performance stock, or dividend equivalent rights to designated directors, officers, employees and associates of the
Company.

Stock options issued under the Plans become exercisable over specified periods, generally within four years from the date of grant for officers, directors and
employees, and generally expire six years from the grant date for employees and from six to ten years for directors and certain executive officers. Restricted
stock issued under the Plans vests over specified periods, generally three years after the date of grant.

Stock Options

The Company values stock option grants using the binomial distribution model. Management believes that the binomial distribution model is preferable to the
Black-Scholes model because the binomial distribution model is a more flexible model that considers the impact of non-transferability, and vesting provisions
in the valuation of employee stock options.

In determining the value of stock options granted, the Company considered that it has never paid cash dividends and does not currently intend to pay cash
dividends, and thus has assumed a 0% dividend yield. Expected volatilities are based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price with forward-
looking assumptions. The expected life of stock options is estimated based
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on historical data on exercise of stock options, post-vesting forfeitures and other factors to estimate the expected term of the stock options granted. The risk-
free interest rates are derived from the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect on the date of grant for instruments with a remaining term similar to the expected
life of the options. In addition, the Company applies an expected forfeiture rate when amortizing stock-based compensation expenses. The estimate of the
forfeiture rates is based primarily upon historical experience of employee turnover. As individual grant awards become fully vested, stock-based
compensation expense is adjusted to recognize actual forfeitures.

The following weighted-average assumptions were used in the calculation of fair value:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 31% 30% 28%
Risk free interest rate 1.52% 1.33% 2.47%
Expected life of option from grant date 8 years 8 years 8 years
The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity:
‘Weighted Average
Weighted Average Contractual Term in Aggregate Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Years Value
Stock Options (In thousands) (In thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,709 $ 37.76
Granted 32 36.50
Exercised (63) 33.36
Forfeited or Expired 39) 49.00
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,639 $ 37.64 3.2 years $ 16,755
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2013 1,639 §$ 37.64 3.2years $ 16,755
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 1,521  § 37.97 29 years $ 15,058

The intrinsic value of options exercised for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were negligible, and were $1.4 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $13.86,
$12.18 and $19.18, respectively. Cash received from option exercises was $2.3 million, $0.7 million and $3.7 million, for the years ended December 31,

2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, there was approximately $1.3 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested stock options. These costs are
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately one year.

Awards of Restricted Stock, Performance Stock and Contract Stock

The following table summarizes the Company’s awards of restricted stock, performance stock and contract stock for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Unvested, December 31, 2012

Granted
Cancellations
Released

Unvested, December 31, 2013

Restricted Stock Awards

Performance Stock and Contract Stock Awards

Weighted Average ‘Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Value Grant Date Fair Value
Shares Per Share Shares Per Share
(In thousands) (In thousands)
346 $ 37.80 199 $ 30.49
169 38.65 70 39.25
(34) 38.59 1) 35.68
(160) 39.43 4) 39.44
321§ 37.29 264 $ 32.74
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The Company recognized $9.2 million, $7.7 million and $24.5 million in expense related to such awards during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. The total fair market value of shares vested in 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $6.5 million, $6.7 million and $29.7 million, respectively.

Performance stock awards have performance features associated with them. Performance stock, restricted stock and contract stock awards generally have
requisite service periods of three years. The fair value of these awards is being expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. As of December 31,
2013, there was approximately $11.1 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested awards. These costs are expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of approximately two years.

On June 7, 2012, the Company's former CEO terminated his employment with the Company and ceased to serve as Executive Chairman of the Board of
Directors and as an officer or employee of the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates. The Company's former CEO continues to serve as Chairman of the
Board of Directors and as a non-employee member of the Board. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company distributed to him in the form of shares of its
common stock 1.67 million deferred stock units (“SUs”), less shares withheld for taxes, as a result of the termination of his employment.

At December 31, 2013, there are approximately 0.2 million additional vested Restricted Units held by various employees for which the related shares have
not yet been issued. Included in this amount are 34,868 units granted in October 2010 in connection with the Company’s hiring of its Chief Executive Officer
for which the Company immediately expensed $1.5 million as these shares were fully vested at the date of grant.

At December 31, 2013, there were approximately 2.0 million shares available for grant under the Plans.
8. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains defined benefit pension plans that cover employees in its manufacturing plants located in Andover, United Kingdom (the “UK Plan”)
and Tuttlingen, Germany (the “Germany Plan”). The Company closed the Tuttlingen, Germany plant in December 2005. The Company did not terminate the
Germany Plan, and the Company remains obligated for the accrued pension benefits related to this plan. The plans cover certain current and former
employees.

Effective March 31, 2011, the Company froze the benefits due to the participants of the UK Plan in their entirety; this curtailment resulted in a $0.3 million
reduction in the projected benefit obligations which the Company recorded on that date. The Company recorded the entire curtailment gain as an offset to the
unrecognized net actuarial loss in accumulated other comprehensive income; therefore, this gain had no impact on the consolidated statements of operations.

Net periodic benefit costs for the Company’s defined benefit pension plans included the following amounts:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Service cost $ — — % 26
Interest cost 556 582 650
Expected return on plan assets (407) (392) (589)
Recognized net actuarial loss 2 — —

Net period benefit cost $ 151  $ 190 $ 87

The following weighted average assumptions were used to develop net periodic pension benefit cost and the actuarial present value of projected pension
benefit obligations:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.4% 4.2% 4.7%
Expected return on plan assets 3.6% 3.0% 2.9%
Rate of compensation increase 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The discount rate is set using the Bank of America Merrill Lynch AA Corporate Bond yield curve weighted by the UK benefit plan cash flows for the year
ending December 31, 2013. The expected return on plan assets represents the average rate of return
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expected to be earned on plan assets over the period the benefits included in the benefit obligation are to be paid. In developing the expected rate of return, the
Company considers long-term compound annualized returns of historical market data as well as actual returns on the plan assets and applies adjustments that
reflect more recent capital market experience. Using this reference information, the long-term return expectations for each asset category are developed
according to the allocation among those investment categories. In 2013, 2012 and 2011, the discount rate was prescribed as the current yield on corporate
bonds with an average rating of AA of equivalent currency and term to the liabilities.

The following sets forth the change in projected benefit obligations and the change in plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and a
reconciliation of the funded status at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

CHANGE IN PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 13,918 $ 12,556

Interest cost 556 582

Benefits paid (506) (604)

Actuarial loss 881 807

Effect of foreign currency exchange rates 333 577

Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 15,182 $ 13,918
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS

Plan assets at fair value, beginning of year $ 14,080 $ 13,226

Actual return on plan assets (6) 41

Employer contributions 826 797

Benefits paid (493) (591)

Effect of foreign currency exchange rates 287 607

Plan assets at fair value, end of year $ 14,694 $ 14,080

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDED STATUS
Funded status - (under) over funded $ (488) $ 162
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 2,911 1,512
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,911) (1,512)
Amounts recognized $ (488) $ 162

The funded status is included in other liabilities, and other assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The combined accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit plans was $15.2 million and $13.9 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

The investment strategy for the Company’s defined benefit plans is both to meet the liabilities of the plans as they fall due and to maximize the return on
invested assets within appropriate risk tolerances. The UK Plan invests in pooled funds which provide a diversification that supports the overall investment
objectives. The Germany Plan had no assets at December 31, 2013 or 2012.

Based on the assets which comprise each of the funds, the weighted-average allocation of plan assets by asset category is as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012
Government bonds 100% 99%
Cash 0% 1%
100% 100%
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The fair value of the Company’s pension plan assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable
Manager/Fund Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
(In thousands)

Bank account Cash $ 8 $ 8 $ — % —
Legal & General Index-Linked Gilts Index (various Index-linked

tenors) @ government bonds 12,630 — 12,630 —
Legal & General Over 15 Years Gilts Index ® Government bonds 2,056 — 2,056 —
Total $ 14,694 $ 8 $ 14,686 $ —

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable
Manager/Fund Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
(In thousands)

Bank account Cash $ 195 $ 195 $ —  $ —
Legal & General Index-Linked Gilts Index (various Index-linked

tenors) @ government bonds 11,909 — 11,909 —
Legal & General Over 15 Years Gilts Index ® Government bonds 1,976 — 1,976 —
Total $ 14,080 $ 195 $ 13,885 $ —

(a) This category represents funds consisting of index-linked gilts and is designated to follow a benchmark index.
(b) This category represents funds consisting of gilts and is designated to follow a benchmark index.

The Level 2 investments are single priced. The fund prices are calculated by the trustee by taking the closing market price of each underlying investment
using a variety of independent pricing sources (i.e., quoted market prices). The prices also include income receivable and expenses payable, where applicable.

Based on year-end exchange rates, the Company anticipates contributing approximately $0.9 million to its defined benefit plans in 2014.

Also based on year-end exchange rates, the Company expects to pay the following estimated future benefit payments in the years indicated:

Expected Future
Benefit Payments
(In thousands)

2014 $ 586
2015 613
2016 631
2017 647
2018 684
2019-2023 3,815

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income is $2.9 million of unrecognized net actuarial loss, a portion of which is expected to be recognized as a
component of net periodic benefit cost in 2014.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS
The Company also has various defined contribution savings plans that cover substantially all employees in the United States, the United Kingdom and Puerto

Rico. The Company matches a certain percentage of each employee’s contributions as per the provisions
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of the plans. Total contributions by the Company to the plans were $2.9 million, $2.7 million and $2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively.

9. LEASES AND RELATED PARTY LEASES
The Company leases administrative, manufacturing, research and distribution facilities and various manufacturing, office and transportation equipment

through operating lease agreements. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases at December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Related Parties Third Parties Total

(In thousands)

2014 $ 272 $ 11,828 $ 12,100
2015 272 9,617 9,889
2016 272 7,214 7,486
2017 272 4,608 4,880
2018 296 3,884 4,180
Thereafter 4,137 24,266 28,403
Total minimum lease payments $ 5521 $ 61,417 $ 66,938

Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and was $10.4 million, $10.9 million and $9.3 million, respectively, and included
$0.3 million, in related party rental expense in each of the three years.

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases at December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Payments under
capital leases
(In thousands)

2014 $ 569
2015 569
2016 569
Total minimum lease payments 1,707
Amount representing interest 132
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,575
Related Party Leases

The Company leases certain production equipment from a corporation whose sole stockholder is a general partnership, of which the Company’s former
Chairman (and current director) is a partner and the President. The term of the lease is through March 31, 2022, and the Company has an option to renew
through March 31, 2032. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the Company pays $0.1 million per year to the related party lessor. The Company also
leases its manufacturing facility in Plainsboro, New Jersey, from a general partnership that is 50% owned by a corporation whose shareholders are trusts,
whose beneficiaries include family members of the Company’s former Chairman (and current director). The term of the current lease agreement is through
October 31, 2032 at an annual rate of approximately $0.3 million per year. The current lease agreement also provides (i) a 5-year renewal option for the
Company to extend the lease from November 1, 2032 through October 31, 2037 at the fair market rental rate of the premises, and (ii) another 5-year renewal
option to extend the lease from November 1, 2037 through October 31, 2042 at the fair market rental rate of the premises.
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10. INCOME TAXES

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousand)
United States operations $ (33,162) $ 25293 $ 1,507
Foreign operations 1,860 26,736 26,987
Total $ (31,302) $ 52,029 $ 28,494

A reconciliation of the U.S. Federal statutory rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0 %
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 0.3 % 2.6 % 5.0 %
Foreign operations (17.2)% (14.7)% (11.5)%
Goodwill impairment 34.1 % —% —%
Changes in valuation allowances (1.D)% 0.4)% (14.0)%
Uncertain tax positions (8.5)% (2.5)% (5.8)%
Research and development credit (1.8)% —% 3.0)%
Return to provision (6.6)% (0.5)% (5.4)%
Other (1.5)% 1.3% 1.5%
Effective tax rate 32.7 % 20.8 % 1.8 %

The effective tax rate increased by 11.9 percentage points in 2013 compared with 2012 primarily due to an overall decrease in pretax income as a result of the
goodwill impairment, the introduction of the medical device excise tax in the U.S., and general operations of the Company, as well as a change in the mix of
earnings between the U.S. and overseas. The goodwill impairment primarily created a non-deductible tax event for the current year. The Company recorded
an income tax benefit in 2013 of $2.7 million for the release of tax contingency reserves, offset by the establishment of new tax contingency positions during
the year. Additionally, the Company recorded a tax benefit in the fourth quarter of 2013 of $1.0 million related to the correction of a deferred tax item relating
primarily to 2011; this amount is included in the return-to-provision line in the above table.

During 2013, the Company's foreign operations generated a $2.6 million increase in income tax expense as a result of, among other factors, the geographic
and business mix of taxable earnings and losses and the change of an income tax benefit in France as a result of a French tax law change that occurred on
December 30, 2013. The 2013 foreign effective tax rate is (60.6)%, a decrease of approximately 68 percentage points over the rate in 2012. The Company's
foreign tax rate is based upon statutory tax rates and is not related to a tax holiday or negotiated tax rate.

During 2012, the Company's foreign operations generated a $1.3 million income tax expense as a result of, among other factors, the geographic and business
mix of taxable earnings and losses. The Company's operations in Ireland contribute to the majority of this income tax benefit, as income earned in Ireland is
taxed at a corporate income tax rate that is significantly lower than the U.S. corporate rate. The 2012 foreign effective tax rate is 7.8%, an increase of
approximately 9.5 percentage points over the rate in 2011, which included a tax benefit of $1.6 million relating to the correction of various deferred tax items
for periods prior to 2011. The Company's foreign tax rate is based upon statutory tax rates and is not related to a tax holiday or negotiated tax rate.

During the second and fourth quarters of 2011, the Company recorded additional tax expense of $1.7 million for a correction to a state deferred tax asset
relating to 2009 and an income tax benefit of $2.2 million for the correction of various other deferred tax items relating to periods prior to 2011 that largely
impacted foreign operations, respectively. Since neither one of these changes are material to the December 31, 2011 or previous years' financial results, they
have been recorded in the second and fourth quarters of 2011 as discrete events, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company has not provided deferred U.S. income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on temporary differences of approximately
$190.7 million resulting from earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries which are permanently reinvested outside the U.S. The unrecognized deferred tax
liability associated with these temporary differences was estimated to be $30.9 million at December 31, 2013. Events that could trigger a need to repatriate
foreign cash to the U.S. and generate a tax might include U.S. acquisitions, loans from a foreign subsidiary, or anticipated tax law changes that are considered
unfavorable and would result in higher taxes on repatriations that occur after the change in tax law goes into effect.

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)

Current:

Federal $ 3,160 $ 3614 % (934)

State (1,374) 1,373 (1,530)

Foreign 1,124 4,301 1,813
Total current $ 2910 $ 9,288 $ (651)
Deferred:

Federal (13,817) 4,053 1,078

State (757) 497 2,236

Foreign 1,429 (3,013) (2,158)
Total deferred $ (13,145) $ 1,537 $ 1,156
Provision for income taxes $ (10,235) $ 10,825 $ 505

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.
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The income tax effects of significant temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities, shown before jurisdictional netting, are
presented below:

December 31,

2013 2012
(As adjusted)*

(In thousands)
Current assets:

Doubtful accounts $ 1,791  $ 1,829
Inventory related items 34,968 26,549
Tax credits 3,883 3,275
Accrued vacation 2,492 2,335
Accrued bonus 1,266 4,111
Net operating loss carryforwards 4,550 —
Other 1,960 4,095
Total current deferred tax assets 50,910 42,194
Less valuation allowance (2,232) (2,922)
Current deferred tax assets after valuation allowance $ 48,678 $ 39,272

Current liabilities:

Other (646) (314
Total current deferred tax liabilities $ (646) $ (314)
Net current deferred tax assets $ 48,032 $ 38,958
December 31,
2013 2012
(As adjusted)*

(In thousands)
Non-current assets:

Benefit and compensation $ — 3 (500)
Stock compensation 14,879 12,730
Deferred revenue 186 162
Net operating loss carryforwards 26,612 36,037
Federal & state tax credits 19,045 19,851
Other 897 —
Total non-current deferred tax assets 61,619 68,280
Less valuation allowance (6,828) (11,321)
Non-current deferred tax assets after valuation allowance $ 54,791  $ 56,959

Non-current liabilities:

Intangible & fixed assets (41,563) (46,650)
Other 105 359
Total non-current deferred tax liabilities $ (41,458) $ (46,291)
Net non-current deferred tax assets $ 13,333  $ 10,668
Total net deferred tax assets $ 61,365 $ 49,626

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.
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At December 31, 2013, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of $56.7 million for federal income tax purposes, $36.6 million for foreign income
tax purposes and $54.7 million for state income tax purposes to offset future taxable income. The federal net operating loss carryforwards expire through
2032, $18.9 million of the foreign net operating loss carryforwards expire through 2021 with the remaining $17.7 million having an indefinite carry forward
period. The state net operating loss carryforwards expire through 2032.

Deferred tax assets relating to tax benefits of employee stock option grants have been reduced to reflect exercises in 2012. Some exercises have resulted in tax
deductions in excess of previously recorded benefits based on the option value at the time of grant (“windfalls”). Although these additional tax benefits are
reflected in net operating tax loss carryforwards the additional tax benefit associated with the windfall is not recognized until the deduction reduces taxes
payable. Accordingly, since the tax benefit does not reduce our current taxes payable in 2012 due to net operating loss carryforwards, these “windfall” tax
benefits are not reflected in our net operating losses in deferred tax assets for 2012. Windfalls included in net operating loss carryforwards but not reflected in
deferred tax assets for 2012 are $0.1 million.

A valuation allowance of $9.1 million, $14.2 million and $32.3 million is recorded against the Company’s gross deferred tax assets of $112.5 million, $110.5
million, and $125.9 million at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The valuation allowance relates to deferred tax assets for certain items that will be deductible for income tax purposes under very limited circumstances and
for which the Company believes it is not more likely than not that it will realize the associated tax benefit. The Company does not anticipate additional
income tax benefits through future reductions in the valuation allowance. However, in the event that the Company determines that it would be able to realize
more or less than the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance would be recorded in the period
such a determination is made.

The Company’s valuation allowance decreased by $5.2 million, and $18.1 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively. The 2013 overall decrease in the valuation
allowance was primarily due to expiring net operating losses in Switzerland which is offset by a reduction in the related deferred tax asset. Further, the
Company recorded a decrease to the valuation allowance in Switzerland related to an increase in the expected future realizability of remaining net operating
losses.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of uncertain tax benefits is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Balance, beginning of year $ 6,136 $ 3,927 % 5,530
Gross increases:

Current year tax positions 349 — —

Prior years' tax positions 729 7,796 1,001
Gross decreases:

Prior years' tax positions 477) — —

Settlements — (3,523) (962)

Statute of limitations lapses (3,338) (2,064) (1,642)
Balance, end of year $ 3,399 $ 6,136 $ 3,927

Approximately $2.8 million of the balance at December 31, 2013 relates to uncertain tax positions that, if recognized, would affect the annual effective tax
rate. Included in the balance of uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2013 is $2.0 million related to tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the
total amounts could be reduced during the twelve months following December 31, 2013, as a result of expiring statutes of limitations.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties relating to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. The Company recognized a $0.8 million benefit, a
$0.1 million expense, and a $0.5 million benefit for interest and penalties in the income statement during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The Company had approximately $0.4 million, $1.4 million, and $1.3 million of interest and penalties accrued at December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

At December 31, 2012 the Company had a deferred tax asset and reserve for uncertain tax positions for $0.5 million related to research and development
credit from a prior business acquisition. It was determined in 2013 that this credit would not be realizable; therefore, the deferred tax asset was removed and
the corresponding reserve for uncertain tax positions was released thus impairing this acquired benefit.

During 2012, the Company settled the review of years 2008 through 2010 with the IRS, which resulted in $2.1 million being recorded in the consolidated
statement of operations as an income tax benefit, partially offset by an additional Federal income tax
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expense of $0.2 million in 2012, as a result of receiving the agreed upon settlement. In addition, the Company reclassified $4.2 million from deferred taxes to
long-term liabilities, which had no effect on the current year tax provision. These amounts include interest and penalties related to the settlement.

The Company files Federal income tax returns, as well as multiple state, local and foreign jurisdiction tax returns. The Company is no longer subject to
examinations of its Federal income tax returns by the IRS through fiscal year 2010. All significant state and local matters have been concluded through fiscal
2005. All significant foreign matters have been settled through fiscal 2007.

11. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Certain of the Company’s restricted unvested share units that were granted several years ago contained rights to receive nonforfeitable dividends, and thus,
were participating securities requiring the two-class method of computing earnings per share. The participating securities had an insignificant impact on the
calculation of earnings per share (impacts the rounding by less than $0.01 per share) on the 2011 year presented; therefore, the Company does not present the
full calculation below.

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share was as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(As adjusted)*

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Basic net income (loss)_per share:

Net income (loss) $ (21,067) $ 41,204 $ 27,989
Weighted average common shares outstanding 28,416 28,232 28,952
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ 0.74) $ 1.46 $ 0.97

Diluted net income (loss)_per share:

Net income (loss) $ (21,067) $ 41,204 $ 27,989
Weighted average common shares outstanding — Basic 28,416 28,232 28,952
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and restricted stock — 284 543
Weighted average common shares for diluted earnings per share 28,416 28,516 29,495
Diluted net income (loss) per common share $ 0.74) $ 1.44 $ 0.95

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

Common stock of approximately 0.7 million, 1.0 million and 0.3 million shares at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, that are issuable through
exercise or conversion of dilutive securities were not included in the computation of diluted net income per share because their effect would have been
antidilutive.

Performance Shares and Restricted Units that entitle the holders to approximately 0.2 million shares of common stock are included in the basic and diluted
weighted average shares outstanding calculation from their date of issuance because no further consideration is due related to the issuance of the underlying
common shares.

12. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by component between December 31, 2013 and 2012 are presented in the table below, net of tax:
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Balance at December 31, 2012

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications

Gains and Losses

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive

income

Current period other comprehensive income (loss)

Balance at December 31, 2013

on Cash Flow Defined Benefit Foreign Currency
Hedges Pension Items Items Total
(In thousands)
$ (2,373) $ (1,154) $ (1,270)  $ (4,797)
(54) (1,133) 5,874 4,687
1,037 — — 1,037
983 (1,133) 5,874 5,724
$ (1,390) $ (2,287) $ 4604 $ 927

The reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Components

Amount Reclassified from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Affected Line Item in the Statement where Net Income
(loss) is Presented

Gains and losses on cash flow hedges
Interest rate swap
Foreign currency forwards

(In thousands)

(1,938)
108

(1,830)
793

(1,037)

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Interest (expense)

Cost of goods sold
Total before tax

Tax (expense) or benefit

Net of tax

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Components

Amount Reclassified from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Affected Line Item in the Statement where Net Income
(loss) is Presented

Gains and losses on cash flow hedges
Interest rate swap
Foreign currency forwards

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(In thousands)

(1,901)
(309)

(2,210)
939

(1,271)

Interest (expense)

Cost of goods sold
Total before tax

Tax (expense) or benefit

Net of tax

In consideration for certain technology, manufacturing, distribution, and selling rights and licenses granted to the Company, the Company has agreed to pay
royalties on sales of certain products that we sell. The royalty payments that the Company made under these agreements were not significant for any of the

periods presented.

The Company is subject to various claims, lawsuits and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's business, including claims by current or former
employees, distributors and competitors and with respect to its products and product liability claims, lawsuits and proceedings, some of which have been
settled by the Company. In the opinion of management, such claims are either adequately covered by insurance or otherwise indemnified, or are not expected,
individually or in the aggregate, to result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition. However, it is possible that the Company's results of
operations, financial position and cash flows in a particular period could be materially affected by these contingencies.

On June 6, 2012, the Company was contacted by the United States Attorney's Office for the District of New Jersey regarding the activities of sales
representatives in a single region within our Extremities Reconstruction division. The U.S. Attorney's Office is
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investigating the activities of three sales representatives, one of whom was a supervisor until terminated by the Company for failure to cooperate with this
investigation. The activities at issue pertain to alleged improper billing of products for extremities indications. The Company is cooperating with the United
States Attorney's Office on a voluntary basis and is not a subject or target of an investigation at this time.

The Company accrues for loss contingencies when it is deemed probable that a loss has been incurred and that loss is estimable. The amounts accrued are
based on the full amount of the estimated loss before considering insurance proceeds, and do not include an estimate for legal fees expected to be incurred in
connection with the loss contingency. The Company consistently accrues legal fees expected to be incurred in connection with loss contingencies as those
fees are incurred by outside counsel as a period cost.

14. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Starting in the first quarter of 2012, because of changes in how the Company internally manages and reports the results of its businesses to its chief operating
decision maker, the Company began reporting five reportable segments. The five reportable segments and a description of their activities are described below:

*  The U.S. Neurosurgery segment sells a full line of products specifically for neurosurgery and critical care such as tissue ablation equipment, dural
repair products, cerebral spinal fluid management devices, intracranial monitoring equipment, and cranial stabilization equipment.

e The U.S. Instruments business sells more than 60,000 instrument patterns and surgical products and lighting to hospitals, surgery centers, and dental,
podiatry, and veterinary offices.

«  The U.S. Extremities segment includes the U.S. extremity reconstruction business, which includes such offerings as skin and wound repair, bone and
joint fixation, implants in the upper and lower extremities, bone grafts and nerve and tendon repair.

»  The U.S. Spine and Other segment includes (i) the U.S. Spine business, which focuses on spinal fusion, spinal implants, and deformity correction,
together with bone graft substitutes and other related medical devices that are used to enhance the repair and regeneration of bone in various types of
orthopedic surgical procedures, and (ii) the Private Label business, which sells the Company’s regenerative medicine and other products to strategic
partners.

*  The International segment sells similar products to those discussed above, but are managed through the following geographies: (i) Europe, Middle
East and Africa, and (ii) Latin/South America, Asia-Pacific, Australia, New Zealand and Canada.

The Corporate and other category includes (i) various legal, finance, executive, and human resource functions, (ii) brand management, (iii) share-based
compensation costs, and (iv) costs related to procurement, manufacturing operations and logistics for the Company’s entire organization.

Accordingly, the segment information for the prior years has been restated in accordance with authoritative guidance on segment reporting. The accounting
policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 2.

The operating results of the various reportable segments as presented are not comparable to one another because (i) certain operating segments are more
dependent than others on corporate functions for unallocated general and administrative and/or operational manufacturing functions, and (ii) the Company
does not allocate certain manufacturing costs and general and administrative costs to the operating segment results.
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Net sales and profit by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Segment Net Sales
U.S. Neurosurgery $ 172,250  $ 171,278  $ 165,652
U.S. Instruments * 163,908 166,921 160,777
U.S. Extremities * 128,336 116,279 91,513
U.S. Spine and Other * 182,006 192,516 176,131
International 189,714 183,877 186,005
Total revenues $ 836,214 $ 830,871 $ 780,078
Segment Profit
U.S. Neurosurgery $ 83211 $ 91,070 $ 86,206
U.S. Instruments * 49,348 50,277 46,281
U.S. Extremities * 47,880 43,952 32,905
U.S. Spine and Other * 10,136 57,388 52,248
International 56,869 61,336 64,164
Segment profit 247,444 304,023 281,804
Amortization (12,697) (18,536) (16,433)
Corporate and other (244,903) (211,705) (210,459)
Operating income (loss) $ (10,156) $ 73,782 $ 54,912

* Certain revenues and profits have been reclassified from the U.S. Extremities segment to the U.S. Instruments segment and the U.S. Spine and Other
segment in each of the periods presented.

The Company does not allocate any assets to the reportable segments, and, therefore, no asset information is reported to the chief operating decision maker
and disclosed in the financial information for each segment.

Revenue by major product category consisted of the following:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Orthopedics ** $ 370,359 $ 364,714 $ 324,535
Neurosurgery 278,672 277,527 272,538
Instruments ** 187,183 188,630 183,005
Total revenues $ 836,214 $ 830,871 $ 780,078

** Certain revenues have been reclassified from the Orthopedics category to the Instruments category in each of the periods presented.

The Company attributes revenue to geographic areas based on the location of the customer. There are certain revenues managed by the various U.S. segments
above that are generated from non-U.S. customers and therefore included in Europe and the Rest of World revenues below.

Total revenue, net and long-lived assets (tangible) by major geographic area are summarized below:
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United States* Europe Rest of the World Consolidated
(In thousands)

Total revenue, net:

2013 $ 642,694 $ 93,977 $ 99,543 $ 836,214

2012 642,830 90,920 97,121 830,871

2011 589,946 97,184 92,948 780,078
Total long-lived assets:

2013 $ 187,608 $ 20,010 $ 1,030 $ 208,648

2012 166,508 20,242 1,507 188,257

* Includes long-lived assets in Puerto Rico.

15. SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data)
Total revenue, net:

2013 $ 196,652 $ 205,547 $ 213,246 $ 220,769

2012 196,185 210,170 210,084 214,432
Gross margin:*

2013 $ 117,040 $ 123,718 $ 131,479 $ 136,932

2012 121,510 131,896 130,536 132,502
Net income (loss):*

2013 (1) $ (6,028) $ 1,520 $ (30,330) $ 13,771

2012 6,693 8,514 13,211 12,786
Basic net income (loss) per common share (2):*

2013 $ 0.22) $ 005 $ (1.09) $ 0.46

2012 0.24 0.30 0.46 0.46
Diluted net income (loss) per common share (2):*

2013 $ 022) $ 005 $ (1.09) $ 0.45

2012 0.23 0.30 0.46 0.46

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax in 2013.

(1) The first quarter of 2013 was negatively impacted by a voluntary recall of certain products manufactured in the Company's Afiasco, Puerto Rico
facility.

On July 31, 2013, the Company performed the annual goodwill impairment test which resulted in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $46.7
million for its U.S. Spine reporting unit, which is a part of the U.S. Spine and Other reportable segment.

The Company incurred incremental costs related to the implementation of its global enterprise resource planning system in the first, second, third, and
fourth quarters of 2013 of $6.1 million, $7.6 million, $5.0 million and $5.6 million, respectively.

The Company incurred costs related to the remediation of the FDA warning letters at its manufacturing facilities of $2.1 million, $3.0 million, $2.8
million and $0.4 million in the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2013, respectively.

(2) Per common share amounts for the quarters and full years have been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly amounts do not necessarily add to
the annual amount because of differences in the weighted average common shares outstanding during each period principally due to the effect of the
Company’s issuing shares of its common stock during the year.



INTEGRA LIFESCIENCES HOLDINGS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company borrowed $235.0 million under its Senior Credit Facility in January 2014 in order to fund this acquisition.

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Description

Year ended December 31, 2013:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns and allowances
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

Year ended December 31, 2012:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns and allowances
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

Year ended December 31, 2011:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns and allowances

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

On January 15, 2014, the Company acquired all outstanding shares of Confluent Surgical, Inc., ("Confluent Surgical") - including its surgical sealant and
adhesion barrier product lines - from Covidien Group S.a.r.], ("Covidien") for an aggregate purchase price of $231.0 million. The Company paid Covidien an
initial cash payment of $231.0 million upon the closing of the transaction and at that time made a separate prepayment of $4.0 million under a transitional
supply agreement with an affiliate of Covidien. In addition, the Company may pay Covidien up to $30.0 million following the closing, contingent upon
obtaining certain U.S. and European governmental approvals related to the completion of the transition of the Confluent Surgical business and the timely
supply of products under the transitional supply agreement. The Company also entered into a transition services agreement with an affiliate of Covidien at the
closing. This acquisition complements Integra's global neurosurgery growth strategy aimed at providing a broader set of solutions for surgical procedures in
the head. Since the acquisition occurred subsequent to December 31, 2013 the acquisition is not included in the results of operations for any of the periods
presented.

Balance at
Beginning of Charged to Costs  Charged to Other Balance at End
Period and Expenses Accounts (1) Deductions of Period
(As adjusted)*
(In thousands)

$ 7,221 $ 601 $ — 3 (1,628) $ 6,194
14,243 (4,469) — (714) 9,060

$ 6,978 $ 1,315 $ — 3 (1,072) $ 7,221
32,304 (16,979) 477 (1,559) 14,243

$ 7,322 $ 1,118 $ — 3 (1,462) $ 6,978
36,634 127 (4,238) (219) 32,304

There were no such reclassification adjustments made during 2013.

* See Note 2A of the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the impact of the change in accounting for the medical device excise tax.

(1) In 2012, $0.5 million of deferred tax liability was reclassified to the valuation allowance with no impact to the consolidated statement of operations. In
2011, $4.2 million of the valuation allowance was reclassified to long-term taxes payable with no impact to the consolidated statements of operations.



